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Strategic report
At a glance

About Us
One of the largest of the 10 regulated water and sewerage companies in England and Wales We
provide high quality services to more than 4 3 million households and businesses in the Midlands and
mid-Wales

Where we operate
Our region stretches across the heart of the UK, from the Bnstol Channel to the Humber, and from
mid-Wales to the East Midlands

Key Facts
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What we do

Serving our customers and communities

We are committed to putting customers at the heart of all we do Our customers will always come first
in our thinking and planning as we deliver our day-to-day business, working together tirelessly to serve
our communities

Building a lasting water legacy

We are dedicated to ensuring a sustainable future for water and our environment By recognising the
growing challenges and pressures on resources, by investing in smarter, more efficient ways to supply
the network and by adopting greener, renewable energy to support our operations, we demonstrate a
commitrnent beyond serving the needs of today to secunng a legacy for generations to come

Earning the trust of all

We are committed to earning the trust of everyone we serve We will do this by transforming our
service today, driving operational improvements and shaping the future of our industry for tomorrow,
for the mutual benefit of our customers, communities, investors and employees
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Transforming Customer Services

This has been a promising year at Severn Trent as we embrace the new regulatory environment
However, there remains much to do to ensure that we are consistently delivering great service for our
customers each and every day to achieve our vision of being the most trusted water company by
2020

Embracing change

| firmly believe that if you embrace change n a regulated business such as ours you will be a winner |
also firmly believe that if you start with the customer and deliver a better service for them, you will
drive improvements throughout the business and be rewarded for doing so The new regulatory
emphasis that rewards companies for doing the nght thing for customers, improving services and
being more efficient fits exactly with our strategic framework Our framework outlines five areas of
embedding customers at the heart of all we do dnving operational excellence and continued
innovation, investing responsibly for sustainable growth, changing the market for the better, and
creating an awesome place to work Focus on these actions will, we believe, enable us to become the
most trusted water company by 2020

We planned and prepared well for these changes For example, we sought to embed the principle of
performance commitments and Outcome Delivery Incentives (‘ODIs’) across the business ahead of
implementation, enabiing us to assess what needed to be done to deliver operational iImprovements
and ultimately improved services for customers

This approach has enabled us to deliver some significant milestones this year and make some

great strides in operational improvements For example, we have reduced the number of sites with
coliform fallures by 62% and incidents of internal sewer flooding by 31% These improvements have
been achieved through a number of initiatives, such as pre-emptive work on known problem areas or
by working with customers to reduce matenals that cause blockages, such as fats being disposed of
down drains By being proactive in managing our network we can prevent problems occurring in the
first place, which improves services for customers as well as enabling us to operate more cost-
effectively and be rewarded for doing so This type of thinking has seen us exceed our nitial
expectations and earn a reward of £23 2 million under the ODI mechanism this year

That said, we stll have much to do to improve the quality of our service for our customers

We had two significant unsatisfactory incidents during the year In February, a burst water main In
Nottingham saw more than 7,000 customers without water for over 12 hours In March, an incident at
our Castle Donington reservoir affected 3,700 customers on the Derbyshire and Leicestershire border,
the majorty of which were able to use their water supply within 24 hours These incidents show that
there remains much work to be done to consistently deliver the high quality levels of service that our
customers rightly deserve

Our aim 1s to lead our sector In how we manage energy We aim to generate more renewables, use
less energy from the gnd and pay the lowest prices where we are not generating our own Over the
last 12 months we have generated an extra 44GWh compared to 2014/15, which 15 an increase of
17% We now generate an equivalent of 33% of our consumption

Making the business better for customers requires us to look at ail parts of our business With a new
management team in place we have been able to review our cost structures including how and where
we spend our money This has not only enabled us to lock in our £372 million (at 2012/13 prices)
efficiency target set by Ofwat, but also to map out an additional £260 milhion of efficencies, at nominal
prices, that we can deliver over the course of the AMP About half of this we will re-invest back into the
business to iImprove water quality, secunity and service to vulnerable customers These changes will
not only make the business better, but cost less to run for customers and easier to manage for our
colleagues We want to be leaders in our industry and these improvements will serve us well on the
Journey towards maintaining our position at the frontier of efficiency of waste water and help us move
closer to our ambition of upper quartile efficiency in water when compared to other UK water and
waste water companies
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Our regulator has started to further utihse markets in some downstream activities with the introduction
of non-household retall competition in England We think the best way to win in this market 1s to offer
customers a cost-effective, service driven operation at scale and we have created a joint venture with
United Utiities to achieve this Water Plus, the new operation 1s based in Stoke-on-Trent and will
combine the complementary skills of both companies in customer service, biing and debt
management systems to deliver an outstanding customer service to non-household customers | am
very excited by the opportunity this innovative approach will bring for customers and shareholders
alke

All of this activity has been done against a backdrop of further reductions in customer bills with the
average combined water and waste water hill for our customers being £329 p a, once again the lowest
in Bntain Our customers pay less than £1 a day for all their clean and waste water services Of course
water 1s an essential commodity and we must do all we can to ensure that vulnerable customers have
access to all that we can offer So | am delighted that our Big Difference Scheme has doubled the
number of vulnerable customers we have helped this year If everyone pays their fair share, then all
customers get a better deal, so | am pleased to see that we have also further reduced bad debts again
this year

Continuing our strong track record of delivery from last year, we have achieved sector leading
environmental performance again, having been awarded a provisional Environment Agency 4* rating
in therr Environmental Performance Assessment, demonstrating that we continue to respect our
environment and are viewed as industry leading when benchmarked against our peers

Engaged workforce

None of this intense activity would have been possible without the hard work and dedication of all of
my colleagues across the business | could not be more proud of the way they have nsen to the
challenges, embraced change and delivered a better service for our customers | thank them all
wholeheartedly

| firmly believe that helping our colleagues to do their job more easily and effectively will not only make
therr lives better, but also improve the service we deliver to our customers So | am pleased that,
despite some tough choices, we instigated a number of imbiatives to simplify processes and
management structures By doing this, we have empowered our colleagues to take the night action for
our customers Deploying digital tools, such as smartphones and tablets, as well as introducing apps,
helps speed up processes and reduce costs For example, a new app enables our teams out in the
field to photograph, map, spec and log work that needs doing in a fraction of the time taken previously
and improves scheduling and deployment of resources We have also introduced new ways for our
customers to interact with us, such as webchat with 100,000 chats this year already Improving the
management of, and access to, supplies and assets means that our teams can more easily get hold of
the matenals they need to complete jobs in a more timely manner. These are just a few of a number of
changes we have Introduced that are helping our colleagues do a better job for customers and there
are many more that we will introduce in the years ahead

Our colleagues’ health and safety (H&S) 1s an ongoing prionty and on H&S measures we have seen
operational improvements with a reduction of 20% in accidents this year

Alongside all this, we have aligned bonus structures across the business, with everyone rewarded for
delivering the same three key metrics — profit, customer service and operational performance, and
health and safety This means that everyone i1s incentivised to work towards common goals, ensuring
greater cohesion of objectives

Delivering returns

| am delighted that all of our hard work 15 delivering for our Investors We measure ourselves against
four key measures of potential outperformance, three of which | have discussed above ODls, Totex
and Renewables James Bowling, our Chief Financral Officer, discusses the fourth, Financing, in more
detall in the Financial Review, and through his careful stewardship | am pleased to see that we are on
track to deliver outperformance on thss, too
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ODiIs, Totex and Financing are key enablers for us to deliver outperformance on our allowed return on
regulated equity {RoRE) This year we have achieved 8 4% RoRE We see this as an important
measure of the quality of our earnings as 1t reflects not only regulatory requirements, but in our case,
the significant iImprovements in underlying services provided to customers as measured by ODIs This
approach, we believe, holds us in good stead to deliver for all of our stakeholders in the years ahead
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Looking forward

This has been a year with some significant achievements for Severn Trent However there remains
much to do We will continue to priontise water quality We want to deliver the best quality possible to
our customers This will require us to remain obsessive about the provision of wholesome water and
deliver continuous improvements

We will continue to embrace regulatory change We are well placed for the forthcoming changes to the
non-household retaill market and are engaging with Ofwat about further opening up of competition in
parts of our value chain, in particular in relation to sludge trading

We have one of our largest ever asset-creation programmes underway for this AMP, which includes
the Birmingham Resilience project, a major scheme that will secure the future supply of water to
Birmingham for many years to come Alongside this we will continue to invest iIn maintaining and
upgrading our network as well as delivering our renewables programme [n fact, this 1s one of our
largest investment periods in our history which will see us invest £3 billion, delivering one of the
biggest increases in asset values across the sector

These ambitious plans of course require us to continue to invest In our colleagues We will invest
further In digital technology for our teams to help make their jobs easier and more efficient Our
apprenticeship and graduate schemes will increase In size this year, which alongside our technical
training schemes will ensure Severn Trent 1s equipped to serve the needs of our customers for the
next generation and beyond Customers remain firmly at the heart of everything we do with a focus on
doing the rnight thing for them each and every day | am extremely privileged to be a part of this great
company, to work with such a fantastic team of people and to ensure the sustainability of such an
important service for customers

Our long-term strategy 1s to transform customer services today, drnive growth, and shape our industry
for tomorrow, for the mutual benefit of our customers, communities and nvestors

Liv Garfield
Chief Executive
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How we are achieving

our strategy

Our purpose is to serve our conununities and build a lasting water legacy. It 1s our vision by 2020 to be
the most trusted water company- deltvering an outstanding customer experience, the best value service
and environmental leadership. How we plan to aclueve this strategy is set out below.

Embed customers at the heart of all we do
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Achievements

It 1s Just over 25 years since the English and Welsh water and waste water industry was pnivatised in
1989 Since then the industry has made significant progress through innovation, greater efficiency and
a substantial increase In Investment on pre-pnvatised levels Investment to date 1s £108 billion

This investment has helped to deliver real improvements for the industry’'s 50 million household and
non-household consumers |.eakage has reduced by 35% since the mid-1990s, sewer flooding 1s 75%
lower than a decade ago, and 99 96% of drinking water and 95 4% of bathing waters now meet
European Union (EU) standards At the same time, 1t 1s estimated that industry-wide efficiencies have
kept customers’ bills £120 lower on average than they would otherwise have been

Severn Trent Water Limited, our regulated business, 1s proud of the part it has played in these
achievements as one of 18 regional suppliers Ten of these, including Severn Trent Water Limited,
provide water and waste water services The remaining eight provide water only

Challenges

Our industry, the environment in which we work, and the needs of the customers who we serve,
continue to change And while these changes present, as we see them, fantastic opportunities, there
remamn challenges

Our customers’ expectations are ever changing, not least how they'd like to communicate with us
Innovation in channels such as webchats and social media are transforming our industry beyond
anything contemplated at the time of privatisation At Severn Trent Water Limited, we're committed to
serving our customers 24 hours a day, using channels that are convenient to them, and that means
being a leader in this new digital world

While meeting 21st century expectations, we also have to deal with the realities of an infrastructure
that dates back, in some cases, to the early 20" century Over the next five years, we're investing
£700 million in repairing and, where necessary, replacing parts of our infrastructure to leave behind an
even better set of water and waste water services for the next generation

Increasing our network’s resilience 1s also a prionty Extreme weather associated with global warming
Is likely to have a major impact on how we operate and how and where we invest We’'re committed to
bullding resiience against, and adapting to, flooding and drought in our plans Our biggest capital
investment over the next five years, the £300 milllon Birmingham Resilience project, i1s just one
example of how, by creating a second source of water for the UK's second largest city, we're working
to safeguard our customers’ future supplies

Meanwhile the UK's population continues to grow, and new households and businesses will place
greater demand on our water and waste water services Severn Trent Water Limited currently serves
4.3 million households and businesses and it 1s our responstbility to invest carefully to ensure that we
have the right infrastructure and resources in place to meet their needs

And, underpinning all these challenges, we must continue to be able to finance our future investment
needs In a sustainable way, so that we can keep offenng affordable bills to our customers, and create
value for our investors

A changing regulatory landscape

The industry in England and Wales operates in a policy framework where standards shaped by the
European Union (EU) are implemented by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra) and the Welsh Government respectively

The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) oversees the quality of dnnking water, and the Environment
Agency, and its Welsh counterpart, Natural Resources Wales, license water abstraction, and regulate
nver pollution and flooding

1€
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The Consumer Council for Water, which represents the industry’s customers, and Natural England
which protects England’s natural environment, play an important part of this framework

It 1s perhaps in the economic regulation of the industry, where, In recent years, we have seen some of
the most notable changes

Ofwat, the industry’s economic regulator, sets imits on the prices we can charge our customers over
five year penods These five year regulatory planning cycles, are known as Asset Management Plan
(AMP) penods This financial year was the first of AMP6, which started on 1 Apnil 2015

Our planning for AMP6 concluded in 2014 when Ofwat carried out its 2014 price review (PR14) In our
view, PR14 represented the most significant development of the economic regulation framework since
pnivatisation Ofwat sought to put greater responsibility on companies to develop their plans In
consultation with customers, giving them a stronger voice in determining the future of their services

To reinforce this customer-centric approach, Ofwat changed the nature of incentives within the price
sefting framework By introducing Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODls), Ofwat better aligned the
interests of companies with those of their customers using performance-related penalties and rewards
Ofwat also encouraged companies to ook at the whole life costs of their assets (by switching to a total
expenditure cost assessment (Totex)), and provided stronger incentives for companies to press for
further efficiencies Details about our ODls can be found on page 9

Our AMPE6 plans, driven by our determination to embed customers at the heart of all we do, embraced
these changes Our performance review on page 14 sets out how well we did during the first year

Contributing to the future of regulation

The regulatory framework within which we operate continues to evolve Ofwat consulted on its future
proposals for the sector in its Water 2020 document In establishing its proposals, Ofwat encouraged
water companies to contribute to a ‘marketplace of ideas’

We contnbuted to this on access pricing, the allocation of the regulatory capital value (RCV) and
indexation

In September 2015, we also published Charting a Sustainable Course which set out our vision for the
future of the water sector This built on our previous series of Changing Course thought leadership
publications The Ofwat Water 2020 document 1s aligned with a number of our proposals including
developing markets for sludge trading and water resources

For the most part we are very supportive of the proposals We believe that they will help us deliver our
vision to be the most trusted water company by creating a much stronger emphasis on companies
competing to deliver the best service for therr customers

Overall we think the reforms proposed by Ofwat have the potential to deliver enormous benefits to
customers through lower prices and higher service levels The ideas around sludge competition are
perhaps the most exciting given recent technological developments and we think they will help
promote a more innovative and sustainable sector

We have suggested some improvements to the proposed package of reforms, particularly around
sludge, direct procurement and the proposed transition to CPI

The most significant immediate change to the framework within which we operate, I1s the introduction
of retall competition for non-household customers in Apnl 2017 This will enable businesses, charties
and other non-household customers to shop around for what they consider to be the best deal in water
supply Severn Trent welcomes the introduction of competition and the potential to win new
customers The Government has also asked Ofwat to look at how this choice might be extended to
households and we welcome this review and are engaging with Ofwat to support its analysis

11



Strateqic report
Market and industry overview

A sustainable company
The central Issues as we see them are around ensuring we continue to chart a sustainable course,

+ empowerment for customers In decisions about their water services,

+ affordable services for customers In the fong term,

+ amore resilient sector for water resources,

+ flooding and drainage challenges, particularly during a period of climate change,

+ cost-effective delivery of further improvements to the environment,

+ innovation and market solutions to benefit customers, and

« working with partners across the community to deliver the most efficient and effective solutions

Industry stakeholders and regulators are involved in a continual, constructive debate on how best to
meet the changing needs and aspirations of our customers We are proud that Severn Trent 1s among
the leaders In that debate
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Wateris collocted

Wa pay the Environment
Agency and Natural Resources
Walos for the water we coltoct
from reservoirs rivers and
underground aquifars across
our region

|-

Wastewater Is treated and
returnod to the snvironment
Wastawatars carefully
screened filtered and treated
inour 1,027 sewage treatment
works to meet stringent
environmental standards

We pay the Ermronment Agency
and Matural Resounces Wales
annual consent fees to return the
treated water to the water system,

Investment and maintenance

.- Associated risks e

The resources and relationships critical to our success

Qur value chain

Watar is cloaaned

Our 133 groundwatar and

22 surface water treatment
works claan rawwater to

the highest standards making
i safe todrink.

Wastowateris collected
Gur 92 000 km of sewers and
pumping stabons coltect
waste water from homes and
businesses from outside
properties and drains.

Cleanwater is distributed

A 47000 km network of pipes
and enclosed storage
reservoirs bring a continutous
supply of cleanwater right

to our customaers’ {aps

Customners enjoy our services
We sqrvo 4.3 milbon businasses
and households with a safe
reliable supply of water and
cofloct waste water 24 hours
aday, Js5days ayoar
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Regulated water and waste water business model

Our regulated water and waste water business works within five year planning cycles that are
determined by our economic regulator, Ofwat Each of these perods is called an Asset Management
Plan (AMP) and allows us to fund our investment programme and cover our operating costs This was
the first year of AMP6

Our prices and asset base are adjusted by inflation each year Under certain circumstances, for
example where there 1s a matenal change in costs due to factors that are beyond our control, we can
request a price review during the AMP

The framework on which we build our activities consists of a package of 45 performance commitments
that are largely unique to us and agreed with Ofwat Of these, 33 Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODls)
reward us for doing the right thing for customers, improving services and being more efficient, or
conversely penalise us for failing to do so

This 1s consistent with our own strategic framework, which focuses on embedding customers at the
heart of all we do, driving operational excellence and continuous Innovation, investing responsibly for
sustainable growth, changing the market for the better, and creating an awesome place to work

Regulated water and waste water business performance review

Critical to our success

Putting customers first

We serve 4 3 millon households and businesses in the heart of the UK, In an area stretching from the
Bristol Channel to the Humber, and from mid-Wales to the East Midlands Our customers consume
almost 2 billion hitres of water every day and rely on us to collect almost as much waste water — some
1 5 billion htres daily

Customers are at the heart of all we do They trust us to ensure that their water 1s not only available 24
hours a day, but 1s also always safe to drink

During the year, we have increased our water qualty standards complance to 99 96%, an
improvement on 99 94% in 2014 We also reduced the number of pollution incidents and made
significant reductions in both internal and external sewer flooding incidents

Our customers pay the lowest combined water and waste water bills in Britain, at £329 p a in 2015/16
(2014/15 £333) We also continuously work hard to help our vulnerable customers who have difficulty
paying their bills, through a number of schemes
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Our employees

We are firmly committed in our purpose to serve our communities and to build a iasting water legacy
In order to do this, we need to ‘create an awesome place to work’ for our colleagues and as part of
this, we recognise that diversity and inclusion are important for our success We need our workforce to
reflect the customers and communities we serve, so that we can better understand and respond to
their needs

There are several aspects to this For one, it means encouraging and celebrating diversity in all of its
forms including gender, race, national ongin, disability status and social background Secondly, to help
us make meaningful progress, we have priontised three key areas women In operational leadership
positions, women and BAME (Black, Asian and Minonty Ethnic) people in engineering positions, and
BAME people in technical operator positions

We are also dniving a better working environment for our colleagues through our enhanced training
and development initiatives such as our Awesome Leaders Programme

Regulatory framework

Ofwat, the industry’s economic regulator, sets imits on the prices we can charge our customers during
each five year AMP period Ofwat was founded at the time the industry was privatised and since then
has incentivised companies to deliver better services at a lower cost, whilst ensuring efficient
companies are financeable

Standards for water, waste water and the environment are consistent across the European Union In
England, the Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) sets the overall water
and sewerage policy framework In Wales the policy framework is set by the Welsh Government

We also work closely with a variety of other public bodies

¢ The Consumer Council for Water speaks on behalf of all water consumers 1n England and
Wales As such, it advises consumers and takes up complaints on their behalf

s« The Environmental Agency allows us to collect water from reservoirs, rivers and aquifers and
return it to the environment after it has been used by our customers and treated by us

+ Natural Resources Wales 1s the environmental regulator in Wales It ensures that Wales’
natural resources are sustainably maintained, enhanced and used

+ Natural England advises the Government on the natural environment in England and helps to
protect nature and the landscape, with particular responsibiity for freshwater and marne
ecologles

e The Health and Safety Executive helps us to eliminate dangers to our employees and
customers

¢ The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) provides independent reassurance that water supplies
in England and Wales are safe and drninking water quality 1s acceptable to consumers The
DWI's remit includes water qualty audits, a regulatory strategy to further improve drinking
water, enforcement processes and science and policy
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Associated risks

Each phase of the value chain presents risks as well

as opportunities. It is our job to maximise opportunities
while anticipating and mitigating the associated
potential and existing risks.

Water is collected

Key asset falure could result in iquries, damage @ Principal risk ref 7 2nd 8
to property and /or disruption of water supply

Water is cleaned
During this phase, a fallure of key assets or @ Principal risk ref §and 7

processes may cause a dechine in water quality
or disrupt our supply to customers

Principal risk ref 8
The use of potentially hazardous chemicals @

or processes may also result in injuries
Clean water is distributed

Distribution performance could fall below the @ Prncipal risk ref 1and &
required standards, resulting in poor customer

service and increasing the rnisk of leakage from

our network

Customers enjoy our services

A failure to improve or maintain our performance B Principat risk rot 1
could result in customer disappointment

Waste water is collected

Sewer flooding could be the result of failing @ Principal risk raf 7
to deal effectively with customerwaste

qute water is‘treated and return_ed to thg en_\{ironfn_n_ept

Operational fallures during this phase could @ Principal risk rof 8
result in damage to the local ervironment

Potentially hazardous processes and @ Princpal sk ref 8
substances may result in people being injured
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Investment and maintenance

With a wholesale capital programme for the year of almost £500 million, ocur average spend was £113
per connected property Expenditure encompassed finding and fixing more leaks, reducing the
number of pollution incidents and improving our water and waste water treatment plants Additional
upgrades to our sewer network also reduced tncidents of sewer flooding We funded this programme
of essential work through customer bills, the profits we generated from being efficient and through
borrowings from capital markets

The amounts we invest in improving and maintaining our networks, together with the other costs of
operating the business, form the total expenditure of the business or ‘Totex’ Part of our Totex I1s
included In the calculation of current year prices and the remainder 1s added to our asset base, called
the Regulated Capital Value (RCV)

During AMP6, we aim to increase returns to our shareholders through the potential created by
Outcome Delivery Incentives (ODIs) The ODI framework means that if we deliver higher service levels
where our customers value it most, we are rewarded for a year In 2015/16 we laid the foundation for
potential rewards via ODI outperformance

Regulated water and waste water business performance

We are firmly committed to delivering even better value for money, improved services and a healthier
environment between 2015 and 2020

We aim to inspire trust among our customers by maintaining and expanding a water system on which
they know they can rely upon clean, safe, reliable and responsive ta their needs

In this section, we explain how our business performed during the last 12 months, as well as the
actions we're taking to achieve success during this AMP

Embedding customers at the heart of all we do

Severn Trent customers pay the lowest average combined water and waste water bills in Britain and
will continue to do so throughout AMPS Our average combined bill iIn 2015/16 was £329 (2014/15
£333), which equates to a 12% reduction Our challenge I1s to stnke the nght balance between
keeping bills affordable for today's generation and investing in our network and assets to ensure they
remain affordable for future generations

We have worked to help our customers who have difficulty in paying Whilst we didn’'t meet our target,
we were able to assist 24,110 customers through a varety of schemes In some cases, through our
new social tanff, the Big Difference Scheme, we have been able to provide reductions of up to 90% for
quahfying customers Through carefully selected third party organisations, we also make available
debt management advice to help our customers who are in difficulty get back on track

In 1997, the Severn Trent Trust Fund was established to provide assistance for those in the most
financial difficulty This independent body aids people in arrears with theirr water bills and can also
provide help with essential household bills or costs Since incorporation we have donated more than
£56 milion for the benefit of 550,000 people across our region who have fallen behind with their
payments This financial year, we have donated £3 5 million to the Fund

In order to keep bills affordable, where possible we work to ensure that everyone who can pay, does,
so they don't increase the burden on others During the year we reduced our level of bad debts to
1 5% of turnover, one of the best performances in the sector

In 2015/16 we began a more in-depth engagement with our customers on a range of 1ssues, such as
bill design and how we communicate This Included a survey of over 15,000 respondents, involving a
much wider cross-section of our customers than we've ever reached before, achieved through more
frequent and effective communication
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We have listened to our customers’ comments and have made our billing information simpler and
mtroducing more convenient ways to pay

In response to feedback that customers wanted greater avalabiity and accessibiity of
communications channels, we broadened access, setting up a webchat facility that has so far
engaged in over 100,000 chats We expanded our Twitter feed to be a 24/7 operation to better suit
customers’ needs

We have also committed to investigate the underlying causes of complaints and act on them n
anticipation of problems This effort 1s paying off This year, household written complaints were down
by 29%

Enhancing customer experience through the intelligent use of customer data, current and future
technologies will be an important part of our approach during AMP6 We're continuing to invest in and
develop systems, which will draw together the key elements of customer insights, people, processes
and systems to provide a consistent expenence to our customers regardless of therr choice of
channel Increasing our knowledge of each customer will help us to predict their needs, so we can
offer them a more personalised service This will also support our colleagues to resolve more queries
first time

Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) 1s an important indicator of how good our customer
service 1S The SIM score has two elements — qualtative and quantitative This year SIM 1s based on
Household customers only and the overall score calculation 1s weighted at 75% Qualitative and 25%
Quantitative We are reporting a Company SIM score of 83 7

Investing responsibly
We hope to continue the strong start we've made to the current regulatory period, and plans are now
In place to improve our performance further throughout AMP8

Our £300 milion Birmingham Resilience Project, due for completion in 2020, 1s our, and the sector’s,
biggest single capital investment scheme for this AMP It will create a second major source of water
for the UK's second largest city Once operational, the new, state-of-the-art facility will supplement
water flowing through the existing Elan Valley Aqueduct, a Victonan landmark Having this alternative
source in place will enable us to divert supply in order to carry out maintenance and repairs to the full
74-mile length of the aqueduct This restoration and modernisation will keep the aqueduct going for at
least another century, creating a lasting legacy for the next generation and ensuring the secunty of
Birmingham’s water supply

We share our customers’ desires for a cleaner, greener future that protects and improves our
environment for generations to come During the year, we invested £31 million towards achieving our
targets on pollution, environmental complance, biodiversity and sustainable sewage treatment This
forms part of a larger £250 million programme for AMP6 that will help ensure our assets are not
preventing compliance with the Water Framework Directive

in 2015, to expand our water catchment management programme, we recruited eight new agricultural
advisors These experts, together with other environmental colleagues, work closely with farmers
throughout the Severn Trent region to promote better land management With help from our
agricultural adwvisors, more farmers are now using acceptable substitutes or channeling therr
contaminated water to prevent it joining streams and rnivers This initiative not only helps the
environment, but also, by reducing the run-off of pesticides into our natural raw water sources, helps
to reduce our treatment costs

Our performance commitment score for Asset Stewardship Environmental Compliance was 97 51%
for the year This fell just short of 100% compliance, largely as a result of the time 1t takes to see the
required flow conditions to confirm the improvements we have made
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Globally there 1s increased focus on mittgating the risk of climate change During the year we reduced
our overall Severn Trent Water Limited carbon emissions to 484 kilotonnes of CO2e, a reduction of
1%, compared to 2014/15 (491 kilotonnes) Despite this reduction however, we have not met our
stretching ODI target for the year More information on our greenhouse gas impact can be found within
our Corporate Responsibility report on page 37

Renewable energy 1s an important part of our approach to sustainability We will be investing up to
£190 milhon to reach our 2020 target of producing the equivalent of half of our energy needs from
renewable sources We use a range of technologies such as anaerobic digestion of sewage sludge,
food waste and crops as well as wind turbines, hydropower and solar panels We lead the industry in
this effort

We remain on target to deliver our renewables commitment This year we have invested In solar
arrays at over 30 sites, erected two new wind turbines and we are have started construction on our
second food waste anaerobic digestion site at Roundhill Staffordshire We are also investing in
Thermal Hydrolysis Process Technology to extract even more energy from our sewage sludge before
we recycle it to agricultural land
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Driving operational excellence and continuous improvement
For our customers, being able to rely on the quahty of the water we supply to therr homes and
businesses is their highest pnority

To improve water quality, we have made substantial investment in our water treatment faciities
Duning the year, a total of £72 million was targeted at reducing water quality complaints, compliance
with drinking water quality standards and reducing coliforms Improvements include the installation of
8 ultra violet steriisers at groundwater works, as part of our wider Operational Effectiveness
Programme We have undertaken the sector's most rigorous levels of testing, with sampling for
colform bacteria done as frequently as every 10 to 15 minutes at our critical sites During 2015, we
improved dnnking water quality standards to 99 96%, which was below our target, but an improvement
on 99 94% n 2014/15 We have also seen an improvement in coliform detection, down to five sites
this year, compared to 13 sites the year before The incident at Castle Donington in March 2016
however shows that there remains much work to be done to consistently deliver the services our
customers nghtly deserve

Discolouration, while usually harmless, can be off-putting for our customers More often than not, it 1s
caused by changes in flow, which can loosen harmiess iron sediments from within the pipes Dunng
the year, we increased our pipe cleaning programme from 1000km in 2014/15 to 1500km 1n 2015/16
This helps to reduce complaints about water discolouraton We stll had more than 7,000
discolouration contacts in 2015 so we recognise that we have more to do to meet our targets

We have reduced total leakage and have achieved our regulatory commitment for the fifth year
running Our ‘Valuing Every Drop’ programme has been part of this success It informs customers of
the challenges we all face due to greater variability in weather patterns and more frequent episodes of
extreme weather Our shared goal with customers 1s to reduce unnecessary usage and to do
everything we reasonably can to fix leaks as quickly as possible This year we set a target of meeting
70% of fixed visible leakage, where safe to do so, in 24 hours

Whilst we improved to 53%, we have more to do to meet this challenging commitment

Over the course of the year, customers expenenced an average of 11 minutes 10 seconds without
supply, compared to an average of 9 minutes 54 seconds the year before
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Although rare, a sewer flooding 1s one of the worst things that can happen to a household Whether it
involves a backup within the property itself or an overflow from beyond the penmeter, the upheaval
and damage can have a significant and unpleasant impact We therefore plan to increase our spend,
targeted at reducing such events, from £110 million in AMPS to the current £135 milion

In 2015/16 we accelerated our investment in flood prevention and mitigation, and as a result, we were
able to gain a better understanding of the cause of sewer floods and how best to prevent them In
future Looking at a decade of data, we also identified ‘hotspots’ throughout the region and have
focused our investment and efforts in those locations

Thanks to these efforts, Severn Trent had 31% fewer internal sewer floods, down from 1,168 in
2014/15 to 804 1n 2015/16 and a 28% drop In external flooding durnng the year, down from 9,896 in
2014/15 to 7,142 in 2015/16 These improvements were ahead of target, and built on the advances
already made in the previous year

We have reduced sewer blockages by 4%, which has been achieved in part through education
programmes that help customers understand how they can prevent blockages, 75% of which are
caused by customers putting the wrong items down the sink or tollet Every year it costs us £10 million
to clean over 700 km of sewers, so helping customers understand how they can help prevent
blockages also lessens the cost that s borne by them

The Environment Agency has provisionally assessed our overall environmental performance at 4* |If
confirmed, this would be the second time In the past three years We have also increased our efforts
in preventing pollution During the course of the year our less serious spills (classified by the
Environment Agency as category 3) were down by 21%,

while more serious incidents (categones 1 & 2) were reduced by 80%

Throughout 2015/16, we have sought to enlist customer support to involve them more closely in what
we do That 1s why we launched a number of customer focused apps These include ‘In My Street,’
which provides alerts to people of local water repair work and gives them the opportunity to adapt their
travel and domestic arrangements accordingly, which Utility Week cited as among the sector’s best
Another app, ‘Track My Job', supplies real-time updates on repairs, which means that customers can
keep constant focus on the latest situation around any of the jobs or iIssues that they've raised with us
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Creating an awesome place to work

Safety is an ongoing prionty, which we have embedded into dally working life as well as safety in our
supply chain We have made improvements in a number of areas, but have fallen short of where we
need to be In others Our year end Lost Time Injury ('LTI') rate was 0 25 across both Severn Trent
Water Limited and our supply chain This I1s shghtly worse than the previous year's LTI of 0 21 per
100,000 hours worked Overall accidents reduced by 25% this year

At Severn Trent, a core value Is to ‘create an awesome place to work’ For our employees that means
being part of an organisation that celebrates diversity and individual thinking, provides recognition and
reward whenever it 1s due and offers opportunities for advancement and job ennchment through
professional and personal development During the past year, we have made progress In all of these
aspects of working Iife
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During the year, we delivered more than 15,000 training days 1n our UK water business We undertook
a comprehensive review of personal development plans for all senior leaders and line managers and
devised tallored development programmes On the technical side, we've provided training to all our
staff on the importance of protecting dnnking water quality

Our new recognition scheme, 'Our Briliant People’ provides a new, online way of recognising
individuals’ exemplary performance instantly throughout the Company So far, we have had 14,764
such recognitions

Our inhatives for greater involvement, recognition and empowerment are working In 2015 we
reviewed and replaced our existing employee surveys into a single global survey to give us new
insights into employee engagement and thinking For its first year we are delighted that response rates
have remained strong with the overall response rate at 80% Our highest performing areas for 2015/16
were Health and Safety, Customer Focus, Diversity and Inclusion and Corporate Social Responsibility
We rematn determined to further improve our scores next year

We take a long term view of our business and are active in seeking out tomorrow’s talent — particularly
among women and BAME candidates for jobs in engineering and technical operations roles We
recognise that diversity and inclusion are important for success and have always made them a
business imperative Our Severn Trent Water Limited workforce remains slightly more diverse than the
sector average, with female employees accounting for 30 3% of the total compared with 30% across
the industry 7 64% of our employees are BAME against an industry average of 6%

Outlook

Only one year into AMP6, we can already see how the new regulatory framework i1s delivering better
outcomes for our customers, our communities and for the environment Our other stakeholders —
Investors and employees — are also benefitting, as ODI performance and a growing RCV provide new
gains and new opportunities

The investments we are currently making are yielding improved water and waste water services
throughout our region for today’s customers, and we intend to continue iImproving our services so that
tomarrow’s customers can also reap the benefits for generations to come
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The group has delivered strong financial results in the first year of the new AMP Reduced operating
costs have helped offset the impact of the lower prices agreed in the Final Determination PBIT 1s
profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT i1s PBIT excluding exceptional items as set out in note 7

Results

Turnover In Severn Trent Water Group decreased by £31 0 milhion, or 2 0%, to £1,550 2 million,
largely as a result of the agreed price reduction in the Final Determination of £30 2 milhlon This was
partially offset by growth from new customers and consumption increases of £6 7millon Tanff mix and
other effects reduced turnover by £7 5 millon

Underlying PBIT decreased by 3 3% to £518 7 million (2014/15 £536 6 million) as lower operational
costs partially offset the dechne in turnover

2016 2015 Better/(worse)

£m £m £m %
Turnover 1,550.2 1,581 2 (310) (20)
Net labour costs (142.0) (157 0) 150 96
Hired and contracted costs (172.4) (164 Q) (8 4) 5N
Bad debts (23.7) (28 4) 47 16 5
Power (68.9) (71 2) 23 32
Infrastructure maintenance (126.0) (134 8) 88 65
Depreciation (310.2) (298 9) {11 3) (38)
Other costs (188.3) (190 3) 20 11
Underlying PBIT 518.7 536 6 (17 9) (3 3)

Net labour costs were £15 0 million lower year on year Employee costs decreased by £13 7 milhon
reflecting the benefits of the reorganisation implemented in the previous year and the closure of the
defined benefit pension scheme to future accrual These offset additional costs related to the new
company-wide centive scheme launched at the beginning of the year

Hired and contract costs increased by £8 4 milhion This i1s partly due to costs incurred in preparation
for market opening including an increase in contributions to Open Water In addition, we have seen an
increase In distribution and tankering costs in our waste business and have paid a bonus to our supply
chain for support on delivering our strong OD} performance

Bad debt charges were 1 5% of turnover in the year (2014/15 1 8%) and decreased by £4 7 million as
a result of improved collection performance on amounts billed in the year and better management of
aged debt balances

Power costs decreased by £2 3 million mainly due to the benefit of a full year of biogas to gnd
generation We continue to make good progress on our renewable energy generation, and self-
generated the equivalent of 33% of gross consumption in the year, providing an increasingly effective
hedge against energy price volatiity

Infrastructure renewals expenditure decreased by £8 8 million year on year due to a lower level of
activity at the start of the year, and improved efficiencies in delivering the programme, as highlighted
in the interim results of Severn Trent Plc

Depreciation increased by £11 3 million primarnly due to the growing asset base and an accelerated
charge of £3 6 million ansing from the decommissioning of older assets as part of our water quality
Investment programme

Return on Regulatory Equity (‘RoRE’)

A key indicator of the performance of the regulated business is the Return on Regulatory Equity
Outperformance against the Final Determination for totex, ODIs and financing 1s included in RoRE
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Profits reported under IFRS accounting rules do not reflect all of the regulatory impacts of
performance in the year and may reflect the regulatory impacts of performance in previous years :

Severn Trent Water's RoRE for the year ended 31 March 2016 1s set out in the following table !

OA)1
Base return? . 57
Totex outperformance? 07
ODI outperformance?* 07
Financing outperformance® 14
Other® 01
Regulatory return for the year 8.4

Based on RCV of £7,324 million in 2012/13 prices

Per Final Determination

Company share of Totex outperformance In the year

Company assessment of performance, subject to Ofwat review process in Autumn 2016
Based an actual financing cost and actual gearing

Includes non-household revenue, land sales and disposals, other income and the Wholesale
Revenue Forecasting Incentive Mechanism

AN WN -

Severn Trent Water's Totex benefit to RoRE, after taking account of shanng with customers was £19 0
million in 2012/13 prices after tax

Our assessment of performance on our Gutcome Delivery Incentives (‘ODI's} will be published In
Severn Trent Water Limited's Annual Performance Report in July 2016 We éarned a net reward for
performance in 2015/16 of £23 2 milhon before tax at 2012/13 pnces, which 1s subject to the Ofwat
review process In Autumn 2016 All of this relates to ‘'n AMP' measures, which will be reflected in
increased prices that we will set for 2017/18

Severn Trent Water's financing costs in 2015/16 were £40 million lower than the Final Determination

in 2012/13 prices after tax This 1s due to the impact of lower inflation on our index linked debt and
nominal interest rates achieved lower than assumed in the Final Determination - a consequence of low
market interest rates and savings arising from our AMP6 financing activihes In addition, we have a
lower debt requirement than assumed in the Final Determination

Exceptional items

An exceptional credit of £1 0 million was recognised for the year (2014/15 £21 5 milion charge) as a
result of the release of a provision that was previously recorded as an exceptional charge

Net finance costs

The net finance costs were £203 9 million, £17 6 milion lower than in the prior year The benefits of
lower interest rates, in particular on our RPI-inked debt, were partially offset by higher levels of net
debt.

In March 2015, in order to mitigate financing nsk in 2015/16, the group purchased approximately 26%
of the €700 million, fixed rate Eurobond, which was due for repayment in March 2016 This led to a
charge of £6 6 million n finance costs in 2014/15 The remaining balance of the Eurcbond was repaid
in accordance with the onginal schedule on 11 March 2016

The group's net interest charge, excluding net gains/(losses) on financial instruments and net finance
costs from pensions, was covered 4 3 times (2014/15 4 0 times) by profit before interest, tax,
depreciation, profit on disposal of fixed assets, deferred income release and exceptional items and 2 7
times (2014/15 2 6 times) by underlying PBIT

9
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Gains/(losses) on financial instruments

The Group uses financial dernivatives solely to hedge nsks associated with its normal business
activities including

¢ exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominated in foreign currencies,

* Interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and

* exposures to Increases in electricity prices

Accounting rules require that these denivatives are revalued at each balance sheet date and, unless
the cntena for cash flow hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken to the income
statement If the rnisk that 1s being hedged does not impact the income statement in the same penod,
then an accounting mismatch arnses from the hedging activities and there 1s a net charge or credit to
the income statement

Where denvatives are held to their full term, mismatches will net out over the Iife of the instrument
The changes In value that are recorded during the lives of the denvatives, unless crystallised, do not
represent cash flows Therefore the Group presents underlying earnings figures that exclude these
non-cash items In exceptional circumstances the Group may terminate swap contracts before their
matunty date The payments or receipts ansing from the cancellations are charged or credited against
the liability or asset on the balance sheet, and amounts previously recognised In reserves are recycled
through the income statement

The Group holds interest rate swaps with a net notional principal of £518 1 milhon which economically
act to hedge the Interest rate risk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate risk on certain foreign
currency borrowings However, the swaps do not meet the hedge accounting rules of IAS 39 and
therefore the changes In fair value are taken to gains/(losses) on financial instruments in the income
statement Dunng the year there was a credit of £47 7 million (2015 charge of £195 3 million) in
relation to these instruments

An analysis of the amounts charged to the income statement in the period 1s presented in note 12 to
the financial statements

The Group manages Its electricity costs through a combination of self generation, forward price
contracts and financial derivatives The Group has fixed around 37% of the estimated wholesale
energy usage for 2016/17

Taxation
The total tax credit for the year was £14 1 million (2014/15 charge of £25 7 millon)

The current tax charge for 2015/16 was £55 2 million (2014/15 charge of £38 8 milion) The deferred
tax charge before exceptional tax for 2015/16 was £9 5 million (2014/15 credit of £13 1 million)

There was an exceptional deferred tax credit of £78 8 million arising from the change In tax rates
(2014/15 £nil) This was a result of the Finance Act 2015 being enacted in the current year, reducing
the corporation tax rate from 20% to 18% with effect from 1 Apnl 2020

The underlying effective rate of current tax on continuing operations, excluding prior year credits,
exceptonal tax credits and tax on exceptional items and financial instruments, calculated on profit
from continuing operations before tax, exceptional items before tax and gains/(losses) on financial
instruments was 18 6% (2014/15 18 0%)
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Group cash flow

2016 2015
£m £m
Cash generated from operations 799.8 752 3
Net capital expenditure (385.8) {392 5)
Net interest paid (184.0) (202 6)
Payment to close out interest rate swaps - (139 2)
Tax pad (20.0) (26 5)
Other cash flows 0.1 -
Free cash flow 210.1 (85)
Dividends (310.0) (203 7)
Net issue of shares (4 0) (2 4)
Change in net debt from cash flows (103.9) (214 6)
Non cash movements (8.8) (27 2)
Change in net debt (112.7) (241 8)
Net debt 1 Apnl (4,700.8) (4,459 0)
Net debt at 31 March (4,813.5) (4,700 8)
Net debt comprises:
Cash and cash equivalents (2.8) 120 1
Loans payable to parent company (53.0) (27 0)
Bank loans (1,212.2) (1,240 7)
Other loans (3,456.4) (3,368 8)
Finance leases (117.2) (180 0)
Cross currency swaps 28.1 (4 4)
(4,813.5) (4,700 8)

At 31 March 2016 the group had a net overdraft of £2 8 million (2014/15 £120 1 million in cash and

cash equivalents) Average debt matunty 1s around 15 years Including committed facilities, the

group's cash flow requirements are funded until January 2018

Net debt at 31 March 2016 was £4,813 5 million (2014/15 £4,700 8 million) Balance sheet gearing
(net debt/net debt plus equity) at the year end was 84 1% (2014/15 86 0%)

The estimated fair value of debt as at 31 March 2016 was £861 7 mullion higher than the book value
(2014/15 £891 3 million higher) The movement in the difference to book value 1s largely due to the

Increase In the discount rates applied, dnven by market expectations of higher interest rates

Treasury management and liquidity

The Group's pnincipal treasury management objectives are

s to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest

cost compatible with the need for continued availability,

e to manage exposure to movements in interest rates to provide an appropriate degree of

certainty as to its cost of funds,

e to minimise counterparty credit exposure nsk,

+ to provide the Group with an appropnate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange

exposure,

« to matntain an investment grade credit rating, and
+» to mamntain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

The Group continues to ensure It has adequate liquidity to support business requirements and provide
headroom for downside nsk At 31 March 2016 the group had committed undrawn facilities amounting

to £775 0 milhion (2014/15 £745 0 million)
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The group I1s funded for its projected investment and cash flow needs up to at least January 2018

Cash 1s invested in deposits with financial institutions benefiting from high credit ratings and the list of
counterparties 1s reviewed regularly

In November 2015 the company completed its first US Private Placement debt issue raising the
equivalent of £471 million at competitive pricing with matunties ranging from 11 to 15 years The

proceeds were received In March 2016 and were used to repay the remaining £396 million of our €700

milhon bond

The Group’s policy for the management of interest rate nisk requires that not less than 40% of the
Group’s borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through the use of interest rate swaps
or forward rate agreements Going forward, the Group intends to manage Its existing debt portfolio
and future debt i1ssuance to increase the proportion of debt which Is at floating rates At 31 March
2016, interest rates for 51 7% (2014/15 67 0%) of the group’s net debt of £4,813 5 million were fixed

The Group’s long term credit ratings are
Long term ratings

Moody's A3
Standard & Poor's BBB+
Pensions
The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes for its UK employees, of which the UK
Severn Trent Pension Scheme (‘STPS’) 1s by far the largest The most recent formal triennial actuanal
valuations and funding agreements were carned out as at 31 March 2013 for both schemes As a
result, defict reduction contributions of £40 mulhon in 2013/14, £35 mullion in 2014/15, £15 mithon in
2015/16 and £12 million p a 1n subsequent years to 2024/25 were agreed Further payments of £8
million p a through an asset backed funding arrangement will also continue to 31 March 2032 The
next tniennial valuation, as at 31 March 2016, 1s underway
As previously announced, the defined benefit schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015 On
1 Apnil 2015, members of the defined benefit schemes were transferred to the defined contribution
Severn Trent Group Personal Pension Scheme, which was opened on 1 Apnl 2012
The key actuanal assumptions for the defined benefit schemes have been updated for these accounts
On an |AS 19 basts, the estimated net position of the schemes was a deficit of £309 5 million as at 31
March 2016 This compares to a deficit of £468 9 million as at 31 March 2015 The movements in the
net deficit can be summarised as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

Present value at 1 Apnil (468.9) (348 3)
Change n actuarial assumptions 194 2 (336 8)
Asset (under)/outperformance (45.9) 193 4
Contnbutions In excess of Income statement charge 111 228
Present value at 31 March (309.5) (468 9)

The funding level has increased to 86 8% (2014/15 81 7%)

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial statements

Qur consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards that have been endorsed by the European Unmion The company financial
statements are prepared In accordance with FRS 101
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Our approach to risk:

Managing risk 1s all about understanding the uncertainties surrounding the achievement of our aims
and objectives Therefore, risk management describes the activities performed within our organisation
to identify, assess and control events which may impact on our ams and objectives We also
appreciate that uncertainty can manifest itself as both negative and positive impacts, hence our goal is
to mmnimise these threats and maximise the opportunities for the benefit of our customers, people,
contractors and key stakeholders The Board has overall accountability for ensuring that nsk is
effectively managed across the Group The Board’s mandate includes defining nsk appetite and
monitoring nisk exposure to ensure significant risks are aligned with the overall strategy of the Group
The management of risk 1Is embedded In our everyday business activities, with employees encouraged
to play their part

On behalf of the Board, the Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee assesses the effectiveness of the
Group's Enterprnise Risk Management (ERM) process and internal cantrols to identify, assess, mitigate
and manage nsk Internal Audit supports the Audit Committee In evaluatng the design and
effectiveness of internal controls and nsk mitigation strategies implemented by management

The Executive Committee reviews strategic objectives and assesses the levels of risk in achieving
these objectives This ‘top-down' nisk process helps to ensure the ‘bottom up’ ERM process i1s aligned
to current strategy and objectives

Across the Group, we manage nsks within the overall governance framework which includes clear
accountabilities, delegated authonty limits and reward policies These are designed to provide
employees with a holistic view of effective nsk management

Within Severn Trent Water Limited, our approach reflects our status as a regulated utlity providing
essential services and operating as part of the Critical National Infrastructure for the UK The nature of
our Severn Trent Water Limited business 1s such that there are some significant inherent nsks We
aim to have a strong control framewaork in place to enable us to understand and manage these nisks in
accordance with our risk tolerance and appetite

The ERM process

The Board

= Sets strategyand
determmes regulatory
BUICOMmeS

-+ Sets business
plan obpttives

- Defines nsk appette

@ Y EEEERRP 0‘ ‘

ERM team Operational teams
= Monitors performance = Idently and assess nshs
= Assesses ERM maturty scross = Setnsk @rget postion
tha Group -+ Idontfy rek mprovement
- Provides challonge and insight actons
= Reports to Executve Commutice
Audit Commiee and Board

Our Enterprise Risk Management process

We use an established ERM process across the Group to assess and manage our significant nsks,
which are linked to our corporate objectives, core processes, key dependencies, stakeholder
expectations and legal and regulatory obligations The process 1s controlled by the central ERM team
and underpinned by standardised tools and methodology to ensure consistency ERM Champions and
Coordinators operate throughout the business, with support and challenge from the ERM team, to
identify and assess nisks in their business units quarterly against a defined set of critena considenng
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the likelthood of occurrence and potential financial and reputational impacts The potential causes and
subsequent impact of the nsks are documented to enable the corresponding mitigating controls to
reduce the likelihood and impact to be assessed This assessment allows us to put in place effective
mitigation strategies to remediate defective controls or implement additional controls

This information 1s combined to form a consclidated view of nsk across the Group and allows the nsks
to be pnontised Our significant nsks, in terms of likellhood and impact, form our Group nisk profile
which 1s reported to the Executive Committee for review and challenge ahead of final review and
approval by the Audit Committee and Board half-yearly In addition, individual nsks or specific nsk
topics are also discussed by the Board durning the year

On a quarterly basis, the status of open nisk mitigation actions across the Group risk profile and level
of ERM maturnity in each business unit 1s reported into the Executive Committee by the central ERM
team Where necessary improvement plans are agreed to ensure ERM is fully embedded and
effective

An overview of accountability for our ERM process i1s illustrated in the diagram above

Risk appetite
The Board keeps under ongoing review the relationship between our strategic ambitions and the
management of nsk

The ERM process establishes target nsk positions for each of our significant nsks The Board formally
discusses the progress towards this position and the mitigating actions being undertaken every six
months

Financial risks
Like all businesses, we need to plan future funding in line with business needs This is part of our
normal business planning process (see Principal Risk 3)

The Board receives regular updates relating to funding, solvency and liquidity matters via the Treasury
Committee so we can respond quickly to any changes in our ability to secure financing (see Pnncipal
Risk 11) The pension fund trustees and Company regularly monitor our pension deficit, with advice
from investment managers and advisors An annual pension fund review paper i1s produced for the
Board to apprise them of fund performance and proposed intiatives to manage down pension
habiities and further improve investment returns (see Principal Risk 10)

The ERM process and relevant nisk assessments are factored into the ‘stress testing’' to assess the
Group's prospects as part of our Viability Statement
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Long Term Viability Statement

The directors’ assessment of the Group’s current financial position 1s set out in the Financial review on
pages 22 to 26 and their assessment of the group’'s principal nisks 1s set out in the Pnncipal nsks
section on pages 31 to 36

The Company's principal operating subsidiary 1s Severn Trent Water Limited, which 1s a regulated long
term business charactensed by multi-year investment programmes and stable revenues The water
mndustry 1in England and Wales 1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market
competition and Ofwat, the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to secure that water
companies are able to finance their appointed activities Ofwat meets this obligation by setting price
controls for five year Asset Management Pertods ('AMPs’) This mechanism reduces the potential for
vanability in revenues from the regulated business The current AMP runs until March 2020

The Group has an established process to assess its prospects The Board undertakes a detailed
assessment of the Group's strategy on an annual basis and the output from this assessment sets the
framework for the Group’s medium term plan which 1s updated annually

The plan assessed the Group’s prospects and considered the potential impacts of the principal nsks
and uncertainties Stress tests were performed to assess the potential impacts of combinations of
those nsks and uncertainties The plan also considered the mitigating actions that might be taken to
reduce the iImpact of such risks and uncertainties and their ikely effectiveness

The Group’s investment programmes are largely funded through access to debt markets The Group's
strategic funding objectives refiect the long term nature of the Severn Trent Water Limited's business
and the Group seeks to obtain a balance of long term funding at the best possible economic cost The
Group’s Treasury Policy requires that it maintains sufficient hquidity to cover cash flow requirements
for a rolling penod of 18 months in order to mitigate the nsk of restncted access to capital markets
The Group's debt maturity profile 1s actively managed by the Group Treasury department to spread
the timing of refinancing requirements and to enable such requirements to be met under most market
conditions The weighted average matunty of debt at the balance sheet date was 15 years

Bearing in mind the long term nature of the Group’s business, the enduring demand for its services,
the nature of the Group's established planning process and the changing nature of the regulation of
the water industry in England and Wales, the directors have determined that three years 1s an
appropnate penod over which to assess the Group’s prospects and make its viability statement
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In making its assessment the Board has made the following key assumptions

« Any period in which the Group Is unable to access capital markets to raise finance during the
perod under review will be shorter than 18 months

« There will not be a catastrophic disruption to our dnnking water supplies ansing from external
factors during any such period of market disruption

The directors have assessed the viabiity of the Company over a three year pernod to March 2019,
taking into account the Company’s current position and principal risks Based on that assessment, the
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue In operation and
meet Its llabilities as they fall due over the period to 31 March 2019

Going concern statement

In preparing the financial statements the Directors considered the Company’s ability to meet 1ts debts
as they fall due for a period of one year from the date of this report This was carried out In conjunction
with the consideration of the Viability Statement above

On this basis the Directors considered it appropnate to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing
the financial statements

Principal risks

The Directors have carmed out a robust assessment of the principal nsks facing the Company,
including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity
These have been categonsed across

Customer perception,

legal and regulatory environment,
operations, assets and people, and
financial nsks

For each risk we state what it means for us and what we are doing to manage 1t
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Customer percep

o Whatis the risk?

We inay be unable to impirove
and maintain our levels of
customer sernce sufficiently
to delwer what our customers
tell us they want.

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Gmup-w;h i

Link to how we re achieving our strategy
Embed customers at the heart of allwe do
Link to our values

We put our customers first
Woe are passionate about what wa do
Wa actwith integry

Performance cornmltmenls

OD!s 24-27

o Whal Istherisk?

We may be wzabIe to take fuﬂ
advantage of the oppartunities

presented by the operung up of
the non-household retall market

fo competihion

Which part of Severn Trent 15 affected?
Cropwde '

Link 1o how we re aclueving our strategy
Change the market for the better

Link to our values

We are p:s;aonmwmtm do

Pertformance commitments
N/A

Whal does it mean for us?

W'e ar a requiated utddy pmvldmg essenbal services to our customers We recognise that our customers
increasingly expe ct more from us snd damand an mproved and more conssstert experence As other
mdustrees improve thew lavels of sarvice the bar continues to be raised

Falure to dalver the service that custorners expectwill lead to customer dissatistacton, This may resull
m financil penalbes under Owat 5 Service Inczntve Mechansm and assocuted 0D oultum

What are we doing tomanage the risk?

We have continued to focus on driving change toembed custorners st the heart of what we do. We have
diveloped 5.6 core household customer journeys sowe understand customer needs and expectations.

Wa have delivered some quick wins to augmant our exsting offening, Track My Job In My Street, in My Area
and SMS appomntrient reminders

Provsding the high qualty service that our customers demand means we need the nght processes systems
and resources As part of becoming a digitally savwy organsahonwe are improving ourweb offering and
dgital sell-service channals We are alao gring customers mone choice in the way thal they interact withus
by introducing new contact channels such as Facebook, and ensunng our current channels arg ¢ fficignt and
effactive for example we have mvested in a strategic webchat capsbilty to ensure we can cffer thes service
to reach & broader audience

We know that providing great customer service needs the nght resource so we have mtroduced & new
performance and quality framework for our contact centre staff and undertakan capabildy assessments to
wentfy and close any Lrameng gaps.

To help make sure we contmue b mprove our service n e with our customer & expectations we survey
thousands of customers each month through our Rant & Rave tool This gves us direct feadback on ther
expertence of contecting us and enables us to improve our service 2pot trends and react to our customens
needs We are contmueng to extend our voue of the cusiomer spproach to capture feedback from more
nteractions across more of our business Wa have used this feedback to develop a SIM forecast toolsowe
can predict our ODI performance for our quabitatve element.

Movement In net risk exposure

)

What doa tmean for us?

Competihion will gve non- household customers mcreased -:hou andwnll encourange companes to pronde
@ batter sernce Ifwe failto keep pacewith change or fad to recognmse the needs of our business customers
we may lose customers o our compettors We may fail to successfully grow our business by being unable

to develop sufficrently attractive services towin new customers

What arewe doing to manage the risk?

We are posiioming our business tosuccead in ths markotandmacuvdympamq forthe I'ltrbcﬁ.lclnn
of competibion te non-household retal m England The change programmes to govern and manage the
adapbon of ourwholesale and retail busmesses are well underway and on track for ‘Shadow Operation’
which commences in Getober 2016 and acts es a dress rehearsal for full market openmg in April 2017
InFebruary 2016 the Board signed the first of three "Letters of Assurance confirmung tothe Secretary
of State for the Erwironmant Food and Rural Affairs that we era on track for merket openng

In March 2014 we announced a proposed joint verture with Unded Utdibes to form e combined non-
household retail business The ot ventura will cornbine the complamentarykills and capabisties of Sevarn
Trent and Urated Utilizes to wriprove our competve oflerng for customers increase efficency and enhance
value The mtroduction of competiion into the non-household retail market presents us with an exciling
opporturay to combane our expertrse for the benefit of customwers and shareholders

We are developing & control framework to e stablish the pr is, pol tems, gurdance and
traumgnocesmforﬂnopenlmndsopuabwhdesahnndmaibcsussunilsmdlnersumongomg
compbancewnth the relevant legislaton ncluding competrion Law

Movement innet risk exposure
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Legal and regulatory environment

o What isthe risk?

We may be unable to effechvely
anticipate and/or miflience future
developments n the UK water
wndustry resulting m ouwr busmess
plans becorming unsustamable

Which part of Severn Trent 1s affected?
SovernTrent Water Limited

Link to howwe re achieving OUI"SU‘alSQV
Change the market tor the better ‘
Investing responsibly for sustamable growth
Link to our values
ne

Performance commitments
N/A

e What s therisk?

The regulatory landscape 1s complex
and subject to ongoing change

There is arisk that processes may
Sl or that owr processes may not
effectively keep pace with changes

in legislation leachng to the risk

of non-comphance

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wide

Link to howwe re achieving our strategy

Drwe operabonalexcellence and
continuous nnovation

Change the market for the better

Investing res ponsibly for sustamable gromth
Link to our values

We act wmith miegrtty

We protect ourenvironment

Performance commitments

ODis 1-4, 19-23,30-43

What does it mean for us?

Severn Trent Water Livute d operates in a hughly regulsted erwinonment. Whilst we are broadly content with
the direction of changes proposed for our ndustry there remains a rsk that future changes could have a
signdficant impact on Severn Trent Water Limied

What arewe doing to manage the risk?
Severn Trent has abways contnbuted to the debate ebout our ndustry s future mctuding through our seres of
Changing Course publeations We will continue to be an actrve parbapant in these corversations sowe can
help shape thinking about howto best serve our customers in the future

We have contnbuted to the establishment of Market Operator Servaces Limited the body whichwill help to
facilitate compettion i the non-household retad market.

We contmue to actvely parbicipste in dseussions with Ofwat regarding the development of the regulatory
environment and our response to theWater 2020 consultationwas submtted in Fabruary 2016
Engagement with our peers, other requiators, UK Government departments and other stakaholders
mclixding the Welsh Government, helps us to influence the direction of regulatory policy where possible and
put forward our own case for change in a constructive way

Movement in net risk exposure

&
4

What does it mean for us?

Our policies and processes must reflect the current tegal and regulstory environment and alt relevant
employees must be kept aware of new requirements Due to the spraad of our operstions, and chenges
n actwity and organisabional structure, 1hes s not always straightforward The Group as awhole may face
censure for non-complance i an mdwdual group compary or aspecfic regroninwhich we operate

What are we doing tomanage the risk?

Our governance framework and related poboes and mternal controls ensure our engoing compliance with
sl applicable laws and regulations

The forthcoming mtroduction of non-household retail compettion means ws need to refresh our palicy

fr ri, We are devaloping a conirol framework to establish the protocols, poboes, systems, guidance
and training necessary for the operaton of separate wholesale and retail busmess units and to ensure
ongaing compliance with the relevant legislation inclading competton law

Changes to the tegat and regulatory envronment ore captred as emergng rsks’ through our ERM process
with the necessery owners and actions identified to ensure compliance whan the changes come mtosffect

Movement in net risk exposure

&
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Operations, assets and peopte

e What is the risk? What does it mean for us?
The rsks arming from loss of one or more of our majpr systens or corrupbion of data held in those systerns.
We may experience lass ofdata or could have far reaching sffacts on our busmass. We have rcogrisod the increasing threats posed by the
mnterruphons to our ke_l,' busmess possibility of cyber attacks on our systems and data Whitst this threat can never be eEmmated and will
syste"ts asa rasulf ofcyfwr threais contmue toevolwe we are focused on the need to mamtam effectve mihgahon,

What are we dotng to manage the risk?
Which part of Severn Trent Is affected? We recognise that the cyber threat to the business & constantly evalving and one whichwe need to mondor

Group-wide and act on in 3 bmely manner
Using guidance fromthe Centre for Protection of Criscat Natonal Infrastructure [ CPNI'l we have improved
Link to howwe re achieving our strategy both ourtechnology controls lsecurtty event alerting enhanced emad and wab fillering vulnerability
management and advanced threat management solubors allinstalled m the last 12 months] and tramung
Embed customers at the heart of allwe do and awareness [cyber securtyncorporsted into sacunity and swareness tramng, cyber roadshows to
Drwe aperatonal e xcellence and ramse awareness and anline tramng).
contnuous innovation We have also partiipated i a Government lad cyber exercsa for the watar ndustry and recently debivered
8 company-wxla axercise simulating a cyber attack and subsequent wadespread power loes inodent,
Link to ourvalues Regular penetrstion testng of our corporate and custornerwebsies s completed by cyber secunty
- - - - - specialists todentify any vulnerabilities and the resibence of our systems through regularly tested disaster
We put our customers first recovary plang are m place
Whilst progress has been mada during the ye ar to ensure we are better preparad, due Lo the rapadly ovolving
Performance commitments nature and complexity of the threat this work wilk continue Ongoing monstoring and reveews will ensure that

ODis 1-& 5-18 19-23 25-37 our mitigating controls and plans continue to protect us and ourcuslomers,

Moavernent in net risk exposure

-
L

/

Legal and regulatory environment

e What is the risk? What does it mean for us?
|fwe ere unable to meet operational performance targets we may be subjectad to signdficant reguiatory
We ’nﬂy'ﬁc';i;o meet our ngltIGfOry penalties erther within the current price revew pertod or appled to the next price review
e 9 ets u ng mrgmj m Regulatary targets apply to alt of cur water treatment dstribution, sewerage snd sewage treatment assets
@clmt mrelation to operatior wal Mezsures are in place in relabon towater quabty, continuous supples, sewer flooding, sewer collagses
performance of our assets resulting and pollution events
uireq latort Y pena[nes We naed to ensure that our customers can trust and place confidence m the operational performance datawe
publish Our data assurance needs io be robust to confirm the accuracy and mtegnity of thes nformation
Whichpart of Severn Trent is affected? Whatare we dong to manage the risk?
Severn Trent Water Lendted CQur buziness plan for 2015-2020mncludes considerable mvestment m our assets to improve the resiience of
our networks, reduce interruptions and improve the service that cur customers recave. We recognese areas
Link 1o howwe re achieving our strategy where our performance 1s not as consistant as we would blke and are committed to enproving these arpas
Underour Claanest Water Plan we have undertaken a signdicant amount of work at our water treatment
Embed customers at the heart of all we do works, boreholes and reservairs inspecting the srtes and increasing our mamntenance and captal
Drwe operationatexceliance and replacernent as well as formalsing our processes standands and operatng procedures mvolved in
continuous mnovation delvering cleanwater
Invest onsibly f nable We rematn commetted to investing in continuous improvament activibies such s our Value Every Drop
mvesting responsibly for sistainable growth which has reduced our e to process and react toleaks We have siso reducediotat laakage
Link to our values and have achieved our regulatory commitment for the fifth year running
- - AR - - Wa continued towork te reduce the smpact on our custormers when things urfortunately do gowrong,
We put our customners first for exampla by faster despetch of emergency tankers and providing our employees with a refresh of
We are passionate about what we do inadant management training

Fownprove ourwaste water performance we have tnalled different ways of engaging with customers to
rose awareness of the problems caused by putting the wrong things down cur sewers We are also mvestng
i capilal s dlutions to enable us to protect properties st rsk of sewer flooding

We protect our erwironment

Performance commilments
0DIs 1-45 Movement in net risk exposure
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What does it mean forus?

o What isthe risk?

Faenlure of certam key assets or
processes may result in inabibty to
provide a continuous supphy of clean
water and safely take waste water
away within og- area.

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wide

Link to howwe re achieving our sirategy

Embed custorners at the heart of allwe do

Drwe oparatienal excellence and
continuaus mnovation

bly for sust

Investing reap ble growth

Unk to ourvatues

We put our custorners first
We are passionate about what we do

Perfermance commitments
ODis 1-4,5-18 19-23

Whal Esthe rlsk"

Due to the nature qf our opemhons
we could endanger the health and
safety of our people, contractors
cnd members of the pubhc as well
as negatwely unpact our local and
wider enuvironment

Whlch parl of Severn Trent 1s affected?

Group-wide

Link to howwe re achieving our strategy

Drwe operationalexcellsnce and
contmnuous innovation

Irvesting respensibly for sustamable growth
Create an awesoma place towork

Link to our values

W protect our erwironment
We act with wntegrity

Performance commitments
DDIs 30-41 42 & 43

Some of our assets are crtical to the prwmdwatarbbmmﬂdmbrwh:hwe requre alternatres
meansof supply

Examples inchude fadure of one of our reservors orwater treatiment works. These assets are regularly
inspected and maintamned and our assessment of the overall condibon of these essets 1s good

Angther exampla s our IT and telaphony systems whech are abeal to car aperations snd failure of these
systems for example our remote mondonng systemn coutd have esgnificant effect,

What arewe doing to manage the risk?

During the year atotal of £72 rmullon was devoted to uchcmgmhrqaluymplants achevmcomphame
withwater quality standards and reduc:ng coliforms Under our Cle anest Water Plan we have undertaken a
signdicant amount of work at surwater treatre nt works, boreholes and resarvors, inspecting the stes and
ncreasing our mantenance and capal replace ment aswell as formalsing our processes standards and
operating procedures involved in delvering cleanwater

Wa ve launched our Operational Effectiveness Programme to ensure maxmum asset perlormance

We re on treckto creste a surte of 18 majpor water trestment works thet are unilormed and systematic m how
they rerun Conssstent undewiating processes that define howwework, will help us to produce a high quality
product regardless of which site it comes from. [t will also help us to shave off unnecessary costs

Our Proactve Asset Management programme has begun to look ito howwe can better use nformation
about our network and assets to prevent fastures inthe first place reducmg mnpacts on service lavels but also
being mora cost-effactme ratherthancarrying out reactve repars. Our 2015- 2020 bustness plan meludes
substantal nvestment in some of our largest strategrc assets such as the Elan Yalley and Derwent Valley
Agqueducts ane of the major ele rments of whech s the £300 milbonimestment i ene of our largest ever capital
schemes to improve the resibience of ourwater supply to Birmungharn

Woa continue to maintain and test our ‘Being prepared ramework toensure our business continutty
arrangements are fit bor purpose and the Group can react quackly to ssfeguard our criical operations.

fn addiion to mvesting in resdience improvements to our network we slsa have assurance plans i place to
monrtor inspect and maintain our most crrtical assets and to ensure dean water & shvays available to our
customers andwe will abvays be able to safely take thewr waste water sway

We will continue to make signuficant inve siment into our network and processes butwe accept there s abways
o nsk of unexpected falures the recent Castle Dorungton incudert being a preme example How we respond to
these and laarn from them s vital in keeping the Lkebhood of unexpected failures as Low as possible

Movement in net risk exposure
(;{\

What does it L mean I‘urus"

The nature of our assets, operations and business are such H\a{ lhreats tothe satety olu.wemployoes
contractors, customers and the wider public exsst. Operstional failures or neglgence could result in damage
1o the emvironment

We are responsible for a large estate of assets and hive tosecure these from unsuthonsed access to ensure
ouraperations are not impactad northe sabety of the public compromsed

What are we doing to manage the nsk?

Cur 2015-2020 busness plan includes substantul inwestment m commundy schemes to ensure the nskof
failura at key points along our ElanVatley Aqueduct, thal could couse subetanhal & and endanger the
safety of the public « further reduced

We have awell astablshed Heatth, Safety and Wellbeing framework ta erfeure all of our operations and
processes are conducted in compliance with health and safely legestation and in the mterests of the selfety
of our people and cordractors. Our Goal Zero mwbatwe dbarly establishes ourtarget that no one should be
npurad or made unwell as a result of what we da.

There are a number of performancs comnmitrnents we heve made to protect our local erwironment, including
rver watar qualily pollubon mcidents brodiversy improvements and enweonmental compliance During the
year we ivested E91 million towards our targets an polhbon ervironmental complance bodversdy

and sustatnable sewage treatment. Continumng our strong track record of delvery from Last year wa have
prowssonally been rated 4* by the Emiranment Agency

We recogrise the impact our operations hove on the wider environment and we want to reducs our
carbon footprint by seekung lower carbon ways of operating our busmess and generating rerewable
energy Ourtarget s to increase the amount of renewable energy we generate and to ovest mways to
make our processes more energyethoen such thal by 2020 50% of the energy we usewil be from
renewable s ources

Mavement in net risk exposure

7
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Risk Management

o What istherisk?

We are unable to dealwith the
unpact of extreme and unpredictable
weather events on our assets and
nfrastructure and/or are unable to
successfully plan for future water
resotree stipply and demand due to
chmate change.

Which part ot Severn Trent is affected?

Group-wide

Link 1o howwe re achieving our strategy

Drwe operationatexcellence and
continuous mnovaton

Investing responsibly for sustamable growth
LinkAtg gurvalues

We protect ourervironment
Performance commitments

ODts 1-4,5-18,19-23,42-43

@ What istherisk?

Lower witerest rates, hgher inflation
or underperfornang equity markets
may requare us to provtde more
funding for our penston schemes.

Which part of Severn Trent is affected?
Group-wule

Link to howwse re achleving our stratagy
Investing responsibyfor sustamable growth

Link to gur values
NA

Performance commitments

A

What does it mean for us?

Climate change [hotter and drer summers wetterwmniars and ncressed stormness) could resutt man
mabididy to meet customer demand lower river lavels, decreased raw water quality floodng of cur waster or
wastewaterworks sewer capacdy being exceeded and increased land movernent, Climnate change could also
be a contributing factor for prnaipal nsks 1 & 7 and B detalled above

There are also some potential opportuntes that cimste change presents for us, induding reduced kalage
aquiler recharge and increased biological trestrment (L mmportant that we understand these opportumtes
to maximese the benefits

What arewe doing to manage the risk?

Our cbmate change adaphon report sats out our strate gy for coping with future changes to our cimate

1t s importard to nota that we dont consider climate change rsks in sdlation and we view them alongssde
allthe challanges we face Tothat effect 2 large number of cur current cbjectwes and targets agreed as
part of our performance commitments will ncrease our esilencs agamst chmata change including
reducmg leakage mprovmgwater efficiency reducing properties prone to low preasure protecting prone
propertes/ameas from sewer flooding and ncreasing the resilence of our water supply and water and waste
watar works

We are also adapting to climate change innovation with 21 catchment management propects and
a doubling of our sustainable urban drainage [ SUDs] projects planned for this AMP

Our own rmpact and contribution to climate change cannct be ignored and as outlined m principal rsk 8
above there ere @ number of ways i which we are addressing our mmpact on the emaronment.

Movement in net risk exposure

What does it mean for us?

We already provide significant funding but could be called upon to pravide more money to reduce pension
daficits i our defined banefit scharnes

What arewe doing to manage the risk?

Woe regulary revalue our schemes and monstor our tnvestment parformance and will continug towork closely
with our thod party adwsers toensure that the s chemes are menaged effe ctively

During the year the Risk Mondormg and Assessment Committee [RMAC | was formed, comprising
representaton from the Company end Trustees. The Cormittes focusas on monitoring wwestment
parformance revewing scherne rsks and operates as a forumfor the Company and Trustees to coltaborats
i taking action to mimirmise the s cheme deficst

Closure durmg the year of the mam defined benefil scheme Lo future contributions by members was a major
madestone and wall help to cap fiture growth of the deficit [defined banefit schemes having been closedto new
trembers n 2004)

Mavement in net risk exposure
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Risk Management

0 What is the rlsk’

Weare unable to flmd the business
sifficiently in order to meet o
liabilities as they fall due.

Which parl of Severn Trent is affected?

Group-wide T .
Link to howwe re achieving our strategy
Investing responsdiy for sustsinable growth

Link to ourvalus

N/A

Performance commitments
N/A

What does It mean for us?

We must ensure sufficent quidity 1s evailable to me et our nearterm &nmnimnimds% have a
sgntficant funding requirement mAMPY to fund our mwe stment programeme end refinance maturmg dabt.
This o awell-controlled nsk but it 1s importent thet we matam these hugh standards to megate this rsk.

What arewe doing tornanage therisk?

The risk s managed by our Treasury Cnmmmeeand lhmrassoualnd polcws and pronedmes through
datailed cash flow forecastng access to commatad banking facilibes, use of dverse lendmg sources
mcludmg bonds US Prwate Placement, European Invesiment Bank and other bank loans to spread rsk,
early refinancng of bonds and other maturing debt fto manage refinanang nsk| mterest rate montonng and
anatysis of the empact interest rates could have on tredit metrcs and loen covenants

The Treasury Commatiae regutarty reports to the Board toenable us to respond quackly to changes v our
ability tosecure financing

Seq our Viahilty Staterment,

Movemenl In net risk exposure

™

For full hst of all ODls and the details of each see www severntrent com
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“Our approach to corporate responsibility aligns with our strategic framework To build trust, serve
our communities and leave a lasting water legacy we must make sustainable choices and act
responsibly m a way that demonstrates our values ”

Gordon Fryett
Chairman of the Severn Trent Plc Corporate Responsibility Commutice

Our Corparate Responsibility framework

Ourpurpose  oeeeeeeeeeeeee preverraseresias Our vision
To serve our communities and v To be the most trusted water
build a lasting water legacy company by 2020

Underpinned by our Corporate Responsibility Commitment
Byadoptoyoapes b % booraer o Uesgrdm e oo o b3 sbie ot
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Our ambitions

The nature of what we do means that we have an important role to play in protecting
water as a precipus resource and the wider ervironrnent We have identified two
stretching ambitions which will help us 1o achieve both our vision and purpose

Ambition One Ambition Two
We will make our region the most We witl play a leading role to help make
water efficient in the UK our region’s nvers even healthier

Our values

Through our company values we will deliver commitments expected of a leading,
socially responsible company We also expect our suppliers to support our values

We put our We are passionate We act We protect our We areinspired
customers first about what we do with mtegnty environment tocreate an
awesome company

® O ® ®© W
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Our ambaitions

In order to achieve our vision of being the mosti trusted water Company by 2020, we will demonstrate
environmental leadership wherever we operate The nature of what we do means that we have an
mmportant role to play in protecting and sustaning water as a natural resource and the environment as
a whole We take water from rivers and aquifers, transport 1t over large distances to our customers,
and return treated waste water to rivers in our region In the future, our ability to achieve this will be
challenged by matters such as mamntaining the restlience of our supplies, ensuring we continue to
source water sustainably, meeting tightening environmental standards, coping with extreme weather
and meeting the demand from the additional 1 6 million people expected to be lving i our region over
the next 25 years We are committed to meeting these challenges, which form the basis of our two
ambitions, and will help us to achieve our vision and purpose as set out 1 this report

Ambition One: We will make our region the most water efficient in the UK
We aim to do this through providing advice, equipment and education

We will empower our customers to save up to 25Mli/d by 2020

We know water efficiency 1s important to our customers and we are comimitted to helping them to
become more water efficient and have set ourselves an ambitious target to help them save 25 million
mega htres by 2020 Through helping our customers and by continuing to reduce leakage we want to
make our region the most water efficient in the UK

We will provide 1,000 of our business customers with water efficiency devices and personal
advice, working with our wholesale suppliers to reduce consumption

As part of our standard service 10 our key corporate customers, we engage with them on water
efficiency discussions and also conduct site audits to help them manage their water consumption and
costs In 2015/16 we provided this advice to 20 of our key corporate customers and conducted 54 site
audits, including ASDA, Next and several [arge universities, and completed 280 water efficiency audits
with smaller businesses in Notiingham In addition to this, we are working to provide third party
consultancy, at no cost to customers, in key parts of our region This 18 a joint engagement between
our wholesale and retall teams We are developing a segmented customer approach to engagement
depending on their size and water efficiency needs

We will improve understanding of our services through education

Qur customers told us they want to better understand what we do This year we set up our new
Community Relationship Team who are focused on delivering two key messages the importance of
water efficiency and ensuring our drains remain clean and blockage free This work 1s really important
in protecting our environment and our customers from pollutants and external and internal flooding In
2015/16, through a number of partnerships including local universittes and City Councils, we have
been able to educate 117,728 customers, a number which we anticipate will increase substantally
These partnerships are mutually beneficial, preventing blockages proactively in both our customers’
networks and ours Through education and trammung packages on water efficiency we also enable
customers with the potential to reduce their water usage and therefore water bills
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Ambition Two: We will play a leading role to help make our region’s rivers even healthier
We aim to achieve this through working with landowners and partner organisations, achieving good
ecological status and improving biodiversity

We will work with landowners and partner organisations to reduce agricultural run-off in our
region’s rivers

Partnerships such as those with Wye & Usk Foundation, Trent Rivers Trust, Severn Rivers Trust,
Catchment Sensitive Farming and Nottinghamshire Wildlife Trust have been key to helping us deliver
our AMP6 catchment ambitions Through these partnerships we are reducing agricultural run-off, such
as pesticides getting into the water and polluting 1it, therefore improving river water quality, reducing
treatment costs and improving the nver environment as a whole Our catchment team, alongside a
range of moorland partners, have been successful in secunng €16 million Euros of EU support to
deliver our targets in the Bamford catchment

Newly recruited agricultural advisors will play a wvital role in engaging with farmers across 27
catchments, which 1s a core part of our catchment scheme delivery The team have received a
pleasing number of Severn Trent Environmental Protection Scheme (STEPS) applications during their
first farmer grant applicant window The work 1s amed at improving water quality in our catchments
Applicants have ranged from improved pesticide handling facilities to rainwater harvesting equipment
STEPS grants will be available to farmers in prionity catchments annually untid 2020 In 2018/17 we will
continue to focus on farmer engagement specifically in groundwater catchments, and setting up and
running ‘Farmers as Producers of Clean Water' and Metaldehyde product substitution schemes n our
surface water catchments

We will do our fair share to achieve Water Framework Directive (“WFD’) good ecological status 1n our region’s
failling water bodics, where 1t 1s cost-effcctive to do soln AMP6 we will be delivering our largest ever
environmental improvement programme, spending over £300 milhon to deliver improvements to rivers
throughout our region, a programme which 1s supported by our customers who wanted to see us do
more to improve river water quality

Our Investment programme seeks to contribute our fair share of the improvements needed to get
targeted nver lengths within our region to ‘Good Ecological Status’, to support the WFD objective to
get all water bodies (lakes, rivers etc ) to this status Currently only 30% of the rivers in our region
meet this status, and our operational activites are responsible for a quarter of those that don't The
majority of improvements are targeted at sewage treatment works to produce a higher quality effluent,
which will in turn help improve niver water quality This investment will deliver new or improved assets
on site and involve complex capital schemes We have worked closely with the Environment Agency
in order to optimise the environmental benefits of cur programme We are also reducing abstractions
by 85MI/d from sources that are no longer environmentally sustainable

We will improve biodiversity in our region by improving at least 75 hectares of Sites of Special
Scientific Interest (‘SSSls’)

Planming has been our pnmary focus this year to date, identifying all 11 SSSIs and Special Areas of
Conservation that Severn Trent will be improving over AMP6, allocating specific projects to be
undertaken to either improve or stop deterioration at each site and setting up monitoring processes
We have been working closely with Natural England to deterrine a methodology for captunng
improved biadiversity and clarifying the details of our performance commitment, with the support of our
customer challenge group, the Water Forum
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We put our customers first

Customers are at the heart of all we do and this means putting them first We invest time to listen to
our customers We work hard to design the expernence they expect and translate it into our business
plans We put our customers and communities first, am to provide a service that i1s value for money,
help our customers who struggle to pay ther bills and to make a positive difference through
volunteering

We put our customers and communities first when carrying out our work

We recognise that planned and unplanned work on our networks can cause disruption In February
2015 we launched ‘Customers and Communities First’, our guide to help our colleagues and one of
our supply chain partners, deliver a great customer expenence every time they carry out planned
work It explains what we need to do, who we need to engage with before work begins, dunng and
after our work 1s complete We seek feedback from our customers at the end of every scheme to
ensure we successfully learn from expenences, sharing areas for improvement and best practice

We provide a service that is good value for money

Our customers pay the lowest combined water and waste water bills in the UK, and will continue to do
so in AMP6 However, our research shows that customers want more than just low bills, they expect
us to make a positive difference especially when it comes to Investment and the environment
Operating efficiently, we are able to do both these things and provide good value for money to
customers In an independent quarterly study of our customer base, 57 5% of our customers consider
us good or very good value for money

We help our customers who are in genuine need and struggling to pay their bills

We work hard to ensure our bills are affordable, but we understand that some customers may need
additional assistance We can help customers through a review of their account and support through
one of our affordability schemes such as metering, Watersure and our new social tanff, the Big
Difference Scheme We launched the Big Difference Scheme, in April 2015, which offers between a
10% and 90% reduction to the average bills

In 2015/16, we assisted 24,110 customers OQur target was 35,000, however, in the early part of the
year application volumes were lower than expected, due Iin part to challenges engaging with the
customers who need our support

We also believe that the perceived social stigma asscciated with seeking financial support may be
affecting applications We have new engagement plans in place for 2016/17 and are determined to
support more of our customers who need it the most

Severn Trent Trust Fund provides assistance to those in the most financial difficulty

Our people make a positive difference in the community through volunteering

In February 2016, we launched our programme of activity ‘Love Our Network’, focusing on
volunteering, education, and network vigilance under the headings of ‘Love to Care’, ‘Love to Share’
and ‘Always Aware’ We have worked with our employees, and our newly established employee
community panels, to steer our approach to volunteernng across the business Following a vote by our
employees, we support two chanties, continuing our support with WaterAid and a new partnership with
Make-A-Wish Foundation In addition to this, we will support national set-ptece fundraising events, and
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local teams will be able to select the causes they wish to raise funds for, volunteer or do team building
activities for All employees have two days paid volunteering leave available to them per annum We
encourage volunteering in support of our two CR ambitions around water efficiency and healthier
rivers and ensure that all volunteenng activiies are conducted in a safe manner

We act with integrity

Being trusted means always doing the nght thing for our customers, communities, investors, regulators
and colleagues This means that we will never tolerate fraud, bnibery or corruption — and that we only
ever work with supphers and partners who care about this as much as we do

Our employees are not afraid to stand up for what'’s right.

We believe it 1s important that employees feel able to speak up and are confident they can raise
Issues and concerns, whatever the nature Openness and transparency are both key to this, and form
part of how we want to do business Sometimes, however, that i1sn't enough, and this 1s where our
whistleblowing policy comes into play The process I1s easily accessed, widely communicated and
acted upon

We involve our customers in our plans, and we’re honest about how they think we’re doing

We will invite the independent Water Forum to review and comment on our annual performance

The Water Forum 1s an independently chaired, multi-stakeholder group that has a continuing role to
challenge whether we are delivering our commitments to our customers, and how we communicate
that performance Over the past year the key areas of focus have been — how we measure and share
our AMP6 performance and the development of our assurance plan and rnisk statement In both areas
The Water Forum were invited to challenge our proposals and the insight they provided shaped our
final approach To gain greater understanding of our customers, Water Forum members were invited
to attend customer research focus groups undertaken as part of the non-household retail tanff review
programme This will enable members to comment on the outputs of our research that will form part of
our submission to Ofwat in June 2016 We are developing a new performance report that i1s aimed
towards our household customers and will share our performance in a clear and accessible format
This 1s the first year it will be published and we will work to develop it throughout the AMP

We make a constructive contribution to developing sustainable and resilient water and
wastewater services

We will publish our consultation responses on our website We report annually on the mitiatives we
have taken to contrnibute

We have been at the forefront of contnbuting to the Government's policy debate regarding the long
term structure and regulation of the water industry In our two most recent publications, Changing
Course and Charting a sustainable course, we have developed and published ideas ranging from
customer empowerment, affordability, resilience, flooding and drainage, sustaining the environment
and the role of competition and markets

We are committed to working with all key stakeholders to ensure that we promote a constructive and
engaging debate about the future of the water sector Responding to public consultations i1s a key
component of this debate and it 1s essential that we use these opportunities to share our views and to
seek to shape the outcome We also believe that it 1s imperative that our customers can see what we
are saying and how we are working to safeguard these essential of services for today and tomorrow
We achieve this by publishing our responses to consultations on our website so that customers can
read and understand the issues that affect them
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We protect our environment

Acting responsibly and sensttively towards the environment and taking environmental 1Issues seriously
1s key to how we are Judged as a company and as an industry Our environmental responsibilittes
extend far beyond the treatment of water and waste water to keep our nvers clean We aim to play a
leading role in promoting water as a vital resource, mitigate our environmental impact and to work with
suppliers and partners to achieve this

It 1s also important that we engage constructively with regulators and other stakeholders to ensure a
sustainable water industry In our CR report, we focus on preventing pollutions and reducing our
carbon footprint

We do everything we can to prevent polluting the environment

Cleaning waste water means that we have to deal with unpleasant or dangerous substances that, If
discharged to a watercourse untreated, could cause a serous pollution event In 2015 we had two
serious pollutions This 1s a significant improvement on our 2014 performance where there were eight
serious pollutions This reduction has been achieved through continued investment in high risk assets,
improving our operational processes and investigating third party sources of pollution entering our
network Our highest nisk of pollution continues to be sewer blockages, resulting in sewage entering
watercourses In 2016, we will be installing over 500 monitors at high nsk locations to detect the
formation of blockages, in order to proactively resolve the issue before a pollution 1s caused Our goal
1s ta have zero serious pollutions (Environment Agency Category 1 or 2) by 2019 We have been
awarded a provisional environmental performance rating of 4* by the Environment Agency

We reduce our carbon footprint

We are reducing our carbon emissions year on year, primarily by being more energy efficient and
generating more renewable energy We've seen a consistent reduction, since 2002, when we began
publicly reporting on our greenhouse gas emissions

Severn Trent Water Carbon Emissions
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We have held the Carbon Trust Standard since 2009 in recognition of consistent emission reductions
and effective carbon management processes

Our performance against the standard 1s 1n the top 15% of all organisations

We have seen a year on year improvement in our Carbon Disclosure Project (‘CDP") score CDP
request information about cimate change from companies each year on behalf of investors and score
each company on the quality and completeness of their responses This year we were recogntsed In
the carbon disclosure leadership index for the first time (99/100), for demonstrating a considerable
improvement from our previous CDP submission (2014 85/100) This ts largely due to our updated
chmate change nisk assessment and the adaptation action report
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Severn Trent Water Direct Operational 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tonnes CO,e) as

reported for our Ofwat Qutcome Delivery

Incentive

Emissions from combustion of fuel and

operation of facilities (Scope 1) 148,380 159,037 161,249
Emissions from electricity purchased for own

use

(Scope 2) 325,447 321,233 333,721

Emissions from business travel, contractor
sludge transportation and grid electricity
transmission and distnibution 34,833 32,754 34,572

Total Annual Gross Operational Emissions 508,661 513,024 529,542

Emissions benefit of the renewable energy we
export (Including biomethane exported for which we
hold green gas certificates) 24,464 22,388 18,638

Total Annual Net Operational Emissions 484,196 490,636 510,904

The GHG data we report 1s reported internally during the year to the Corporate Responsibiiity
Commuttee and to the Board We have subjected our GHG data and processes to external assurance
by Jacobs

Our approach to reporting i1s based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting

Standard and we have included only ennssions from the assets which we own and operate and which
we can directly influence and reduce, known as the financial control boundary In accordance with the
reporting regulations, we have not reported on emissions we can influence, but which we are not
responsible for, referred to as indirect emissions

For Severn Trent Water, we have calculated our emissions using the ‘Carbon accounting in the UK
Water Industry methodology for esttmating operational emissions, Version 10’ (released April 2016)
This 1s a peer-reviewed calculation too! developed and used by all the major water companies in the
UK It s updated each year to include the latest available emissions factors For continuity, we have
used the same grid emissions factor and the same global warming potential values throughout the
three years of our reporting in this annual report and accounts This is In line with our ODI
methodology agreed as part of our Final Determination with Ofwat
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Durning the year, we increased renewable energy generation from food waste, energy crop, sewage
sludge, wind and solar power Generating an equivalent of 33% of Severn Trent Water Limited's
electricity needs, we continue to lead the UK water industry, with an aim of building on this position by
generating the equivalent of 50% of our electricity needs by 2020

Over the long term we aim to reduce our carbon emissions and increase our renewable energy
generation We plan to continue to reduce our emissions within Severn Trent Water Limited by a
further 5% between 2015 and 2020, primanly by reducing our energy use and to continue to increase
our renewable energy generation mainly within our business services business Pursuing these
measures will continue to reduce our key sources of emissions, reduce our reliance on the electricity
gnd and bnng financial benefits for our customers and investors

We are inspired to create an awesome Company

Our people are essential to achieving success We aim to create an awesome place to work for our
employees in part by looking after their health, safety and well-being and encouraging diversity and
inclusiveness

Our colleagues and community are not hurt or made unwell by the work we do

Our Company vision for health, safety and well-being 1s that — ‘No one gets hurt or 1s made unwell by
what we do’ We are working with the business to develop a road map to Goal Zero to set out exactly
what we need to do to achieve our vision between now and 2017 A major focus this year has been on
compliance with our Heaith, Safety and Well-being (HSW) standards and developing action plans to
drive further improvements This activity i1s complemented by regular ‘Thinking Out Loud’ campaigns,
where our people submit their ideas on how to encourage everyone to follow our HSW standards,
every time and every day We also seek to ensure that members of the public are not injured as a
result of our work The ‘Love Our Network' App was launched as a tnal in January 2015, facilitating
easy reporting of network 1ssues and therefore protecting our communities from slips, trips and falls

We are investing in the well-being of our colleagues to help them provide the best service we
can

This year we launched our first ever WellBeing Programme, focussing our efforts on mental health
The programme has received really positive engagement and we have seen a steady decline In
absences due to mental health

We believe a diverse and inclusive workforce is a key factor in being a successful business

As a customer focused organisation, we need our workforce to reflect the customers and communities
we serve to ensure we understand and can respond to their needs We have prionitised three key
areas women In operational leadership positions, women and BAME (Black, Asian and Minonty
Ethnic) people in engineering posittons and BAME people in technical operator positions This year we
have worked to ensure that our workplace 1s not only diverse but that it also inclusive and our
colleagues feel that they can be themselves at work, for example recognising major faith days We
continue to work with Business Disability Forum to support disability at work Our approach to diversity
and inclusion has seen a steady development in decent years, as evidenced with a silver classification
from Business in the Community (‘BITC’) following its 2015 diversity survey
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Our suppliers support our values

We want our supply chain to both live by and reflect our Company values, and as such require all
suppliers to sign up to ‘Doing the Right Thing' our Code of Conduct

It's also important to us that we are a responsible payer, and that's why throughout 2015/16 we have
worked hard to improve our payment to terms, part of which has involved brnnging more suppliers onto
self-bill to ensure a quicker ‘procure to pay’ process This year we paid 96 4% of our invoices on time
We are committed to improving the sustainability and resiience of our supply chain, which will form an
area of focus going forward 2016/17 will see further developments and inihatives focusing on
collaborative working with our suppliers, to identfy and manage both environmental and social
elements we could improve in ine with our core values and Corporate Responsibility framework

The Strategic report, as set out on pages 3 to 45, has been approved by the board
By order of the board

B lBunsin

Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
23 May 2016
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Governance
Governance report

Chairman’s letter

Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to introduce our Governance report for 2016 on behalf of your Board in accordance with
the September 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’) Severn Trent has complhed with all
relevant provisions at the year end, having expanded the remit of the Audit Committee to constider the
adequacy of whistleblowing arrangements (this was formerly a matter for the Corporate Responsibility
{"CR’) Commuttee)

My role, together with the Board, is to ensure that Severn Trent operates to the highest standards of
corporate governance within a well-developed framework to effectively deliver the Group’s strategic
objectives and to meet its obligations to the Company's stakeholders Ultimately, effective governance
1s integral to the successful delivery of our business objectives It requires that the Board has access
to timely, relevant and robust information, so it can run the business effectively and promote the long
term success of the Company In the best interest of all stakeholders We also have clearly defined
values and standards of behaviour which we expect from everyone who works for Severn Trent

My focus continues to be on mamntaning a strong, value adding team, with a broad range of
professional backgrounds, skills and perspectives In March 2016, the Board announced the
appointment of Emma FitzGerald as an Executive Director to the Boards of Severn Trent Pic and
Severn Trent Water Limited (together ‘the Board’), with effect from 1 Apnl 2016

Following year end, we announced that our longest serving Non-Executive Directors, Martin Lamb and
Gordon Fryett, would retire from the Board after the Annual General Meeting | would like to thank
Martin and Gordon for therr valuable contribution to the Board dunng therr tenure At this time, we
announced the appontment of Kevin Beeston to the Board as a Non-Executive Director, with effect
from 1 June 2016, and the appointment of Dominique Reiniche to the Board as a Non-Executive
Director, with effect from 20 July 2016

Kevin will succeed Martin as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and will become a member
of the Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees Dominique will succeed Gordon as a Non-
Executive Director and become a member of the Corporate Responsibility and Nominations
Committees Dr Angela Strank will succeed Gordon as Chair of the Corporate Responsibility
Committee

As can be seen from their biographies on page 46, Kevin and Dominique have a wealth of experience
to bring to the Board

At Severn Trent we have a broad and diverse range of skills and perspectives around the boardroom
table, further details of which can be found on page 46. As at the date of this report, our Board
consists of nine Directors Our Non-Executive Directors continue to bring extensive experience,
diversity and challenge to the Board | firmly believe that we wili continue to deliver value and achieve
sustainable growth for our Company through the successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy
with a supporting business plan, effective nsk management and a strong organisational structure with
the nght culture in place to execute it

Andrew Duff
Chawrman




Introduction

As Severn Trent Water 1s not a hsted company it 1s not required to comply with the Governance Code
However, we have voluntarily chosen to apply the principles of the Governance Code to our
governance arrangements, where approprate and reasonably practicable

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting penod 1s the
September 2014 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’} The Code i1s availlable on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website (www frc org uk)

The boards of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Plc have the same directors This structure was
implemented in 2007 to ensure that the highest standards of corporate governance were applied at
the regulated subsidiary level and to promulgate greater visibility and supervision of Severn Trent
Water Limited by the Plc board Severn Trent Water Limited is therefore voluntanly complying with the
2014 UK Corporate Governance Code to ensure these high standards also apply to it

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2016, Severn Trent Water Limited was comphant
with the Governance Code, with the following exceptions

. The board committees operate at the Severn Trent Plc level rather than the company level
Whilst the board committees are not duplicated at the company level, In practice theirr remit
includes work In respect of the company In particular the Audit Committee reviews Severn
Trent Water's

o Processes for producing regulatory submissions, and
o Statutory and regulatory accounts prior to their approval by the Severn Trent Water
board

. The board committees are all led by independent non-executive directors who comprise the
majonty of membership of each committee Details of the committees are reported publicly in
the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts

. The review of the adequacy of arrangements of the Company’s whistleblowing procedures fell
within the remit of the Severn Trent Plc Corporate Responsibility (CR) Committee, rather than
the Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee This divergence from the Code was addressed in
October 2015

) The company does not comply with the provisions relating to Relations with Shareholders
which covers Dialogue with Shareholders and Constructive use of the AGM, as it would not be
appropnate to do so, however Severn Trent Plc does fully comply

The two companies operate as distinct legal entites The Boards comply with the Severn Trent Plc
Board governance framework and the respective Matters Reserved to the Board They are assisted
through the management of separate agendas, meetings and minutes by Company Secretanat and
advised in their meetings by the Company Secretary, where appropnate

Subsidiary Company Boards are managed through designated governance processes In particular,
the relationships between Severn Trent Water Limited and our other businesses such as Severn Trent
Business Services are monitored and controlled to ensure that regulatory requirements and
obligations under competition law are complied with in respect of all transactions between them, or
with third parties

Governance Code

The Code sets out five key principles Leadership, Effectiveness, Accountability, Relations with
Shareholders and Remuneration This report 1s structured against each of these principles which,
together with the Nominations Committee report, Audit Committee report and Remuneration
Committee report, detalled in the Annual Report and Accounts for Severn Trent Plc, describe how we
have complied with the relevant provisions of the Code throughout the year




1. Code principle: Leadership

Charter of Expectations

In November 2014, the Severn Trent Charter of Expectations was adopted to promote and implement
best practice corporate governance The Charter sets out the role profiles and expectations of all key
positions on the Group's Boards (together referred to as the ‘Board’), and Board Committees, and also
reflects the Board’s responsibility for setting the tone for the Group’s culture, values and behaviour

In accordance with provision A 2 1 of the Code, there 1s a clear division of responsibilities between the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive These are clearly established, set out in writing and agreed by
the Board in the Charter of Expectations

The Charter of Expectations i1s also used to assist in the ongoing annual assessment of the
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees, and that of individual Directors, and 1s available on our
website (www severntrent com).

Governance framework

The Board i1s responsible to all stakeholders, for the approval and delivery of the Company’s strategic
objectives It ensures that the necessary financial, technical and human resources are in place for the
Company to meet its objectives The Board leads the Company within a framework of prudent and
effective controls which enable risk to be assessed and managed Responsibility for the development
and implementation of the Company's strategy and overall commercial objectives 1s delegated to the
Chief Executive who 1s supported by the Severn Trent Executive Committee (‘'STEC')

The Company’'s principal decision making body 1s the Board In line with the Code, the Board
delegates certain roles and responsibilities to its various Committees The Committees assist the
Board by fulfiling their roles and responsibilities, focusing on their specific activities, reporting to the
Board on decisions and actions taken, and making any necessary recommendations in line with their
Terms of Reference The Terms of Reference of each Committee comply with the provisions of the
Code and have been updated to take account of best practice as part of their annual review in March
2016




Governance framework

CHAIRMAN - Andrew Duff BOARD aee

Leads our unified Board ensuringthatthe """~ The Board's role 15 to understand and meet its obbigations to the Company s stakeholders,

principles and processes of the Board are lead the Group within a framework of prudent and eflective controts which enable nskio be
maintamned in line with our Code of Conduct assessed and managed, approve the Group s strategic objectives and ensure that sufficient
and Charter of Expectations . resources are available to enable it to meet those objectves, and monitor and review the

operating and financial performance of the Group It has responsiility and accountataly
for the long term success of the Group

CEQ- LivGarfield

Delegated responsibility for the development
and implementation of the Groups strategy and
- overall commercial objectives

Responsible for the day-to-day management of the
business and the communication of Board agreed
objectves toemployees

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE 34
Chair - John Coghlan

.

The Audit Commuttee assists the Board in discharging its responsibilities for
the integrity of the Company s financial statements the assessment of the
effectveness of the systems of Internal Controls Risk Management and the
internal end external Auditors It also reviews the adequacy of the Company s
whistleblowmng arrangements

SEVERN TRENT EXECUTIVE

COMMITTEE ['STEC)
Chan - L Gar freld

TREASURY COMMITTEE" 4k
Chair - John Coghlan

.
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== SIEC operates under the direction and suthorty of

"7 the CEG overseeing the development and execulion of
strategy It also has accountability for achieving financial
and operational performance

The Treasury Commuttee provides oversight of treasury actvibies in
implementmng the policies funding and treasury nsk management plan
approved by the Board These include inter alia the measurement and
management of risks 1n respect of interest rates, funding, counterparty
credit Liquidity and treasury operations funding proposals, relationship
with rating agencies debt rwestor relations bank relationship
management and treasury internal controls

EXECUTIVE SUB-COMMITTEE ~

DISCLOSURE COMMITTEE (3411 4]
Chair - James Bowling

The Disclosure Committee oversees the Company s
compliance with ds disclosure obligations and
considers the matenality accuracy reliability and
timeliness of information disclosed

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE D@D :
Chair - Philip Remnant '
On behalf of the Board the Remuneration Commattee determines the

Campary s policy on the remuneration of Executive Directors other

mernbers of the Executive Commuttee and the Chairman of the Board

[
]
eecmmmavesmmm ke ——

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Chair - Gordon Fryett

The Corporate Responsibiuty Committee provides guidance and
direction to the Company s corporate responsibility and sustamabibty
programme based on our values |l also reviews the Groups
non-financial risks and opportunities

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE S5alla
Chair - Andrew Duff

L

The Nominations Committee assists the Board by keeping the
structure, sze, composition and succession needs of the Board under
review [t also assists the Board on ssues of Directors conflicts of
nterest and independence

Each Board Committae has written Terms of Reference reviewed annually and approved Indicates membarship of ach . 1
by the Board which are available on the Compary s website Committae including gander

* Membership of the Treasury Committee includes Haad of Group Treasury




Board meetings

Forward Plan

Each year the Chairman, and respective Committee Chairmen, work with the Company Secretary to
develop and agree a forward agenda for Board and Committee meetings for the year ahead The
purpose of the forward agenda I1s to ensure that proper oversight of key areas of responsibility are
scheduled regularly and that sufficient time 1s allocated during the year for the Board to fully consider
strategic matters

Papers, including minutes of Board and Committee meetings held since the previous meeting, are
circulated approximately a week in advance of each meeting The table overleaf sets out the main
matters considered by the Board in 2015/16 at its scheduled Board meetings The Board's agenda 1s
normally structured, in accordance with the identfied requirements of the forward agenda plan, as
follows

. Performance Review (including health and safety, operational, customer and financial
matters),

Bi-annual Enterprise Risk Management review,

Strategic ltems,

Matters for Approval,

Matters to Note,

Governance and Regulatory Matters,

Committee Reports,

The Board monitors the performance and customer service standards of the regulated water and
waste water businesses at every meeting and receives monthly updates on performance against all
ODlIs The Board also regularly discusses reports on capital efficiency and asset management

The Board annually reviews and approves all financial results announcements, the Annual Report and
Accounts, dividend payments and all changes to the composition of the Board and its Committees
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Board activities

L Acivi psfDsCssan
* Discussion and review of performance and engagement reports ateach meeting We put our
* Approach inrespect of soctal tanffs and support for vulnerable customers custorners first

W e Review and dscussion of feedback following stakeholder meetings with CEQ and CFD, svestor  We actwithintegrity
roadshows conferences and Capial Markets Day

* Review and discussion of strategy We are passionate
ahout whatwe do
Environment, * Oiscussion and review of health and safkety performance at every meeting. We protect our
bt o Drscussion and review of environmental Matters. emaronment
* Review of Severn Trent s governance framework. We act with integrity
& Risk * Review of the GAA.

» Board Comumutiee reports.
s Board and Commutiee effectveness review- including the Board, ts Commiltees,
mndmdual Drectors and conflicts of mterest

» Annual review of Terms of Reference for afl Board Commitiees

» Tender of external Auditor More information on the tender can be found on page 84.

s Review of the effectveness of the Group s Internat Controls and Risk Management processes
* Brannual Enterprse Risk Management review

* Reqular governance report provided by the Company Secretary, including annual revies

of compliance with the Code
+ Bi-annual review of the Groups disclosure requirements.
s Review of annual performance, nduding approval of full year; half year results We actwathintegraty
and trading updates

* Dstnbutions to shareholders

» Annual Repert and Accounts

» Treasury funding arrangements

» Group Budget 2015/14, medmnm term financial plan and regulated business QDls.
+ Review of the Groups financiat performance against budget and forecast.

CSTZITII - Fequistory business dscrssrns 3 svery macing We sciwah miagriy

¢ Engagernent with requlators including relationshp mapping We put our

» Dhscussion and review of water quality updates. custorners first
Employees « Discussion and review ;f:mplayee engagement across the Group from the results of " We are ;'Jrgp;rrkeﬁ“““
& Leadership the QUEST survey. o create an

+ Discussion and review of talent development and succession planning across the Group awesome company

* Annual pension fund review
» Review the composition and successton of the Board and its Commuitees

M + [rscussion and review of the Group s ethics culture We actwith integnity

Board committees

The board committees operate at the ultimate parent company level rather than the company level
The Severn Trent Plc board has established an effective committee structure to assist in the discharge
of its responsibilites to the group

The terms of reference of Audit, Remuneration and Nominations Committees comply with the
provisions of the Governance Code, and are avallable for inspection, together with the terms of
reference of the Corporate Responsibiity Committee, on our website (www severntrent com) or may
be obtained on request from the Company Secretary

Reports from the Charrmen of these Committees are set out in pages 79 to 101 of the Severn Trent
Plc Annual Report and Accounts available on our website (www severntrent com)

Independent advice

Directors have access to independent professional advice at the Company’'s expense on any matter
relating to their responsibilities There 1s an agreed procedure enabling them to do so, which 18
managed by the Company Secretary No such independent advice was sought during the financial
year




2 Code principle: Effectiveness

Our Board’s composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consisted of nine Directors Further information on the
composition of the Board can be found on page 46

Independence of NEDs

The independence of Non-Executive Directors 1s formally reviewed by the Nominations Committee on
an annual basis, which makes a recommendation to the Board in relation to the reappointment of
Directors at the Severn Trent Plc Annual General Meeting

In the event of a situational conflict ansing, the Board has a documented authonsation process in
place, ensunng that either the Director does not attend the meeting or participate in discussion In
respect of any matter where a situational conflict exists

An annual review of conflicts 1s carried out alongside a review of our Gifts and Hospitality Register,
and 1s incorporated Iinto the year end process of venfying Directors’ interests Half yearly reports are
also made available to the Board detaiing all Directors’ conflicts and Directors are reminded of their
obligations to disclose any potential conflicts

During its last review in November 2015, the Board considered all external commitments and skilisets
required, including those set out In the Code No Director had a matenal interest in any contract of
significance with the Company or any of its subsidiary undertakings, at any time dunng the year

The Board considers that there are no business or other circumstances that are hkely to affect the
independence of any Non-Executive Director In accordance with the Code, all the Directors, with the
exception of Martin Lamb and Gordon Fryett, will retire at Severn Trent Plc’s 2016 AGM and submit
themselves for appointment or reappointment by the shareholders Each of the Non-Executive
Directors, seeking appointment or reappointment are considered to be independent in character and
judgement

Appointments to our Board and its Committees

The Board, through the Nominations Committee, has in place formal, ngorous and transparent
procedures for the appointment of new Directors to the Board In March 2016, the Board announced
the appointment of Emma FitzGerald, Managing Director of Wholesale Operations and Executive
Committee member, to the Board with effect from 1 Apnl 2016 [Foliowing year end, the Board also
announced the appointments of Kevin Beeston to the Board, with effect from 1 June 2016, and
Dominigue Reiniche to the Board as a Non-Executive Director, with effect from 20 July 2016

in advance of a formal recommendation for a Non-Executive Director appointment being made to the
Board, the proposed, final candidate attended an individual pre-appointment meeting with Ofwat

Terms and conditions of appointment

The terms and conditions of appointment of the Directors are available for inspection by any person at
the Company’s registered office during normal business hours They will also be made avallable
before and duning the Severn Trent Plc AGM

In accordance with the Code, any term beyond six years for a Non-Executive Director 1s subject to
rigorous review and takes into account the need for progressive refreshing of the Board

Evaluation of the Board

The effectiveness of the Board is reviewed at least annually and an independent externally facilitated
review 1s conducted every three years A full externally facilitated Board evaluation exercise was last
conducted in 2015 and reported on in our 2014/15 Annual Report and Accounts
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A summary of the actions taken following the 2015 review can be found below

Area for further focus
identified in 2015 review
Allocation of agenda time to | Company Secretanat

Actions taken (bullets)

agreed key strategic conducted a review of
prionties also including strategy topics to be
length and format of Board considered at Board
papers meetings throughout the

year The length and format
of Board papers were also
reviewed, with best practice
guidance implemented by
Directors and report writers
Mentoring, talent Discussion and review of
management and talent and succession
succession planning below | across the Group at July
Executive Committee level and November Board

meetings
Enhance KPls to reflect instead of reporting agarnst
risks and operational KPIs as in AMP5, we now
performance against new report performance against
AMPG6 Regulatory ODiIs at each meeting of
Requirements STEC and the Board

We also report on the
moving annual performance
and provide updated targets
for the year at each

meeting

In February 2016, the Board conducted an internally facilitated review of its effectiveness, including a
review of the Board, its Committees and individual Board Directors in the context of the Company's
Charter of Expectations Emma FitzGerald, Kevin Beeston and Domunique Reiniche had not been
appointed to the Board at this time This evaluatton process was led by the Chairman and the
Company Secretary through a series of one to one meetings and discussions Separate meetings
were held to consider the effectiveness of the Charman, led by our Semor Independent Non-
Executive Director, Martin Lamb

The findings of the evaluation were discussed and reviewed by the Nominations Committee and
subsequently the Board in March 2016 The evaluation concluded that excellent progress had been
made n respect of areas for further focus identified in the 2015 externally facilitated review It was
agreed that talent and succession planning would remain a regular Board agenda topic and that the
Board strategy day meeting would be scheduled outside the normal Board meeting calendar The
evaluation also concluded that the Board and its Committees were effective and that each Director
made a constructive and valuable contribution to the Board and the running of the Company

Training and Development

Induction

On appointment to the Board, a Director's induction needs are evaluated and then they are provided
with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes information on our business
model, key operations and processes, how we are regulated, how we are shaping future regulation,
strategic plans, financial reports, business plans, information on our governance framework, Directors’
roles and responsibilities and legal and regulatory duties

54



Meetings are arranged with members of the Executive Committee and with external advisors who
provide support to the relevant Board Committees on which the Directors may serve Visits to
operational and office sites across the Group and management presentations are also arranged for
Directors appointed to the Board and subsequently throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed for the induction of Emma FitzGerald

Ofwat issued a letter to the Company on 19 April 2016 formalising a pre appointment meeting process
as part of any Non-Executive Director appointment which will also be included in induction
programmes going forward This process was included in the induction of Kevin Beeston and
Dominique Reiniche

Training and Continuing Professional Development
As well as Board agenda items, training sessions In relation to specific topics of interest have been
presented to Directors during the year as indicated in the table opposite

The aim of the training sessions is to continually refresh and expand the Board's knowledge and skills
to enable them to effectively fulfil theirr roles on the Board and its Committees and contribute to
discussions on technical and regulatory matters The sessions also serve as an opportunity for the
Board to discuss strategy and nsks with management below Executive Committee level and gain
further insight into our businesses and management capability

3. Code principle: Accountability

Charter of Expectations
Our Charter of Expectations sets out the matters for which the Board and key roles are accountable

‘Doing the Right Thing — The Severn Trent Way’ (‘DTRT’)

Every day our employees have to make choices about what they do and how they do it Most of the
time 1t 1s clear what the nght thing to do 1s, whether It 1s about doing what 1s safe, doing the nght thing
for our customers, doing what 1s nght ethically and what 1s nght legally

It details the values we work by and explains who we are, what we stand for and how we work It also
tells our customers, investors and business partners that they can trust and rely on us These
prnnciples apply to everyone in the Severn Trent Group, no matter where in the world they are based
or what they do It provides a consistent framework for responsible business practices and sets the
standards we need to follow in our day-to-day activities

During the year we have refreshed DTRT, and our Group policies, in preparation for roll-out across the
Group in 2016/17 to make sure that everyone in the business understands our expectations are in
relation to our values and ethical standards All employees will be given a copy and training sessions
will be provided

4, Code principle: Remuneration

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee at Severn Trent Plc The composition and
activities of the Remuneration Committee are descrnbed in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and
Accounts Our Remuneration Policy has been designed to take into account the Company's strategic
objectives both over the short and long term and the external market
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Group Remuneration Committee

Remuneration details

The Executive Directors of Severn Trent Water Limited murror those of Severn Trent Plc and, consequently
it 1s not possible to separate the remuneration received solely for therr services to Severn Trent Water
Limited Therefore, the Remuneration Report that follows 1s a summary of the Remuneration Report found
in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts which s avallable on the Severn Trent Plc website

The Severn Trent Pic Remuneration Committee (the ‘Committee’) sets the Remuneration Policy for
Executive Directors and other senior executive managers, taking into account the Company’s strategic
objectives over the short and the long term and the external market

The Committee addresses the need to balance nsk and reward The Committee monitors the vanable pay
arrangements to take account of risk levels, ensuring an emphasis on long term and sustainable
performance The Committee believes that the incentive schemes are appropniately managed and that the
choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage undue risk taking by the Executive
Directors so that the long term performance of the business 1s not compromised by the pursuit of short term
value The schemes incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measuring both
operational and financial performance over differing and overlapping performance periods, providing a
rounded assessment of overall Company performance

Directors’ remuneration and annual bonus scheme
Remuneration for Executive Directors comprises the following elements

base salary and benefits,
annual bonus,

long term incentive plan, and
pension arrangements

As outhned 1n the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report and Accounts, the non-executive Chairman, Andrew
Duff, and non-executive plc directors, do not participate in the Company's incentive arrangements, 1€
annual bonus or share plans

Base salaries and benefits

Base salarnes for individual Directors are reviewed annually by the Committee and normally take effect from
1 July Salaries are set with reference to individual performance, experience and contribution, together with
developments in the relevant employment market (having regard to similar roles in publicly quoted
companies of a comparable size (currently FTSE 51-150) and practice in other water companies),
Company performance, affordability and internal relativities

In addition to base salary, Executive Directors receive a benefits package which contractually includes car
allowance, membership of a defined contribution pension scheme or cash allowance in lieu, family level
private medical insurance, life assurance, personal accident insurance, health screening and tncapacity
benefits scheme Executive Directors may also take advantage of the Severn Trent flexible benefit scheme
open to all employees

Annual Bonus 2015/16

The annual bonus is designed to encourage improved financial and operational performance and align the
interests of Directors with shareholders through the partial deferral of payment in shares The maximum
bonus opportunity 1s 120% of salary, with 60% of base salary being paid at target

The scorecard Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) used to measure performance in 2014/15 no longer
reflect the main indicators of performance in AMP6, especially since the introduction of Outcome Delivery
Incentives (ODIs) ODls are quantifiable, transparent operational targets set for us by and monitored by
Ofwat covering aspects such as water quality, leakage, asset stewardship, supply, flooding, customer
experience and environmental performance Severn Trent Water 1s rewarded by Ofwat If it exceeds the
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ODI targets and suffers financial penalties for missing them Therefore, the bonuses for the Executive
Directors for 2015/16 onwards were weighted as follows

+ 50% on STW profit before interest and tax (PBIT),

e 40% on Business Unit Objectives (including 25% based on ODI performance, 10% based on
Business Services' performance and 5% based on health and safety performance), and

¢ 10% on personal performance

PBIT was chosen as a measure as it 1s an indicator of overall financial performance and reflects
efficiencies, revenue and other key levers in the Business Plan We believe that the new structure for the
bonus provides a stronger link between our financial and operational perfarmance and the rewards earned
by executives

The table below shows a summary of the metrics and targets which were used to determine the annual
bonus awards together with the actual performance achieved (please note that the Business Services PBIT
element of the bonus has been omitted as it does not relate to the performance of Severn Trent Water)

Measure Weighting | Threshold Target Stretch Actual %
w|p
(0% (50% (100% Performance ayable
payable) | payable) | payable)
Z":N profit before interest and 50% £474 1m | £5029m | £524 1m £520 3m 91 0%
STW Outcome
Delivery 25% £00m £4 8m £7 3m £23 2m 100 0%
Incentives
Business Health & safety
Unit {no of lost
Objectives
time incidents / 5% 020 018 017 025 0 00%
by no of hours
worked x
100,000)
85% for
Liv
Garfield
Personal Performance 10% See below and
70% for
James
Bowling

(1) The STW ODI figure 1s based on 2013/13 pre tax prices

The directors had 10% of thewr bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives Key objectives for
Liv Garfield (Chief Executive Officer) related to growth and further improving the financial strength of the
business, customer experience, and organisational effectiveness Activities included education and
engagement sessions for all employees on delivering outcomes for customers and end to end process
reviews In operational areas, which has contributed towards 95% of operational measures being stable or
improved, ODI outperformance, (net reward of £23 2 million) and a reduction in customer complaints, down
28% vyear on year We have been recognised by the Environment Agency as being a leader on
environmental performance and we have delivered 8 4% Return on Regulated Equity (RoRE) which was in
the upper range of Ofwat expectations In addition, the business has been strengthened by the Water Plus
Jjoint venture established with United Utiities to deliver a market leading non-household retail offer when the
market opens up in 2017 As a result, the Remuneration Committee decided to award Liv Garfield a
personal performance bonus at 85% of the maximum
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The objectives for James Bowling (Chief Financial Officer) related to the delivery of the finance strategy
and plans, including rebalancing fixed and floating debt and creating procurement savings Delivering on
our finance strategy, active treasury management initiatives were undertaken during the year to rebalance
the debt portfolio and lower index linked debt costs This has helped deliver a £31 4 million reduction in net
finance costs (excluding pensions) year on year and led to an effective finance cost of 4 5%, down from
54% In addition, bad debt charges decreased from 1 8% of turnover to 1 5% as a result of improved
collection performance on amounts billed in the year and better management of aged debt balances
Procurement savings have contnbuted to wholesale Totex of £1,017 million, £38 million lower than the
Final Determination Power costs have reduced by £2 1 million and we continue to make good progress on
renewable energy, generating 33% of our energy needs through the renewables programme and on track
for 50% by 2020 As a result, the Remuneration Committee decided to award James Bowling personal
performance bonus at 70% of the maximum

5% of the 2015/16 bonus opportunity for the Executive Directors related to health and safety performance
targets, which were not achieved Therefore the annual bonus weighting against this objective for 2016/17
has been increased from 5% to 8% (with a consequential reduction in the STW PBIT target (47%)) and
more chaltenging targets set

The bonuses awarded for 2015/16 were 105 8% of base salary for Liv Garfield (£702,142) and 104 0% of
base salary for James Bowling (£416,000) out of a maximum bonus opportunity of 120% of salary for both
Directors Please note that the bonuses incorporate amounts in respect of the achievement of Severn Trent
Business Services and personal performance targets Annual bonus payments to Executive Directors are
not pensionable

50% of the annual bonus 1s paid In cash and 50% in shares which vest after three years (with the value of
any dwvidends to be rolled up and paid on vesting) A claw back mechanism applies to allow the
recoupment within three years of the payment of the cash bonus or the grant of deferred shares in the
event of financial misstatement, error in the calculation or gross misconduct

Annual Bonus 2016/17
For 2016/17 the annual bonus performance measures will be weighted as follows

e 47% on Severn Trent Water PBIT,

¢ 43% on Business Unit Objectives {25% on STW ODIs, 10% on Business Services PBIT and 8% on
health and safety performance in respect of the Chtef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
and 35% on STW ODIs and 8% on health and safety performance in respect of the Managing
Director, Wholesale Operations), and,

s 10% on personal objectives

The weighting on health and safety performance has increased from 5% in 2015/16 to 8% in 2016/17 with a
consequential reduction in the werghting on STW PBIT from 50% i 2015/16 to 47% in 2016/17 The
Committee considers the forward looking performance targets to be commercially sensitive and has,
therefore, determined not to disclose them In advance Details of the targets used will be disclosed in next
year's Remuneration Report

Long Term Incentive Plan

Executive Directors may also participate in the ST Plc Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP’) which i1s designed
to encourage strong and sustained mprovements In financial performance, in line with the Company’s
strategy and long term shareholder returns Under this plan conditional awards of performance shares are
made to Directors up to an annual maximum hmit and vest after three years

ot
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2013 & 2014 LTIP Awards

The awards made in 2013 and 2014 were measured against the average Return on Regulatory Capital
Value (RoRCV) over three financial years 0% of each award vests If average RoRCV equals that set in the
Final Determination, increasing on a straight-line basis to 50% vesting for 1 02 x Final Determination and
100% vesting for 1 07 x Final Determination Ofwat are no longer publishing a baseline RoRCV figure in
AMP6 This impacts the third measurement year of the 2013 LTIP and the second and third measurement
years of the 2014 LTIP Therefore, we have calculated the equivalent baseline figure using the component
numbers set out In the Ofwat Final Determination for AMP6 To ensure consistency between this equivalent
baseline and RoRCV, the baseline figure was adjusted to take into account the impact of expected income
to be received under Pay As You Go (which dictates what portion of total expenditure 1s directly passed
through into customers’ bills (which 1s how operating expenditure was historically treated), and what is
added to STW’s asset base (which is how capital expenditure was histornically treated) This gives a
baseline figure of 3 49% for 2015/16

2013 LTIP Outturn

The three year performance penod for the 2013 LTIP award ended on 31 March 2016 The Committee
determined that the average RoRCV over the three years ending 1n 2015/16 had outperformed the RoRCV
Ofwat Final Determination by 1 23 times therefore resulting in 100% vesting This level of vesting was
considered appropriate given the Company's strong financial and operational performance over the
performance period Further details can be found in the Severn Trent Plc Annual Report & Accounts

2015 & 2016 LTIP Awards

Awards granted from 2015 onwards are subject to an RoRE performance conditton measured over three
financial years Average RoRE performance 1s compared with the baseline RoRE figure set by Ofwat in our
Final Determination 25% of the award will vest if average RoRE matches the baseline figure of 5 65%,
Increasing on a straight line basis to full vesting for out-performing the baseline by 1 29 times (equivalent to
7 29%) for the 2015 LTIP award and 1 39 times (7 85%) for the 2016 LTIP award

The grant level for the 2016 LTIP award 1s 150% for the Chief Executive Officer and 100% for the Chief
Financial Officer (grants worth 125% and 80% of base salary respectively were made in 2015) The 2016
grant level for the Managing Director, Wholesale Operations i1s 80% of base salary The increase \n award
levels for the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 1s within our current LTIP polcy and
reflects the strong performance of the Company and indwiduals, their career progression and the higher
RoRE stretch target for the 2016 awards

Shareholding guidelines

The Company operates shareholding guidelines under which Executive Directors are expected to build and
maintain a shareholding in the Company The Chief Executive Officer i1s expected to build and maintain a
holding of shares to the value of 200% of salary, and other Executive Directors 125% of salary Executive
Directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they receive through the LTIP and
deferred share bonus until the shareholding guidelines have been met
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the Company, for the year ended
31 March 2016 The Business performance review of the Company can be found within the Strategic
Report on pages 14 to 21 This provides detalled information, its business models and strategy, the
operation of its businesses, future developments and the resuits and financial position for the year ended
31 March 2016 The Governance section set out on pages 47 to 59 1s incorporated by reference into this
report and, accordingly, should be read as part of this report

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company Is to treat and provide water and remove waste water in the UK and
internationally There have not been any significant changes to the company’s pnincipal activities in the year
under review The directors are not aware, at the date of this report, of any likely major changes In the
company’s activities in the next year

Directors and their interests
Biographies of the Directors currently serving on the Board are set out on page 46

All of the Directors at the year-end are also directors or Severn Trent Plc  With the exception of Martin
Lamb and Gordon Fryett, Jthey will be offering themselves for appointment or reappointment at the Severn
Trent Plc AGM, as set out in the Governance Report on pages 47 to 59

Detalls of Directors' service contracts are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 56-59
The interests of the Directors in the shares of Severn Trent Plc are disclosed in the Annual Report and
Accounts for that company for the year ended 31 March 2016 The Board has a documented process In
place in respect of conflicts which I1s described on pages 53

Insurance and indemnities

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance in respect of legal action that might be
brought against its Directors and Officers As permitted by the Company’'s Articles of Association (the
‘Articles’), and to the extent permitted by law, the Company indemnifies each of its Directors and other
Officers of the Group aganst certain liabilities that may be icurred as a result of their positions with the
Group The Indemnity was in force throughout the tenure of each Director during the last financial year, and
1s currently in force

Indemnities were also entered into with Emma FitzGerald, Kevin Beeston and Dominique Reiniche upon
their appointments to the Board

Severn Trent Water does not have in place any indemnities for the benefit of the external Auditor

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shown in note 8 to the financial statements on page
86

Severn Trent Water believes a diverse and inclusive workforce 1s a key factor in being a successful
business Through our Diversity and Equal Opportunities Policy, the Company seeks to ensure that every
employee, without exception, I1s treated equally and farly and that all employees are aware of therr
responsibilities This means more than ensuring we don't discniminate in any way — we want to create and
maintain a culture open to a diverse population We are an equal opportunities employer and welcome
applications from all individuals, including those with a disability We are fully committed to supporting
applications made by disabled persons, and make reasonable adjustments to their environment where
possible (having regard to their particular aptitudes and abilities)

We are also responsive to the needs of our employees As such, should any employee become disabled
durning therr ime with us, we will actively re-train that employee and make reasonable adjustments to their
environment where possible, in order to keep the employee within the Group
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All our training, promotion and career development processes are in place for all our employees to access,
regardless of theiwr gender, race, age or disability The provision of occcupational health programmes is of
crucial importance with the aim of keeping our employees fit and healthy, including an employee assistance
programme which 1s available to Severn Trent Water Limited employees

Employee engagement
We continuously engage with our employees 1n a number of ways to suit different working patterns This
includes

. all people bnefings, ‘Team Talk’',

. corporate communications events and roadshows held by functions across the Company,

. a dedicated intranet, ‘Streamline’,

. online news portal and weekly roundup, ‘Pipeline News’,

. an active employee social media presence, ‘Yammer',

. conference calls and email,

. leadership engagement channels — Chief Executive’s weekly blog, senior management monthly
visibility programme and quarterly events,

. employee forum, and

. regular meetings with Unions

Details of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the Company are shared with all
employees at the appropnate time using the methods listed above

We provide opportunities for employees to give their feedback to the Company in a number of ways, from
team or shift meetings and annual employee satisfaction ‘Quest’ surveys

The Company I1s keen to encourage greater employee involvement in the Group’s performance through
share ownership To help align employees’ interests with the success of the Company’s performance, we
operate an HMRC approved all-employee plan, the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme ('Sharesave’), which
Is offered to UK employees on an annual basis Over 65% of Severn Trent's UK employees participate min
one or more of our Sharesave Schemes

During the year, the Company has remained within its headroom lIimits for the 1ssue of new shares for
share plans as set out In the rules of the above plan

Research and development

Innovative use of existing and emerging technologies will continue to be crucial to the successful
development of new products and processes for the group and our products must continue to deliver value
for customers

Expenditure on research and development is set out In note 6 to the financial statements on page 85.

Post balance sheet events
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 37 to the financial statements on page 121

Contributions for political and charitable purposes

Donations to chantable organisations during the year amounted to £86,864 (2015 £157,648) Donations
are given to charties whose projects align closely with our aim to promote the responsible use of water
resources and waste water services which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships In addition,
we provide donations to employee nominated charities through a matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schemes We are also committed to supporting WaterAd, the UK's only major charty
dedicated to improving access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world's poorest countries
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Severn Trent's policy 1s not to make any donatons for polbtical purposes in the UK, or to donate to EU
poltical parties or incur EU political expenditure Accordingly neither Severn Trent Plc nor its subsidiaries
made any political donations or incurred political expenditure in the financial year under review

Under the provisions of the Political Parties Elections and Referendums Act 2000 (the relevant prowisions
of which are now contained in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006), shareholder authonty 1s required for
political donations to be made or political expenditure to be mncurred by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries in the EU and disclosure of any such payment must be made in the Annual Report and
Accounts The legislation gives a wide definition of what constitutes political donations and political
expenditure including sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave for employees fulfiling
public duties and support for bodies representing the business community in policy review or reform The
Company has therefore obtained imited authonty from shareholders as a precautionary measure to allow
the Company to continue supporting the community and such organisations without inadvertently breaching
the legislation

At the 2015 AGM, shareholders gave the Company authority to make political donations or to incur political
expenditure in the EU (which would not ordinarily be regarded as political donations) up to an aggregate
annual hmit of £150,000 for the Company and its subsidiaries Pursuant to those authorittes, during the
year ended 31 March 2016 the Group incurred costs of £nil (2015 £nil) Those authonties will expire at the
2016 AGM and, in line with market practice to renew the authonties on an annual basis, the Board has
decided to put forward a resolution to this year's AGM to renew the authorities to make donations to
political organisations and to incur political expenditure up to a maximum aggregate of £150,000 pa As
permitted under the Companies Act 2006, this resolution also covers any political donations made or
political expenditure incurred, by any subsidiaries of the Company

Dividends

An intenm dividend of 32 26 pence per Ordinary Share was paid on 8 January 2016 The Directors
recommend a final dividend of 48 40 pence per Ordinary Share to be paid on 22 July 2016 to shareholders
on the register on 17 June 2016 This would bring the total dividend for 2015/16 to 80 66 pence per
Ordinary Share (2014 84 90 pence)

Dividend Policy

In January 2015, Severn Trent Plc announced its dividend policy for the penod 2015-2020 The Board
agreed to set the 2015/16 dividend at 80 66 pence, a reduction of 5% compared to 2014/15 total dividend
for the year 84 90 pence The policy 1s structured so as to grow the dividend annually at no less than RPI
until March 2020 This replaced the previous dividend policy of RPI+3% which expired in March 2015 The
dividend policy reflects the lower cost of capital and stretching objectives and improvements in operating
efficiencies required by the Final Determination When determining the policy the Board considered various
scenarios and sensitivities, and reviewed the impact of adverse changes In inflation and interest rates on
key metrics The Board believes that the dividend policy i1s commensurate with a sustainable investment
grade credit rating

Supplier payment policy

individual operating companies within the Group are responsible for establishing appropriate policies with
regard to the payment of thewr suppliers, in accordance with the Prompt Payment Code ('PPC’) The
companies agree terms and conditions under which business transactiocns with supphers are conducted It
Is Group policy that provided a supplier is complying with the relevant terms and conditions, including the
prompt and complete submission of all specified documentation, payment will be made In accordance with
agreed terms It 1s also Group policy to ensure that suppliers know the terms on which payment will take
place when business is agreed
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Internal controls

The Board 1s responsible for the Group's Internal Control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness The
Audit Committee regularly monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the systems of Internal Control,
including Risk Management, financial, operational and compliance aspects, In accordance with the
requirements of the Code and the Guidance, and these systems have been in place for the year ending 31
March 2016 and up to the date of the Annual Report The Internal Control system can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss, as 1t is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the nsk of faillure to achieve business objectives

Throughout the year the Committee has received regular reports from Internal Audit covering the Internal
Control framework n respect of financial and operating performance, significant projects and for
compliance matters, with the key audit findings and the associated management's actions discussed by the
Committee During the year the Committee examined the requirements of the revised UK Corporate
Governance Code in relation to the assessment and reporting of longer term viability and internal control

The Group's procedures for exercising control and managing nsk in relation to financial reporting and
preparation of consolidated accounts include

+ the formulation and communication of Group accounting policies which are regularly updated for
developments in IFRS and other reporting requirements,

» specification of a set of financial controls that all of the Group’s operating businesses are required to
implement as a minimum,

¢ deployment of a Group-wide consolidation system with controls to restrict access and maintain
integnty of data,

e recruitment, training and development of appropriately qualfied and experienced financial reporting
personnel, and

¢ oversight by the Disclosure Committee, a sub-committee of STEC, of the Group’s compliance with
its disclosure obligations

To support these control activities, the Audit Committee receives reports from Internal Audit which provide
objective assurance on risk management, governance and control matters The external Auditor reports
significant financial control issues to the Audit Committee

An independent technical assurer, Jacobs, provides objective assurance in relation to Severn Trent Water
Limited’'s reporting against performance commitments and ODls in the Annual Performance Report
Deloitte audit the regulatory financial reporting and the price control and additional segmental reporting and
provide specific assurance on the additional regulatory information, all of which 1s included in the Annual
Performance Report The Committee reviews the procedures, systems and controls designed to prevent
and detect fraud and bribery and receives a log of incidents of fraud or bnbery every six months, which
includes the actions taken to investigate and respond to the incidents There were no matenal incidents
during the year The Audit Committee has not identified nor has been advised of any fallings or
weaknesses which it has deemed to be significant

Long Term Viability Statement

The Directors’ assessment of the Group’s current financial position 1s set out In the Severn Trent Plc
Annual Report and Accounts Financial review on pages 41 to 45 and therr assessment of the Group's
principal risks 1s set out In the Principal nsks section on pages 48 to 53

The Company's principal operating subsidiary 1s Severn Trent Water Limited, which 1s a regulated long
term

business characterised by multi-year investment programmes and stable revenues The water industry in
England and Wales i1s currently subject to economic regulation rather than market competition and Ofwat,
the economic regulator, has a statutory obligation to secure that water companies are able to finance their
appointed activities Ofwat meets this obligation by setting price controls for five year Asset Management
Periods (‘AMPs’) This mechanism reduces the potential for vanability in revenues from the regulated
business The current AMP runs until March 2020
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The Group has an established process to assess Its prospects The Board undertakes a detailed
assessment of the Group’s strategy on an annual basis and the output from this assessment sets the
framework for the Group’s medium term plan which is updated annually

The plan assessed the Group's prospects and considered the potential impacts of the principal risks and
uncertainties Stress tests were performed to assess the potential impacts of combinations of those risks
and uncertainties The plan also considered the mitigating actions that might be taken to reduce the impact
of such nsks and uncertainties and their likely effectiveness

The Group’s iInvestment programmes are largely funded through access to debt markets The Group’s
strategic funding objectives reflect the long term nature of the Severn Trent Water Limited business and
the Group seeks to obtain a balance of long term funding at the best possible economic cost The Group's
Treasury Policy requires that it maintains sufficient iquidity to cover cash flow requirements for a rolling
perniod of 18 months in order to mitigate the risk of restricted access to capital markets The Group’s debt
maturity profile is actively managed by the Group Treasury department to spread the timing of refinancing
requirements and to enable such requirements to be met under most market conditions The weighted
average maturity of debt at the balance sheet date was 15 years

Bearing in mind the long term nature of the Group’s business, the enduring demand for its services, the
nature of the Group's established planning process and the changing nature of the regulation of the water
industry in England and Wales, the Directors have determined that three years s an appropriate period
over

which to assess the Group's prospects and make its Viability Statement

In making its assessment the Board has made the following key assumptions

e Any period in which the Group I1s unable to access capital markets to raise finance dunng the penod
under review will be shorter than 18 months

e« There will not be a catastrophic disruption to our drinking water supplies ansing from external
factors duning any such penod of market disruption

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Company over a three year period to 31 March 2019,
taking

Into account the Company’s current position and principal nsks Based on that assessment, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its habiliies
as they fall due over the penod to 31 March 2019

Going Concern

In preparing the financial statements the Directors considered the Company’s ability to meet its debts as
they fall due for a period of one year from the date of this report This was carned out in conjunction with
the

consideration of the Viability Statement above

On this basis the Directors considered 1t appropnate to adopt the Going Concern basis in preparing the
financial statements
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Relevant audit information
The Directors confirm that

. so far as each of them Is aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's
Auditer 1s unaware, and
. each of them has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director to make

himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's
Auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation I1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

External Auditor

Having carned out a review of their effectiveness during the year, and following the audit tender process
descnbed In the Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee report on page 84, the Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board the reappointment of Deloitte LLP

The reappomntment and a resolution to that effect will be on the agenda at the Severn Trent Plc AGM

Deloitte LLP indicated their willingness to continue as Auditor The Severn Trent Plc Audit Committee will
also be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of the Board

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

The Annual Performance Report for Severn Trent Water Limited 1s prepared and sent to Ofwat A copy of
this will be available on the website of Severn Trent Water Limited or on request to the Company Secretary

There 1s no charge for this publication

Bl Uizl

By order of the Board
Bronagh Kennedy
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

23 May 2016
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The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year Under that law
the Directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the parent company
financial statements In accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”
Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that
period in prepanng the parent company Financial Statements the Directors are required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make Jjudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explained In the financial statements, and

+» prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue In business

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

« properly select and apply accounting policies,

= present information, including accounting pohcies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information,

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance, and

» make an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company's website Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemtation of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

The Directors confirm that they consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy

Responsibility statement

Each of the Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge

* the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a
true and far view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, and

» the Strategic report includes a far review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with
a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face
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This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 23 May 2016 and (s signed on its

behalf by

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chief Financial Officer
23 May 2016




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent
Water Limited

Opinicon on financial
statements of Severn
Trent Water Limited

In our opinion

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of
the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2016 and of the group’s profit for the
year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union,

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in

accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

. the financral statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

The financial statements compnse the Consolidated income statement, the Consolidated and
Parent Company statemenis of comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Parent Company
balance sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company cash flow statement, the Consolidated and
Parent company statements of changes In equity and the related Consolidated notes 1 to 40 and
Parent Company notes 1 to 33 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Going concern and the
directors’ assessment
of the principal nsks
that would threaten the
solvency or hiquidity of
the group

We have nothing matenal to add or draw attention to in relation to

U the directors’ confirmation on page 29 that they have carmed out a robust assessment of the
principal nsks facing the group, inctuding those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or iquidity,

. the disclosures [on pages 29-34] that describe those nsks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated,
. the directors’ statement in note 2a to the financial statements about whether they considered

It appropnate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in prepanng them and their
dentification of any matenal uncertainties to the group’s ability to continue to do so over a
penod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements,

. the directors’ explanation [on page 28] as to how they have assessed the prospects of the
group, over what penod they have done so and why they consider that period to be
approprate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
group will be able to continue 1n operation and meet its llabilities as they fall due over the
penod of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any
necessary qualfications or assumptions

We agreed with the directors’ adoptton of the going concern basis of accounting and we did not
identify any such matenal uncertainties However, because not all future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement Is not a guarantee as lo the group’s ability to continue as a going concern

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standards for Auditors
and we confirm that we are independent of the group and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiities in accordance with those standards We also confirm we have not provided any of
the prohibited non-audit services referred o In those standards

QOur assessment of
rnisks of material
misstatement

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descnbed betow are those that had the greatest
effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team
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Risk How the scope of our audit responded to the risk

Determination of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables (£124 3 million) (note 18)

A proportion of Severn Trent Water Limited's customers do not
or cannot pay their bills which results in the need for
provisions to be made for non-payment of the customer
balance There 1s significant judgement involved in calculating
the bad debt provision, particularly regarding the estimation of
future cash collection

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water Limited's
trade receivables based on histonical experience of levels of
recovery from accounts in particular ageing categories

Revenue recognition nsk in relation to the estimation of
unbilled revenue (£193 0 million) {note 18)

For water and waste water customers with water meters, the
amount recognised depends upon the volume supplied,
including an estimate of the sales value of units suppled
between the date of the last meter reading and the year end
This 1s a key jJudgement because the estimated usage 1S
based upon historical data and assumptions around
consumption patterns

Determining the classification of costs between operating
expenditure and capital expenditure (note 16)

Severn Trent Water Limited has a substantal capital
praogramme (fixed asset additions in the year £411 5 million)
which has been agreed with the regulator ('Ofwat') and
therefore incurs significant expenditure in relation to the
development and maintenance of both infrastructure and non-
infrastructure assets Expenditure in relation to increasing the
capacity or enhancing the network I1s freated as capital
expenditure Expenditure incurred in maintaiming the
operating capability of the network 1s expensed in the year
(£126 0 milhon) in which it 1s incurred  Capital projects often
contain a combination of enhancement and maintenance
actwvity which are not distinct and therefore the allocation of
costs between capital and operating expenditure 1s inherently
judgemental Whilst under AMP 6, total expenditure or totex 15
a key dniver of regulatory performance rather than capital
expenditure which was monitered under AMP 5, the
accounting distintion between operating and capital
expenditure remains and hence it ts important that capital
project expenditure 1s accounted for correctly in accordance
with International Accounting Standards

In addition, the comparative consolidated balance sheet of
Severn Trent Water Limited has been restated to reflect a
reclassification between property, plant and equipment and
non current trade and other payables Contributions, which
had been received In previous years in relation to
infrastruciure assets, and which had a carrying value of
£294 5 million as at 31 March 2014, were 1dentified as being
deducted from the carrying value of property plant and
equipment In order to comply with the requirements of IAS 16
and IAS 18, these contnbutions have been reclassified from
property plant and equipment to non-current trade and other
payables Further details are set out in note 1b

We reviewed and challenged the information used to
determine the bad debt provision by considering cash
collection performance agamnst histoncal trends and the level
of bad debt charges over ime Specffically, we reviewed the
actual history of slow paying customers in Severn Trent
Water Limited in the penod using data analytics to
understand the collection of previously aged debtors and to
recompute the ageing analysis We tested thedesign and
implementation of key management review controls and
those relating to the production of the data used in the bad
debt mode! We have also agreed a sample of this data back
to its source, being the billing system

We challenged the validity of management's estimate of
current year accrued revenue by comparnng actual amounts
billed to the estimate made in the prior year to determine the
accuracy of the estimation techniques In addition, we used
data analytics to recompute the total level of unbilled revenue
for the current year in Severn Trent Water Limited as well as
testing the design and implementation of key managerment
review controls and those relating to the key data inputs to
the mode! We also agreed a sample of this data back to its
source

We assessed the group’s capitalisation policy to determine
complance with relevant accounting standards and tested
the operating effectiveness of controls over the application of
the policy to expenditure incurred on projects within the
group’s capital programme dunng the year This includes
consideration of the allocation of cosis between capital and
operating expenditure

In addition, for a sample of capital projects, we assessed the
application of the capitalisation policy to the costs incurred by
agreement to third parly invoices and obtained explanations
and further support for any sigmificant changes in capital
expenditure from budget

In relation to the reclassification of infrastructure asset
contributions from property, plant and equipment to non
current trade and other payables in Severn Trent Water
Limited, we have reconciled in total the contributions
received In relation to infrastructure assets to the underlying
accounting records and have confirmed that the revised
presentation 1s in ine with International Accounting
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Determining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
cbhligations (£309 S million deficit) (note 25)

This 1s a key area of jJudgement because the process I1s
complex and requires management (after taking advice from
their actuanal advisers) to make a number of assumptions
concerning long term interest rates, inflation, salary and
pension increases, mvestment returns and longewity of current
pensioners

Determination of current and deferred tax balances (£14 1
milhon credit) (note 13)

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
Judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiations
with, and engquines from, tax authonties in a number of
junsdictions

The opening deferred tax balance of Severn Trent Water
Limited has been restated by £67 8 million with a
corresponding debit adjustment in opening reserves, primarily
in order to correct the deferred tax position in hght of the
reclassification of contributions received in relation to
infrastructure assets from property, plant and equipment to
non-current trade and other payables Further details are set
out in note 1b

Slandards

With support from the pension specialists within our audit
team, we challenged the assumptions used in the calculation
of the pension scheme deficit as detailed in note 25,
specifically regarding the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortality assumptions with reference to comparable market
and other third party data

With support from the tax specialists within our audit team,
we considered the hkely cutcomes of uncertain tax positions
and reviewed correspondence with the relevant tax
authonties to assess the appropnateness of the tax balances
that have been recorded in the balance sheet

We have reviewed the underlying workings supporting the
restated current and deferred tax balances in Severn Trent
Water Limited and challenged the revised treatment to test
that it15 1n accordance with IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes'

The Severn Trent plc Audit Committee’s consideration of these risks I1s set out on page [82] of the Severn Trent pic Annual

Report and Accounts

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate optnion on these matters

Our application of
materiality

We define materality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or

influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the

results of our work

We determined matenality for the group to be £16 million {2015 £16 millien), which1s
approximately 5% (2015 5 0%) of profit before tax, losses/gains on financial instruments and
exceptional items As in 2015, these items are excluded to focus on the group's underlying trading
performance, consistent with the group’s internal and external reporting

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all audit differences in excess of
£750,000 (2015 £750,000), as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure
matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

An overview of the
scope of our audit

Our group audit was scoped by obtamming an understanding of the group and its environment,
including group-wide controls, and assessing the nisks of matenal misstatement at the group level

Based on that assessment, we focused our group audit scope on the consolidation at the parent
company level and the audit of Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Utiities Finance Plc

Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent Utiities Finance plc were subject to a full statutory
audits using component materiality of £15 million and £11 2 milion respectively and together
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account for 100% {2015 100%) of the group's turnover and over 90% (2015 over 90%) of the
group's net assets and profit before tax, gains/losses on financial instruments and excephtonal
items The extent of our testing on the other subsidiary entities within the group was based on our
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement

The group audit team performs the audit of the Severn Trent Water Limited and Severn Trent
Utilties Finance plc ‘

At the parent entity ievel we also tested the consolidation process and carned out analytical ‘
procedures to confirm our conclusion that there were no significant nsks of matenal misstaternent |
of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject to audit or audit of
specified account balances

Opinion on other
matter prescribed by
the Companies Act
2006

In our opinion the iInformation given 1n the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the financial
statements

Matters on which we
are required to report
by exception

Adeguacy of

explanations received
and accounting records

Directors’ remuneration

Other matters

OQur duty to read other
information in the Annual
Report

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinion

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequale for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

. the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records

and returns
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures
of directors’ remuneraticn have not been made We have nothing to report ansing from these
matters

Although not required to do so, the directors have voluntanly chosen to make a corporate
governance statement detailing the extent of their compliance with the UK Corporate Governance I
Code We reviewed the par of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company's :
comphance with certain provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to [
report ansing from our review |
|

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if, in
our gpinion, information in the annual report s

|

. matenally inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or !
. apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of !
the group acquired In the course of performing our audit, or |

. otherwise misteading .

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between
our knowledge acquired dunng the audit and the directors' statement that they consider the annual
report 1s fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual report appropnately discloses
those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading
statements

Respective
responsibilities of
directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibiliies Statement, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fairr view Qur responsibility 15 to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) We also comply with
international Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and Ireland) OQur audit
methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality control procedures are
effective, understood and applied Our quality controls and systems include our
dedicated professional standards review team and independent partner reviews
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Thus report is made sclely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and/or those further matters we have
expressly agreed to report to them in our engagement letter and for no other
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
the financial financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error

This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to
the group’s and the parent company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the financial
statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial imformation tn the
annual report to 1dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements and to identify any information that is apparently matenally incorrect
based on, or matenally incensisient with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the imphications for our report

Jane Whitlock (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Birmingham, UK

23 May 2016




Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015

Noctes £m £m

Turnover 5 1,550 2 1,581 2
Net operating costs before excephional items 6 {(1,0315) (1,044 6)
Exceptional operating items 7 10 (21 5)
Total net operating costs 6 {1,0305) (1,066 1)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5187 536 6
Exceptional items before interest and tax 7 10 (21 5)
Profit before interest and tax 5197 5151
Finance income 10 68 6 812
Finance costs 11 (272 5} (302 7}
Net finance costs (203 9} (221 5)
Gains/(losses) on financial instruments 12 40 (164 0)
Profit before tax, gains/(losses} on financial instruments and exceptional items 3148 3151
Exceptional items before tax 7 10 (215)
Gains/{losses) on financial instruments 12 40 (164 0)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3198 1296
Current tax excluding exceptional credit 13 (552) (38 8)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit 13 (9 5) 131
Exceptional tax credit 13 788 -
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 13 141 (257)
Profit for the year 3339 103 9

Attnbutable to

Owners of the company 3339 1039
3339 103 9

All results are from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year




Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit for the year 3339 103 9
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Iltems that will not be reclassified to the iIncome statement
Net actuanal gan/{loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 150 3 (139 1)
Tax on net actuanal gainfloss {28 5) 269
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate {8 8) -
1130 (112 2)
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Loss on cash flow hedges (24) (10 4)
Deferred tax on loss cn cash flow hedges 04 21
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income staterment in the year 93 416
Deferred tax on transfers to Income statement "N 83)
56 250
Other comprehensive iIncome/{loss) for the year 118 6 (87 2)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4525 167
Attnibutable to
Owners of the company 4525 167
452 5 167
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Share Hedging Retained controrrlfnng Total
caputal reserve earnings Total interests equity
£m £m £m £m Em £m

At 1 Apnil 2014 1000 (123 3) 9555 9322 106 942 8
Profit for the year - - 103 9 1038 - 103 9
Losses on cash flow hedges - (104) - (10 4) - (10 4)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - 21 - 21 - 21
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income
statement - 416 - 416 - 416
Deferred fax on transfers to the Income statement - (B 3) - (8 3) - (8 3)
Net actuanal losses - - (139 1} (139 1) - (139 1)
Tax on net actuanal losses - - 269 269 - 269
Tolal comprehensive income for the year - 250 {8 3) 167 - 167
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees' services - - 76 76 - 76
- own shares purchased - - (24) 24) - (24)
Current tax on share based payments - - 12 12 - 12
Deferred tax on share based payments - - 05 05 - 05
Dividends paid - - (2037) (203 7) - (203 7)
At 31 March 2015 1000 (98 3) 750 4 7521 106 762 7
Profit for the year - - 3339 3339 - 3339
Losses on cash flow hedges - (2 4) - (2 4) - (2 4)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - 04 - 04 - 04
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income
statement - 93 - 93 - 93
Deferred tax on transfers 1o the income statement - (17 - 7 - (17
Net actuanal gains - - 150 3 150 3 - 150 3
Tax on net actuanal gains - - (28 5) (28 5) - (28 5)
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate - - (8 8) {8 B8) - (8 8)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 56 446 9 452 5 - 4525
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - 50 50 - 50
- own shares purchased - - (40) (40) - (4 0)
Current tax on share based payments - - 17 17 - 17
Deferred tax on share based paymenis - - (09 {09) - {0 9)
Dividends paid - - (310 0) (310 0) - (310 0)
At 31 March 2016 1000 (927) 8891 896 4 106 907 0




Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 March 2016

2016

2015

Note £m £m
Nan-current assets
Goodwilt 13 13
Other iniangible assets 15 670 651
Property, plant and equipment 16 76417 74826
Derivative financial assets 17 40 2 135
7,750 2 75625
Current assets
Inventory 60 62
Trade and other receivables 18 4329 4255
Current tax receivable - 48
Derwative financial assets 17 - 115
Cash and cash equivaients 19 - 120 1
4389 568 1
Total assets 8,1891 81306
Current habilities
Borrowings 20 (332 4) (470 3)
Dernvative financial habilittes 22 (0 4) (257)
Trade and other payables 23 (387 3) (364 9)
Current income tax habilities (28 8) -
Provisions for labiliies and charges 26 (12) {30}
{750 1) (BB3 9)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 20 (4,509 2) (4,346 2)
Denvative financial habilities 22 (167 7) (164 6)
Trade and other payables 23 (869 5) (822 9)
Deferred tax 24 (670 2) (700 0}
Retrement benefit obligations 25 (309 5) (468 9)
Prowvisions for habilittes and charges 286 (59) (14)
(6,532 0) (6,504 0)
Total habilities (7,282 1) (7,367 9)
Net assets 907 0 7627
Equity
Called up share capital 27 1000 100 0
Other reserves 28 (92 7) {98 3)
Retained earnings 8891 7504
Equity attributable to owners of the company 836 4 7520
Non-controlling interests 106 106
Total equity 967 0 7627

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 23 May 2016

Towrihg

Andrew Duff James Bowhng
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

Company number 02366686




Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015

Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 34 799 8 7523
Tax pad {20 0) (26 5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 779 8 7258
Investing activities
Interest received 05 08
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 126 105
Purchases of intangible assets {21 9) (15 4)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (411 5) (423 8)
Contnbutions and grants received 350 362
Net cash used in investing activities (385.3) (391 7)
Financing activities
Interest paid (777 {196 5)
Closed out swaps - (139 2)
Interest element of finance lease payments {6 8) (6 9)
Dmvidends paid to shareholders of the parent (310 Q) (203 7)
Repayments of borrowings {908 5) (309 8)
Repayments of obhgations under finance leases {62 8) (21 2)
Repayment of intercompany borrowings - (39 0)
New loans raised 926 4 684 3
New intercompany loans raised 260 -
Purchase of parent company shares (40) (24)
Net cash used in financing activities (517 4) (234 4)
(Decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {122 9) 997
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pernod 120 14 20 4
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period (28) 120 1
Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Cash at bank and in hand - 1201
Bank overdrafts (2 8) -
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of period (28) 1201

The decrease In cash and cash equivalents 1s reconciled to the movement in net debt in note 34




Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

1 General information

The Severn Trent Water group includes Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiary compantes

Severn Trent Water Limited 1s a company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of its registered office is
shown on the front of the annual report and accounts

2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis (see stralegic report on page 30) under the historical cost
convention as medified by the revatuaticn of certain financial assets and liabiities (including denvative instruments) at farr value

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporling Standards (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards {JAS) and IFRIC interpretations issued and effective and ratfied by the European Union as at 31
March 2016

Severn Trent Water Limited 1s a partner in Severn Trent Limited Parinership (the "partnership™, which 1s registered in Scotland As
the partnership 1s included in the conschdated accounts, the parent company has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by
Regulation 7 of The Partnership (Accounts) Regulations 2008 from the requirements of Regulattons 4 to 6

The key accounting policies for the group are set out below and have been applied consistently

b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of Severn Trent Water Limited and its subsidiaries Resuilts are included
from the date of acquisition or incorporation and excluded from the date of disposal

Subsidianes are consolidated where the group has the power to control a subsidiary

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of subsidiares are identified separately from the group’s equity Non-controlling interests
consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combination and the non-controlling interests' share of
changes in equity since that date

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes have been eliminated on consolidation and are not included within the
group financial statements

¢) Revenue recognition
Revenue includes turnover and interest income

Turnover represents the fair value of consideration receivable, excluding value added 1ax, trade discounts and inter-company sales,
in the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Turnover 1s not recognised until the service has been provided to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water and waste waler charges unbilled at the year end The accrual i1s
estmated using a defined methodology based upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which 1s calculated from
histonical billing information

Interest iIncome 1s accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

d) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are income or expenditure, which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opinion of the
directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature If the financial statements are to give a true and fair view

e) Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year and 1s calcutated using tax rales that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s provided i full on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and habilities and thetr
carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred
tax assel is realised or the deferred tax hability is settled

A deferred tax assel I1s only recognised to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to
utihse it

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabiities

7€



Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Accounting policies (continued)

f} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Goodwill
ansing on acquisition of subsidianes 1s included in intangible assets If an acquisition gives nse to negative goodwill this 1s credited
directly to the income statement Fair value adjustments based on provisional estimates are amended within one year of the
acquisition, if required, with a corresponding adjustment to goodwill

Goodwill s tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 2k below and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to the cash-generating unit that derives benefit from the goodwill for imparrment testing
purposes

Where goodwill forms pari of a cash-generating unit and all or part of that unit 1s disposed of, the associated goodwill 1s Included in
the carrying amount of that operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g} Other intangible non-current assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost Following imitial recognition, the histonca! cost model 1s applied

Finite hfe intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on assets IS taken to the iIncome statement through operating costs
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of impairment exist (see 2k below)

Development expenditure 1s capitalised as an intangtble asset and written off over its expected useful economic life where the
following cntena are met

it 1s technically feasible to create and make the asset available for use or sale,

there are adequate resources available to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,
there i1s the intention and ability to use or sell the asset,

it 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and

the development cost can be measured rehably

* * & ¢ @

Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred

h} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS} less accumulated
depreciation Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating to research and development projects 15 capitalised and
depreciated over the expected useful life of those assets

The costs of like for ike replacement of infrastructure components are recognised in the iIncome statement as they anse
Expenditure which results in enhancements to the operating capability of the infrastructure networks 1s capitahsed

Where items of property, plant and equipment are transferred to the group from customers or developers, the fair value of the asset
transferred I1s recognised in the balance sheet Farr value s determined based on estimated depreciated replacement cost Where
the transfer 1s in exchange for connection to the network and there is no further obligation, the corresponding credit 1s recognised
immediately in turnover Where the transfer is considered to be linked to the provision of ongoing services the corresponding credit
1s recorded in deferred income and released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the related assets

Where assets take a substantal penod of time to get ready for their intended use, the borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of these assets are added to therr cost

Property, plant and equipment i1s depreciated to its estmated residual value over its estmated useful hfe, with the exception of
freehold fand which Is not depreciated Assels under construction are not depreciated until commissioned




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Accounting policies (continued)

h) Property, plant and equipment {continued)
The estimated useful lives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoIrs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150 - 200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15

i}y Leased assets

Leases where the group obtains assets which transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership to the group are treated
as finance ieases The lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments I1s capitalised
as an asset with a corresponding liability representing the obligation to the [essor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a
capial element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written
off to the iIncome statement at a constant rate over the penod of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding
Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease penod

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating leases Rental
costs ansing under operating leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land are normally
treated as operating leases, unless ownership 1s transferred to the group at the end of the lease

J} Grants and contributions

Grants and contributions recewved in respect of non-current assets, including certain charges made as a result of new connections
to the water and waste water networks, are treated as deferred income and released to operating costs over the useful economic
iife of those non-current assets

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the ncome statement in the penod that they become receivable

k) Imparrment of non-current assets

If the recoverable armount of goodwill, an item of property, plant and equipment or any other non-current asset 1s estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs Recoverable amount 1s the higher of fair value less costs to sell or estimated value in use at the
date the impairment review Is undertaken Farr value less costs to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset
in an arm'’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value in use represents the
present value of future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used is based on the group’s cost of capital, adjusted for the nsk profites of individual businesses

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are also carned out If there i1s an indicatton that an tmpairment may
have occurred or, where otherwise required, to ensure that non-current assets are not carned above their estimated recoverable
amounts

Impairments are recognised in the income statement




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Accounting policies (continued)

I} Inventory
Inventory and work in progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour, matenals, transport and
attnbutable overheads

m} Trade receivables

Trade receivables, are measured at fair value on imitial recognitton If there 1s objective evidence that the asset 1s impaired, itis
written down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount 1s recogmsed as an expense In operating costs

Trade recervables thal are assessed not to be impaired indwidually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference to the
group's historical collection experience for recewvables of similar age

n} Retirement benefits
(1) Defined benefit schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme liabilities is recorded
on the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid pnce for assets with quoted pnces Defined benefit
penston scheme liabilities are measured at the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the iability

Service cost, representing the cost of employee service in the penod, 1s included in operating costs Net finance cost 1s calculated by
applying the discount rate used for the scheme habilities to the net deficit

Changes in the retirement benefit obligation that anse from

+ differences between the return on scheme assets and interest ncome included in the iIncome statement,
» actuanal gains and losses from expenence adjustments, and

» changes in demographic or financial assumptions,

are classified as remeasurements, charged or credited to equity and recorded in the statement of comprehensive iIncome 1in the penod
in which they anse

There Is no contractual agreement, or stated policy, for charging the net defined benefit cost to participating group companies of the
ultimate parent As the net defined benefit cost 1s recognised by the sponsonng employer, Severn Trent Water Limited, the full net
defined benefit cost is disclosed in the Sevem Trent Water group financial statements

(1) Defined contnbution scheme
Contnbutions to defined contrnbution pension schemes are charged to the income statement in the penod in which they fall due

o)} Provisions
Provisions are recognised where

« there 1s a present obligation as a result of a past event,
+ 1tis probable that there will be an outfiow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
+ arehable estimate of this amount can be made

Prowvisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the rnisks specific to the labilily where the effect
Is matenal

p) Borrowings
The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged itern in a fair value hedge 1s set out in note 2q

All other borrowings are itially recognised at fair value less 1ssue costs After inihal recognition, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method whereby interest and 1ssue costs are charged to the income
statement and added to the carrying value of borrowmngs at a constant rate m proportion to the capital amount outstanding

Index linked debt 1s adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation index and changes in value are charged to finance costs

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are transtated to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date Exchange gains or
losses resulting from this are credited or charged to gains/losses on financial nstruments

81




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Accounting policies {continued)

q) Denvative financial instruments

Denvative financial instruments are stated at far value, including accrued interest Fair value i1s determined using the methodology
descnbed in note 30a The accounting policy for changes n farr value depends on whether the denvative Is designaled as a
hedging instrument The varrous accounting pelicies are described below

Interest receivable or payable i respect of derivative financial instruments 1s included in finance income or cosls

Denvatives not designated as hedging mstruments
Gains or losses ansing on remeasurement of derivative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are
recognised In gatns/losses on financial instruments In the mcome statement

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments
The group uses denvative financial iInstruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to hedge its nisks associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations

Al the inception of each hedge relationship, the group documents
+ the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item,
+ its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction, and
¢ the results of tests to determine whether the hedging instrument 1s expected to be hughly effective in offsetting changes in
fair values or cash flows {as appropnate) of the hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, Is sold, terminated or exercised or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship it 1s remeasured for changes in fair value of the hedged risk at the
balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recogrused in gains/losses on financial instruments in the Income statement The
gan or loss on the corresponding hedging instrument 1s also taken to gains/losses on financial instruments in the ncome statement
so that the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item

If hedge accounting 1s discontinued, the fair value adjustment ansing from the hedged nsk on the hedged item 1s amortised to the
income statement over the anticipated remaining life of the hedged item

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 15 recognised in equity and the
ineffective portion 1s charged to gains/losses on financtal instruments in the income statement When the gain or loss from the
hedged underlying transaction is recogmised 1n the iIncome statement, the gains or losses on the hedging Instrument that have
previously been recognised in equity are recycled through gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement

If hedge accounting is discontinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised in equity 1s held in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement If the
forecast transaction 1s no ionger expected to occur If the hedging instrument 1s terminated, the gains and losses previously
recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement From this point the denvative 1s accounted for in the same way as
denvatives not designated as hedging instruments

Embedded denivatives
Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its cash flows to vary in a similar way to a dervative financial instrument, that
pant of the contract 1s considered to be an embedded denvative

Embedded denvatives are separated from the contract and measured at fair value with gains and losses taken to the income
statement If

* the nsks and charactenstics of the embedded denvative are not closely related to those of the contract, and

+ the contract 1s not carned at fair value with gains and losses reporied in the income statement

In all other cases embedded dervatives are accounted for in line with the accounting policy for the contract as a whole




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2 Accounting policies (continued)

r} Share based payments

The group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the employee
services received In exchange for the grant is recogrised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The farr value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated using an
appropnate pricing mode!, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions The number of awards that are expected 1o
vest takes into account non-market vesting conditions including, where appropnate, continuing employment by the group The
charge 1s adjusted to refiect shares that do not vest as a result of faling to meet a non-market condition

The grant of awards of shares of the ultimate parent company is treated as a capital contnbution and credited to reserves When
awards vest, paymenis made to the ultmate parent company for the 1ssue of shares are charged against the capital contributions
previously received in respect of the same awards Any payments In excess of capital contributions are treated as distnbutions

s) Cash flow statement

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly hquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an mnsignificant risk of change in value Such investments are normally those
with less than three months matunty from the date of acquisittion and include cash and bank balances and investments in hquid
funds

Net cash and cash equivalents include overdrafts repayable on demand

Interest paid in the cash flow statement includes amounts charged to the income statement and amounts inctuded in the cost of
property, plant and equipment

t} Net debt

Net debt compnses borrowings, cross currency swaps that are used to fix the sterling hability of foreign currency borrowings
(whether hedge accounted or not) and net cash and cash equivalents

3 New accounting policies and future requirements
At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in 1ssue but not yel effective

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ 1s ikely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial insiruments Thus standard has not yet
been adopted by the EU

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ will affect the measurement and recogrition of revenue with effect from 1 Apn
2018 The impact of the standard on the results or net assets of the group has not yet been quantified

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to
a contract, 1e the customer (lessee'} and the supplier ('lessor') and will be effective for the group from 1 Apnl 2019 The impact of
the standard on the results or net assets of the group has not yet been quantified

~



Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

4 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estirmation uncertainty

in the process of applying the group's accounting policies, the group I1s required to make certain jJudgements, estimales and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the informaticn available Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates

The mere significant judgements were

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiations with and
enquines from tax authornities in a number of junsdictions The assessments made are based on advice from independent tax advisers
and the status of ongoing discussions with the relevant tax authonties

The key accounting estimates were

a} Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for property, plant and equipment requires estmates to be made
of the useful lives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering dala and the group’s experience of similar assets Details
are set out in note 2h

b) Retirement benefit obligations

Determining the amount of the group's retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assumptions to be made concerning long term interest rates, inflation, pension increases and longewity of current and future
pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significanily impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such
benefits The group makes assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified
actuaries Detarls of the assumptions made are set out in nole 25 to the financial statements

¢} Unbiled revenue

Severn Trent Water raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the mits established
by the perodic regulatory price review processes For water and waste water customers with water meters, the amount recogrused
depends on the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and
the year end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the group recognises revenue for unbilled volumes based on estimated usage
from the last billing to the end of the financial year The estimated usage 1s based on historical data, jJudgement and assumptions

d} Prowsion for impairment of trade receivables

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water's trade receivables based on historical expenence of levels of recovery from
accounts n a particular ageing category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estimated level of recovery which could
)mpact operating results

e) Fair value of dervatives

Determining the fair value of denvatives where quoted prices are not available requires estimates to be made of the fulure expected
cash flows and an appropnate discount rate which refiects the credit risk of the counterparties The valuation techniques and key
inputs used are described in note 30

5 Revenue
2016 2015
£m £m
Water and waste water services 1,541 3 15727
Other services 89 §5
Total turnover 1,550 2 1,581 2
tnterest recevable (note 10} 49 11

1,551 1 1,582 3




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

6 Net operating costs

2016

2015

Before Before
exceptional Exceptional excephonal Exceptional
costs costs Total costs costs Tetal
£m £m £m £fm £m £m
Wages and salanes 1930 {0 3) 1927 1931 106 2037
Social secunty costs 196 - 196 175 01 176
Pension costs 181 07) 174 312 179 491
Share based payments 50 - 50 76 - 76
Total employee costs 2357 (10) 2347 249 4 286 278 0
Power 689 - 689 712 - 712
Raw matenals and consumables 47 2 - 47 2 47 4 - 47 4
Rates 767 - 767 734 - 734
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 237 - 237 284 - 28 4
Service charges 324 - 324 326 - 326
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2903 - 2903 276 7 - 276 7
Amortisation and impairment of intangible fixed assets 199 - 199 222 - 222
Hired and contracted services 172 4 - 172 4 164 0 04 164 4
Operating leases rentals
- land and builldings 03 - 03 02 - 02
- other 03 - 03 - - -
Research and development expenditure 35 - 35 46 - 46
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {2 9} - (2 9) (0 4) (77) 81
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 126 0 - 126 0 134 8 - 1348
Ofwat licence fees 27 - - 53 - 53
Other operating costs 418 - 445 403 02 405
Other operating income (32) - (32) (30) - (30)
1,1357 {10 11347 1,147 1 215 1,168 6
Release from deferred income (10 5) - (10 5) (10 1) - {10 1)
Own work capitalised 937 - (937) (92 4) - {92 4)
1,8315 {10} 1,030 5 1,044 6 215 1,066 1
Further details of exceptional costs are given in note 7
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
2016 2015
£m £m
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts and subsidianes 02 02
Total audit fees 02 02
Fees payable to the company's auditors and their associates for other services to the group
- audi related assurance services
02 04
Total non-audit fees 02 04




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

7 Exceptional items before tax
2016 2015
Em £m
Restructunng costs (10) 292
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 77"
Exceptional operating items before tax (1 0} 215
Exceptional tax 1s disclosed in note 13
8 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (including executive directors) duning the year
2016 2015
Number Number
5,236 5,532

9 Directors’ interests and remuneration

a) Directors’ interests

All of the directors as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Plc, the ultimate parent undertaking, and their
interests in the share capital of thal company are disclosed i the Severn Trent Pic Annual Report and Accounts of thatl company
for the year ended 31 March 2016 Share ophons were granted and exercised in accordance with the Severn Trent Sharesave
Scheme as appropriate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 9717/,4 p each by virlue of having received
contingent awards of shares under the Severn Trent Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), deferred shares under the Severn Trent
Annual Bonus Scheme and contingent shares under the Share Matching Plan

The individual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become entitled,
are disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2016

b} Directors’ remuneration

The following table shows the remuneration due te directors for their services to the company durnng the year

2016 2015
£m £m

Short term employee benefits 30 43
Post employment benefits 01 01
Share based payments 12 22
43 66

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are paid by Severn Trent Plc

There were no retirement benefits accruing to directors (2015 none) under a defined benefit scheme and one director (2015 four
directors) under a defined contrbution scheme

Two directors (2015 six directors) exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested during the year




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

9 Directors’ interests and remuneration (continued)

¢} Highest paid director

2016 2015
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contributions) 23 20
Pension contnbutions 01 01
24 21
The highest paid director at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme
10 Finance income
2016 2015
£m £m
Interest revenue earned on
Bank deposits 02 04
Other financial iIncome 07 07
Total interest receivable 09 11
Interest Income on defined benefit scheme assets 677 801
68 6 812
1 Finance costs
2016 2015
£m £m
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 193 -
Interest on other loans 1629 2011
Interest on finance leases 68 69
Total borrowing costs 189.0 2080
Other financial expenses 07 02
Interest cost on defined benefit scheme oblgations 828 94 5
2725 3027

Borrowing costs of £16 2 mihon (2015 £19 1 milion} incurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest
rate of 4 41% (2015 4 89%) Tax relhef of £3 3 rmillion (2015 £4 2 milhon) was claimed on these costs which was credited to the

income statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £2 9 million (2015 £4 0 milion)

12 Gains/{losses) on financial instruments

2016 2015

£m £m

Gain on swaps used as hedging instruments in farr value hedges a7 02z
Loss arising on debtin fair value hedges (2 5) (2 9)
Exchange {loss)gain on other loans (326) 733
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (93) {416}
Hedge neffectiveness on cash flow hedges - 23
Gain/{loss) ansing on swaps where hedge accounting 1s not apphed 477 {195 3}
40 {164 0)

The group’s hedge accounting arrangements are descnbed in note 32
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13 Taxation

a) Analysis of tax (credit)/charge in the year

2016 2015
Before
exceptional tax Exceptional tax Total Total
£m Em £m £m
Current tax
Current year at 20% (2015 21%) 580 - 5840 504
Prior years at 21% (2015 23%) (2 8) - (28) {11 6)
Total current tax 552 - 552 388
Deferred tax
Ongmation and reversal of temporary differences - current year 71 - 71 (19 6)
Ongmnation and reversal of temporary differences - prior year 24 - 24 65
Exceptional credil ansing from rate change - (78 8) (78 8) -
Total deferred tax 95 (78 8) {69 3) (13 1)
647 {78 8) (14 1} 257

The current tax charge was £55 2 million (2015 £38 8 million before exceplional tax) This includes a credit of £2 8 milkon (2015
£11 6 million) ansing from adjustments to pnor year tax computations

The company earns profits pnmanly in the UK Therefore the tax rate used for tax on profit on ordinary activities is ihe main rate for
UK corporation tax

The Finance Act 2015 was enacted in the current year which implemented a reduction in the corporation tax rate from 20% to 18%
with effect from 1 Apnl 2020 This resulted in an additional exceptional deferred tax credit of £78 8 mullion In the income statement
and a deferred tax charge of £8 8 million in reserves

A further reduction to 17% with effect from 1 Apnl 2020 has been announced but not yet substantively enacted The estimated
impact of ihis rate change will be a reduction in the deferred tax hability of approximately £37 million
b) Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge in the year

The tax expense for the current year 1s lower {2015 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 21%)
The differences are exptained below

2016 2015

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3198 1296
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 20% (2015 21%) 639 272
Tax effect of depreciation on non-qualifying assets 37 35
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profits (18) (08)
Difference between current tax and deferred tax rates on 09
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0 4) (51)
Exceptionat deferred tax credit arising from rate change (78 8) -
Total tax (credit)/charge (14 1) 257

8¢
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13 Taxation (continued)

¢) Tax charged/(credited) directly to other comprehensive income or equity

In additton to the amount {credited)/charged to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/(credited)

directly to other comprehensive income or equity

2016 2015
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based payments (17) {(12)
Tax on pension contnbutions in excess of iIncome statement charge - {2 8)
Total current tax credited to other comprehensive income or equity 17) {4 0)
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gain/loss 285 (24 2)
Tax on cash flow hedges (0 4) 21
Tax on transfers to the income statement account 17 83
Tax on share based payments 09 (0 5)
Effect of change in tax rate 88 -
Total deferred tax chargedi(credited) to cther comprehensive income or equity 395 (18 5)
14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to equity holders in the pencd
2018 2015
Pence per share Em __ Pence per shara £m
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 {2015) 31 00 3100 20 37 2037

The company's dividend policy 1s shown In note 29
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15 Other intangible assets

Computer software Other
Internally Internally
generated Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 1706 93 0 120 2756
Additions 57 a7 - 154
Disposals - (21 4) - {21 4)
At 1 Apnl 2015 176 3 813 120 2696
Additions 99 119 - 218
At 31 March 2016 186 2 932 120 2014
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2014 {136 0) {57 5} {10 2) (203 7)
Amortisation for the year (10 8) (10 8) (0 6) (22 2)
Disposals — 214 - 214
At 1 Apnl 2015 (146 8) (46 9) (10 8) (204 5)
Amortisation for the year {9 2) (10 1) (0 6) {19 9)
At 31 March 2016 (156 0) (57 0) (11 4) (224 4)
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 302 362 06 670
At 31 March 2015 295 344 12 651

Other assets pnmanly comprise capitaised development costs and patents
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Fixed

Land and Infrastructure plant and Movable Assets under
buildings assets equipment plant construction Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2014 2844 3 46317 3,4404 483 658 0 11,6227
Additions 59 227 127 55 4347 4815
Transfers on commissioning 1217 107 8 1935 - (422 8) -
Disposals (10 0) - (76 4) (4 8) - {91 2)
At 1 Apnl 2015 29619 47620 35702 4990 6699 12,0130
Additions 27 214 147 48 4155 4591
Transfers on commissioning 194 8 156 7 2097 - (561 2) -
Disposals (10 7) {0 2) (157) (34) 41) {34 1)
At 31 March 2016 31487 49399 3,7789 50 4 5201 12,4380
Depreciation
At 1 Apni 2014 (984 3) (1,194 3) (2,133 1) (30 8) - (4,342 5)
Charge for the year (67 5) {32 0) (172 4} (4 8) - (276 7)
Disposals 82 ~ 76 3 43 — 888
Al 1 Apnit 2015 (1,043 6) (1,226 3) (2,229 2) (313) - (4,530 4)
Charge for the year (76 7) {31 5) (177 3} {4 8) - (290 3)
Disposals 61 — 15 1 32 — 24 4
At 31 March 2016 {1,114 2) (1,257 8) (2,391 4) (329) - (4,796 3)
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 20345 36821 1,387 5 175 5201 76417
At 31 March 2015 19183 35357 1,341 0 177 669 9 74826
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under finance
leases
Fixed
tnfrastructure plant and
assets equipment Total
£m £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 1198 164 136 2
Al 31 March 2015 1187 266 1453




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

17 Categories of financial assets

2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 104 -
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted - 42
104 42
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Cross currency swaps - farr value hedges 177 208
Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges 121 -
298 208
Total derivative financial assets 40 2 250
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents)
Trade recevables (note 18) 160 8 156 5
Amounts due from group undertakings {note 18} 84 152
Short term deposits - 1150
Cash at bank and in hand 14 51
Total loans and receivables 170 6 2918
Total financial assets 2108 316 8
Disclosed In the balance sheet as
Non-current assets
Derwvative financial assets 40 2 135
402 135
Current assets
Dervative financial assets - 115
Cash and cash equivalents 14 120 1
Trade receivables 160 8 156 5
Amounts due from group undertakings 84 152
170 6 3033
2108 3168
18 Trade and other receivables
2016 2015
Em £m
Trade receivables 2851 2790
Less provisions for impairment of receivables (124 3) (122 5)
Net trade receivables 160 8 156 5
Amounts receivable from related parties 84 152
Other amounts receivable 42 4 309
Prepayments 147 163
Accrued income 2066 206 6
432 9 4255
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18 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Doubtful debt provision
The carrying values of trade and other receivables are reasonable approximations of their far values

Severn Trent Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and waste water services to customers within its region Therefore
there 1s no concentration of credit nsk with respect to its trade receivables and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the
wealth and prospenty of all of the commercial businesses and domestic househotds within its regton None of the other business
units are individually significant 1o the group

Movements on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

At 1 Apnl 1225 118 2

Charge for bad and doubtful debts 237 284

Amounts written off dunng the year (219} (22 1)

Reclassification - (2 0)

At 31 March 1243 1225
The aged analysis of receivables that are specifically provided for 1s as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

Up to 90 days - 13

91 - 365 days 18 38

1-2years 49 63

2 -3 years 32 63

More than 3 years 49 80

148 257

A coltective provision Is recorded against assets which are past due but for which no specific provision has been made Thisis
calculated based on historical experience of levels of recovery

The aged analys:s of receivables that were past due at the reporting date but not individually provided for 1s as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Up to 90 days 375 403
91-365 days 685 645
1-2 years 302 290
2-3 years 143 135
More than 3 years 103 92
160 8 i56 5

The amounts above are reconcied to gross and net debtors in the table below
2016 2015
Gross Provision MNet Gross Provision Net
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Not due 1095 - 1095 96 8 - 96 8
Overdue not specifically provided 160 8 (109 5} 513 156 6 (96 8) 597
Overdue and spectfically provided 148 (14 8} - 257 (257) -

285 1 (124 3) 160 8 2790 (122 5) 156 5

~
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19 Cash and cash equivalents

2016 2015
£m £
Cash at bank and in hand - 51
Short term deposits - 1150
- 120 1
20 Borrowings

2016 2015
£m £m

Bank overdrafts 28 -
Bank loans 1,212 2 1,240 7
Other lcans 3,456 4 33688
Amounts due to parent 530 270
Finance leases 117 2 180 0

4,841 6 481656

Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Current habilities 3324 470 3
Non-current iabilities 4,509 2 4,346 2

4,841 6 4,816 5

21 Finance leases

Obligations under finance leases are as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Within 1 year 57 447
1-2vyears 61 305
2 -5 years 211 196
After more than 5 years 129 8 1373
Gross obligations under finance leases 1627 2321
Less future finance charges {45 5) (52 1)
Present value of lease cbligations 1172 1800
Net obhgations under finance leases fall due as follows

2016 2015
£m £m

Within t year 16 386
1-2 years 21 259
2 -5years 96 79
After more than 5 years 103 9 107 6
Included in non-current habilities 1156 1414
1172 1800

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 16 years at 31 March 2016 Interest terms are set at the inception of the
leases Leases with capital outstanding of £117 2 milion (2015 £180 0 million) bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of
5 35% (2015 5 36%) The lease obligations are secured against the related assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not
impese restrictton on dividend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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22 Categories of financial liabilities
2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted - 252
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 164 9 164 3
164 9 1895
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges 3.2 08
Total derivative financial habilities 168 1 190 3
Other financial liabilities
Borrowings (note 20) 48416 48165
Trade payables (note 23} 96 254
Amounts due te group underakings {note 23) 2.2 23
Total other financial habilities 4,853.4 4 844 2
Total financial habilities 5,021.5 50345
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non-current habilities
Dernvative financial habiities 167 7 164 6
Borrowings 4509 2 4,346 2
46769 45108
Current habilities
Dernvative financial habilities 04 257
Borrowings 3324 4703
Trade payables 986 254
Amounts due 1o group undertakings 22 23
3446 5237
50215 50345
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23 Trade and other payables

2016 2015
£m £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables 96 254
Social secunty and other taxes 53 52
Other amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 22 23
Other payables 69 66
Oeferred income 109 100
Accruals 3524 3154
3873 3649
Non-current habilities
Deferred income 867 4 8190
Accruals 21 39
8695 8229
The directors consider that the carrying value of trade payables 1s not materally different from their fair values
24 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements tn the major deferred tax habiities and assets recognised by the group 1s set out below
Retirement Fair value of
Accelerated tax benefit financial
depreclation obligation instruments Other Total
£m Em £m £m £m
At 1 April 2014 8257 (69 6) (329) 84 7316
Charge/{credit) to income 132 - (31 4) 51 (13 1)
{Credit)charge to equity — (24 2) 62 {0 5) {18 5)
At 1 Apnl 2015 8389 (93 8) (58 1) 130 7000
Charge/(credit) to income 92 - 12 {(09) 95
{Credit)/charge to iIncome arsing from rate change (83 9) 23 41 (13) (78 8)
Charge to equity - 285 13 09 307
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 71 17 - 88
At 31 March 2016 764 2 {559) (49 8) 117 670 2
Deferred tax assets and liabiities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/setiled after more than 12
months, are as follows
2016 2015
£m £m
Deferred tax asset (105 7) (151 9)
Deferred tax hability 7759 8519
670 2 7000

ge
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25 Retirement benefit schemes
a) Defined benefit pension schemes

{1) Background

The Severn Trent group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covenng the majonty of UK
employees The defined benefit pension schemes are funded 1o cover future pension Increases and thew assets are held in
separate funds administered by trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries A
formal actuanal valuation of each scheme i1s carned out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial intervals by an independent
professionally qualified actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retrement benefits
calculated as a proportion (varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of their satary for the final year of employment
with the group or, If higher, the average of the highest three consecutive years' salary in the last ten years of employment

The defined benefit pension schemes closed to fulure accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contnbution pension scheme has
been established and members of the defined benefit pension schemes have become members of the new defined contnbution
pension scheme

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of their last formal actuanal valuation are as follows

Date of tast formal actuanal valuation

Severn Trent Pension scheme ('STPS')" 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 1s by far the larges! of the group's UK defined benefil schemes

{n) Amount included in the balance sheet arising from the group’s cbligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2016 2015
Em__ £m
Fair value of scheme assets

Equities 922 4 999 5
Gilts 2830 3272
Corporate bonds 5707 450 8
Property 171 4 159 3
Hedge funds 118 609
Cash 805 89 1
Total fair value of assets 2,0398 20868
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,339 9) (2,545 7)
(300 1) (458 9)
Present value of the defined benefit obhgations - unfunded schemes {9 4) (10 0)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (309 5) (468 9)

The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prices in active markets
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25 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(1) Amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

{continued)

Movements in the fair value of the scheme assels were as follows

2016 2015
Em £m
Fair value at 1 Apnil 2,086 8 18236
Interest income on scheme assets 677 801
Group contrnibutions 257 766
Other contributions from other Severn Trent group companies 21 44
Contnbutions from scheme members 03 48
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts inctuded in finance income} (459) 1934
Scheme administration costs (2 3) (29)
Benefits paid {94 6) (932)
Fair value at 31 March 2,0398 2,086 8
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as foliows
2016 2015
£m £m
Present value at 1 Apnl 25557 21719
Service cost - 228
Past service cost 07) 181
Interest cost 828 94 5
Contnbutions from scheme members 03 48
Actuanal (gains)/tosses ansing from changes in financial assumptions (147 9) 366 2
Actuanal gains arising from expenence adjustments {46 3) (29 4)
Benefits paid (94 €) (93 2)
Present value at 31 March 2,349 3 25557
Of which
2016 2015
£m Em
Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,3399 25457
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 94 100
Present value at 31 March 2,349 3 25557

The group has an obligation 1o pay pensions to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earmings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £9 4 mullkon (2015 £10 0 million) 1s

included as an unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit obligation

9t
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25 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes {continued)

{1i) Amounts recognised n the iIncome statement In respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2016 2015
£m £m
Amounts credited/(charged) to operating costs
Current service cost - (22 8)
Past service cost o7 (18 1)
Scheme administration costs (23) (29)
{16) (43 8)
Amounts charged to finance costs
Interest cost {82 8) (94 5)
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest Income on scheme assets 677 801
Total amount charged to the Income statement (16 7) (58 2)

The actua! return on scheme assets was a gain of £21 8 milhon (2015 £273 5 million)

Actuarial gamns and losses have been reported in the staterment of comprehensive income The cumulative amount of actuarial
gains and losses recognised In the statement of comprehensive income since the adoption of IFRS 1s a net loss of £310 8 million
(2015 £459 1 milhon)

In addition, contributions made by other Severn Trent group entities are also included in actuarial gains and losses recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income

v) Actuarial risk factors
The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nisks such as investment nsk, inflation nsk and longewvity nsk
Investment nsk

The group's contnbutions to the schemes are based on actuanal calculations which make assumptions about the returns expected
from the schemes' investments If the investments underperform these assumptions in the iong term then the group will need to
make additional contnbutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

inflation risk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by RPI The group’s contnibutions to the schemes
are based on assumptions about the future level of inflation If inflation 1s higher than the levels assumed in the actuanal
calculations then the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued
benefits

Longevity nsk

The group's contrnbutions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the life expectancy of scheme members after
retirement If scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make addiional
contributions to the schemes n order to fund the payment of accrued benefits
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25 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes {continued)

(v) Actuarial assumptions
The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2016 2015

% %
Pnce inflation 30 30
Discount rate 36 33
Pension increases in payment 30 30
Pension increases in deferment 30 30

The assumption for price inflation 1s denved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on index-
linked gilts The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated steriing 18 year corporate bonds

No salary assumption is required because the scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015

The mortality assurmptions are based on those used in the tnennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013 The mortality
assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are as follows

2016 2015
Men Women Men Women
'SAPS' ‘SAPS'

Mortiality table used S1INMA_L S1NFA_L SINMA_L  SINFA L
Moriality table compared with standard table 116% 92% 116% 92%
Future improvement per annum 10% 10% 10% 10%
Remaning Iife expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years) 214 246 214 245
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years} 228 261 227 261

10C
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25 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(v) Actuanal assumptions {continued)

The calcutation of the scheme habibties 1s sensitive to the actuartal assumptions and in particular to the assumptons relating to
discount rate, price inflation and mortality The following table summanses the estimated impact on scheme liabiities from
changes to key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumption impact on scheme habilities
Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decreasehincrease by £45 million
Price inflation Increasefdecrease by 0 1% Increaseldecrease by £40 mitlion
Mortality Increase in Iife expeclancy by 1 year Increase by £65 million

In reality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, parbicularly between the discount rate and price inflation The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrefationships

In presenting the ahove sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obhgation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod, which i1s the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
oblgation liability recognised in the balance sheet

(v1) Effect on future cash flows
Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2015 18 years) The expecied cash flows
payable from the scheme are presented in the graph below

Expected benefit payments
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g
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a
=
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40
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Year

The most recent formal triennial actuanal valuations and funding agreements were carned out as al 31 March 2013 for both
schemes As a result, deficit reduction contributtons of £40 million in 2013/14, £35 milhon 1n 2014/15, £15 milhon :n 2015/16 and
£12 milion p a n subsequent years to 2024/25 were agreed Further payments of £8 million p a through an asset backed funding
arrangement will also continue to 31 March 2032 The Severn Trent Water Group's share of these contnbutions will be determined
at the time that they are made The next tnennial valuation, as at 31 March 2016, 1s underway
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25 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

b) Defined contribution pension schemes
The group also operates defined contnbution arrangements for certain of its UK employees

The Severn Trent Pension Scheme, Choices section was replaced by the Severn Trent Group Personal Pension from 1 Apnl 2015
and all members of other pension schemes were transferred This scheme has been open since 1 Apnl 2012 and new employees
were automatically enrolled from this date

The total cost charged to operating costs of £18 1 mulion (2015 £8 2 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes by
the group al rates specified in the rules of the schemes As at 31 March 2016, contnbutions amounting to £1 Sm (2015 £2 4 million)
in respect of the current reporting period were owed to the schemes

26 Provisions
Onerous Insurance
Restructuring contracts deductibfe Other Total
£m £m £m Em £m
At 1 Apnil 2015 13 10 - 21 44
(Released)/charged to income statement (0 3) - 51 - 48
Utihsation of provision (09) o7 (05) (0 1) (22)
Unwinding of discount - - - 01 01
Reclassification - (03) - 03 —
At 31 March 2016 01 - 46 24 71
2016 2015
£m £im
Included In
Current llabllibes 12 30
Non-current liabilities 59 14
71 44

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred 1n respect of committed restructuring programmes The associated outflows
are estimated to anse over the next 12 months from the balance sheet date

The onerous contract provision relates to specific contractual abihties either assumed with businesses acquired or ansing In
existing group businesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues

During the year, Severn Trent Water Limited has increased the leve! of self-insurance provided in the accounts for insurance
deductible values previously provided in Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company of the Severn

Trent Plc group At the year end this has resulted in a provision of £4 6 milkon (2015 nil) for amounts that are no longer covered in
the arrangement The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a penod of up to five years from the balance sheet date

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes The associated outflows are estimated to arise over a
period up to six years from the balance sheet date

27 Share capital

2016 2015
£m £m

Total 1ssued and fully paid share capital
1,000,000,000 shares of 10p each 1000 1000

28 Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps laken directly to equity under the hedge accounting
provistons of JAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1
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29 Capital management

The group's principal objectives in managing capital are

+ {0 access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for continued availability,

to manage exposure to movements in interest rates to provide an appropriate degree of certainty as to its cost of funds,

1o minimise exposure 1o counterparty credit nsk,

to prowvide the group with an appropriate degree of certainty as to its foreign exchange exposure,

to mamtain an investment grade credit rating, and

to maintain a flexible and sustainable balance sheet structure

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across a range of funding scurces at the best
possible economic cost The group menitors future funding requirements and credit market conditions to ensure continued
avalabihty of funds

Whulst the group does not have a specific gearnng target and seeks to maintain geanng at a level consistent with its capital
management objectives described above, the board has decided to move towards a net debt/RCV gearing ratio of around 62 5%
which 1s 1n line with Ofwat's notional assumption for AMP6

The group has continued to increase exposure to currently low floating interest rates, pnmarily through the following

¢ In April 2015, drawing down the remaining £330 milicn of the £530 millon, floating rate facility with the European
Investment Bank for a penod of nine years £200 million had previously been drawn in March 2015 for a period of eight
years

» Rarsing £471 4m of finance through a private placement on the US market, which was drawn down on 3 March 2016 This
debt has matunties of 11, 12 and 15 years The proceeds were used I1n part to repay the remaining €517 4 million of the
€700 million fixed rate Eurcbond on 11 March 2016

The group's dividend policy 1s to declare dividends which are consistent with the group's regulatory obligations and at a level which
Is decided each year after consideration of a number of facters, including regulatory uncertainty, future cash flow requirements and
balance sheet considerations The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year as the impact of these factors changes

The group's capital at 31 March 2016 was

2016 2015
£m £m

Cash and short term deposits - 1201
Bank overdrafts {28} -
Bank loans (1,2122} (1,2407)
Other loans (3,4564) (3,368 8)
Loans from parent company (53 0) (27 0)
Obligattons under finance leases (117 2) (180 0)
Cross currency swaps 281 (44)
Net debt {4,8135) (4,7008)
Equity attnbutable to the owners of the company (896 4) (752 Q)
Total capital (5,7099) (5,4528)

210z
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30 Fair values of financial instruments

a) Fair value measurements

The valuation techriques that the group applies in determining the fair values of its financial instruments on a recurming basis are
descnbed below The techniques are classified under the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13 which categorises valuation techniques into
Levels 1 - 3 based on the degree to which the fair value I1s observable All of the group's valuation techniques are Level 2

2016 2m5
£m £m  Valuation technigues and key inputs
Cross currency swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets 281 208 Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest rates
Liabiities - (25 2) from observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest
rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit nsk of
counterparties
The currency cash flows are translated at the spot rate
Interest rate swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets - 42 Future cash flows are estmated based on forward interest rates
Liabilities {164 9) (164 3) from observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest
rates discounted at a rate that reflects the credit rnsk of
counterparties
Energy swaps Discounted cash flow
Assets - —  Future cash flows are estmated based on forward electricity prices
Liabilities {32) (08) from observable indices at the year end and contract prices

discounted at a rate that refiects the credit nsk of counterparties
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30 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

b) Comparison of fair value of financial instruments with their carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits, bank overdrafts, trade receivables and trade
payables approximate therr far values The carrying values and estimated fair values of other financial instruments are set out
below

2016 2015
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
£m £m £m £m
Floating rate debt
Bank loans and overdraft 9586 958 5 984 3 9703
Currency bonds 366 366 67 4 67 4
Floating rate notes 147 6 150 3 - -
Loan frem parent company 530 530 270 270
1,195 8 1,198 4 1,078 7 1,064 7
Fixed rate debt
Bank loans 1500 1500 1500 166 2
Sterling bonds 1,857 3 2,2218 18553 2,268 4
Currency bonds - - 370 8 3913
Fixed rate notes 326 9 3990 - -
Finance ieases 117 2 1254 180 ¢ 1907
24514 2,896 2 2,556 1 3.016 6
Index-linked debt
Bank loans 107 8 161 106 4 1230
Sterling bonds 1,088.0 1,494 0 10753 1,5035
1,195 8 1,610 1 1,181 7 1,626 5
4,843 0 57047 48165 57078

The above classification does not take into account the impact of hedging instruments
Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices

Index-linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of farr value
Therefore, these bonds are valued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates denved from observed market prices for
a sample of bonds

Fair values of the other debt instruments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models

10



Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments

The group’s activities expose It to a variety of financial nsks

» market nsk (including interest rate nsk exchange rate nsk and other price nsk),
« credit nsk,

+« lhgquidity nsk, and

« nflation risk

The group’s overall nsk management programme addresses the unpredictabiity of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential
adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position

Financial nsks are managed by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) under polictes approved by the Board of Directors
The Board has established a Treasury Management Committee to monitor treasury activiies and to facilitate timely responses {o
changes in market conditions when necessary Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financal nsks in close co-
operation with the group's operating units The Board defines wntten principles for overali nsk management, as well as wnitten
policies covenng specific areas such as exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, credit nsk and the use of denvative and non-dernivative
financial instruments The group's policy 1s that denvative financial instruments are not held for trading but may be used to mitigate
the group's exposure to financial nsk The types of dervative instruments held and the related nsks are described below

Interest rate swaps are held to mitigate the group's exposure to changes in market interest rates Further details are set out i
sections a) (1} and note 32 below

Cross currency swaps are held te mitigate the group's exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts borrowed in foreign
currencies Further details are set out In section a) (1) below

Energy swaps are held to mitigate the groups exposure to changes in electricity pnices Further details are provided In note 32
below

Severn Trent Water, the group's most significant business umt, operates under a regulatory environment where its prices are linked
to inflation measured by RPI In order to mitigate the nsks to cash flow and earnings ansing from fluctuations in RPI, the group
holds debt instruments where the principal repayable and interest cost 1s linked to RPI

a)} Market risk

The group Is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates and, to a lesser extent, exchange rates The nature of these nsks and the
steps that the group has taken to manage them are described below

(1) Interest rate risk

The group's tncome and its operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates The group's
interest rate nsk anses from long term borrowings

Borrowings 1ssued at variable rates expose the group to the nisk of adverse cash flow impacts from increases in interest rates
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to the nsk of interest costs above the market rate when interest rates decrease

The group's policy 1s to maintain 40% to 70% of its interest beanng labilities in fixed rate instruments in AMPS In measunng this
metnc, management makes adjustments to the carrying value of debt to better refiect the amount thal interest 1s calculated on
Details of the adjustments made are set out below

2016 2015
£m £

Net debt (see note 34) 48135 4,700 8
Cash and cash equivalents - 120 1
Cross currency swaps included in net debt at fair value 281 (4 4)
Fair value hedge accounting adjustments {15 2) {17 4)
Exchange on currency debt not hedge accounted (59) 226
Interest bearing financial habihties 48205 48217
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Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

a) Market rnisk (continued)

(1) Interest rate risk (continued)

The group manages its cash flow interest rate nsk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates and by using interest rate swaps
Under these swaps the group receives fioating rate inlerest and pays fixed rate interest calculaled by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts In practice the swaps are settled by transferring the net amount These swaps have the economic effect
of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates The group has enlered into a series of these interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments to beyond 2030

The following tables show analyses of the group's interest bearing financial habiities by type of interest Debt which 1s hedged by
interest rate swaps 1s included in the category after taking account of the iImpact of the swap Debt raised in foreign currencies has
been included at the notional sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding cross currency swap since this 1s the amount
that 1s exposed to changes in Interest rates

Valuation adjustments that do not impact the amount on which interest is calculated, such as fair value hedge accounting
adjustments, are excluded from this analysis

The net pnncipal amount of unhedged swaps 1s shown as an adjustment to floating rate and fixed rate debt 1o demonstrate the
impact of the group's interest rate swaps on the amount of labilties beanng fixed interest

Floating Fixed Index-

rate rate linked Total

2016 £m £m £m £m

Overdrafts {(28) - - (2 8)

Bank loans {954 4) (150 0) (107 8) (1,212 2)

Other loans (3820) (1,955 5) (1,.0878) (3,4353)

Loans due to parent company (53 0) - - (53 0)

Finance leases - (117 2) - (117 2)

(1,4022) (2,2227) (1,195 6) (4,820 5)

Impact of swaps not matched against specific debt instruments 4198 (418 8) - -

Interest beaning financial habilities {982.4) (2,642 5) (1,956) (4,820 5)
Proportion of interest beanng financial labilities that are fixed 55%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 522%
Weighted average penod for which interest 1s fixed (years) 102

Floating Fixed Index-

rate rate hinked Total

2015 £m £m £m £m

Bank loans (984 3) (150 0) (106 4) (1.2407)

Other loans 470) {(22517) (1,0753) (3,374 0)

Loans due to parent company (27 Q) - - (27 0)

Finance leases - {180 0) - (180 0)

(1.0583) (25817) (1,1817) (4821 7)

Impact of swaps not matched against specific debt instruments 316 4 {316 4} - -

Interest bearing financial habiites (741 9) (2,898 1) (1,181 7) 4821 7)
Proportion of interest beanng financial llabiies that are fixed 60%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 567%
Weighted average penod for which interest 1s fixed {years) 103




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

a) Market risk {continued)

(1) Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted

The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow or fair value hedges Economically these

swaps act to fix the interest cost of debt within the group which 1s denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge

accounting under the stnct cntena of IAS 39 This has led to a credit of £8 6 milhon (2015 charge of £119 9 mullion) in the income

statement

Average contract fixed

interest rate Notional principal amount Fair value
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
% % £m £m £m £m
Pay fixed rate interest
1- 2 years - - - - - -
2-5years - - - - - -
5-10 years 506 506 {450 0) (450 0) (129 2) (129 5) .
10 - 20 years 545 545 (68 1) (66 4) (357) {34 9)
511 511 (5181)  (5164)  (1649) (164 4)
Receive fixed rate interest
Less than one year = 518 - 2000 - 42
- 518 - 2000 - 42
(518 1) (316 4) (164 9) (160 2)

Interest rate sensitivily analysis

The sensitivity after tax of the group's profits, cash flow and equity, including the impact on denvative financial instruments, to
reasonably possible changes n interest rates at 31 March 1s as follows

2016 2015
+1 0% -10% +10% -10%

£m £m £m £m

Profit or loss 42 4 (47 4) 512 (57 3)
Cash flow 66 (6 6) 47 47)
Equity 42 4 (47 4) 512 (57 3)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

a) Market nsk (continued)
(h) Exchange rate nsk

Except for debt rarsed in foreign currency, which 1s hedged, the group's business does not mvolve significant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions and therefore the sensitivily of the group’s results to changes in exchange rates 1s nol matenal

In order to meet its objective of accessing a broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt denominated in
currencies other than sterling In order io miigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate flucluations, cross currency swaps were
entered mto at the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt bearing interest based on LIBOR

Where the terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt, the swaps are expected to be
effective hedges, hence the swaps have been accounted for as fair value hedges The notional value and farr value of these swaps
15 shown in note 32 a)

The group also has a number of fixed to floating rate cross currency swaps with a notional sterling value of £88 3 million (2015
£396 6 million) which are not accounted for as far value hedges Economically these swaps act to mitigate the exchange rate nisk
of debl within the group which 15 denominated in foreign currency, but they do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict critena
of IAS 39 This has led to a credit of £39 1 million (2015 charge of £75 4 million) in the income statement which 1s partly offset by
the exchange loss of £32 6 milion (2015 gan of £73 3 million) on the underlying debt

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are summarnsed in the tables below These show,
in the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional pnncipal of the related swap or forward contract The net position
shows the group's exposure to exchange rate nisk in relation to s currency borrowings

Euro US dollar Yen
2016 €m $m ¥Bn
Borrowings by currency (199) (150 0) (20)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 - 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted - 1500 -
Net currency exposure - - -

Euro UsS doellar Yen
2015 £m $m ¥Bn
Borrowings by currency (537 3) (500) (20)
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 500 20
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 517 4 - -

Net currency exposure - - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments {continued)

b) Credit risk

Operationally the group has no significant concentrations of credit nsk It has policies in place fo ensure that sales of products are
made to custormers with an appropniate credit history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence obliges 1t
to supply domestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided agamnst accounts receivable and
movements on the provision during the year are disclosed in note 18

Cash deposits and dervative contracts are only plfaced with hrigh credit quality financia! institutions, which have been approved by
the Board Group Treasury monitors the credit quality of the approved financial institutions and the list of financial institutions that
may be used 1s approved annually by the Board The group has policies that imit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial
institution

Credif nsk analysts

At 31 March the aggregate credit Iimits of authonsed counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows

Credit limit Amount deposited
2016 2015 2016 2015
Em £m £m £m
AAA 50 200 - -
Double A range 100 0 1000 - - '
Single A range 6150 6000 - 1150 :
Triple B range 200 - - -
7400 7200 - 1150

The fair values of dernivative assels analysed by credit ratings of counterparties were as follows

Denvative assets

2016 2015

£m £m

Double A range - 115

Single A range 323 135
Trniple B range 79 - .

40 2 250

¢) Liquidity risk

(1) Committed facilities

Prudent hquidity management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained, adequate committed facilitres to be available and
the ability to close out market positions Group Treasury manages liquidity and flexibility in funding by monitering forecast and
actual cash flows and the matunty profile of financial assets and ilabilities, and by keeping committed credit ines available

At the balance sheet date the group had committed undrawn borrowing faciities expiring as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

2 -5 years 7750 4150
After more than five years - 3300
7750 7450

e
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

c) Liquidity risk {continued)

(n) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse from the group's non-denvative net financial labilittes The
information presented is based on the eariest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flows including principal and interest

Interest and snflation assumptions are based on prevailing market conditions at the year end date

Payments on

2018 Floating Index Trade financial
Undiscounted amounts payable rate Fixed rate linked payables laabilities
£m £Em £m £m £m

Within 1 year (285 9) (119 2) (23 9) (9 6) (438 6)
1-2years (163 2) (319 7) (24 3) - (707 2)
2 - 5 years (381)  (4374) (759) - (551 4)
5-10 years (6145) {1,2308) (299 0) - (2,144 3)
10 - 15 years (178 4) (768 9) (334 0) - (1,281 3)
15 - 20 years - (76 9) (125 7) - (202 6)
20 - 25 years - (60 9) (153 1) - (214 0)
25-30vyears - (262 2) (183 0) - {445 2)
30 - 35 years - - (217 8) - (217 8}
35-40 years - - (646 6) - (646 6}
40 - 45 years - - (31639) - (3,163 9)
45 - 50 years - - (29 4) - (29 4)
50 - 55 years - - {426 5) - (426 5)
Total (1,2801} (3,4760) (5703 1) (96) (10,468 8)
Cash and Recelpts

Trade shortterm  from financial

Undiscounted amounts receivable receivables deposits assets
£m £m Em

Within 1 year 160 8 14 162 2
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31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

<} Liquidity nsk {continued)

(n) Cash flows from non-derivative financial instruments (continued)
Payments on
2015 Trade financial
Undiscounted amounts payable Floating rate Fixed rate Index inked payables habilities
£m £m £m £m £m
within 1 year (42 7) (547 2) (238) (25 4) (639 1)
1 -2 years (1594) {132 8) (24 1) - (316 3)
2 -5years {661 5) (680 4) {74 3) - {1,416 2)
5-10 vears (223 5) (842 7) (304 1) - (1,370 3)
10 - 15 years (320) (1,192 0) (344 4) - (1,568 4)
15 - 20 years - (91 5) {123 2) - (214 7)
20 - 25 years - (60 9) (149 4) - (210 3)
25 - 30 years - (274 4) {178 8} - (453 2)
30 - 35 years - - (213 2) - (213 2)
35 - 40 years - - (650 0) - (650 0)
40 - 45 years - - (3,2527) - (3,252 7)
45 - 50 years - - (28 9) - (28 9)
50 - 55 years - - (445 1) - {445 1)
Total (1,1191) (3,8219) (5,812 () (25 4) (10,778 4)
Cash and Receipts from
Trade short term financal
Undiscounted amounts receivable recevables deposiis assets
£m £m £m
Within 1 year 156 5 1201 276 6

Index-linked debt includes loans with matunties up to 51 years The principal i1s revalued at fixed intervals and 1s linked to
movements in the Retall Price Index Interest payments are made biannually based on the revalued principal The principa!
repayment equals the revalued amount at matunty The payments included in the table above are estimates based on the forward
inflation rates published by the Bank of England at the balance sheet date
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KN Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

c) Liquidity nsk (continued)

(iif) Cash flows from derivative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse from the group’s denvative financial instruments The tables are
based on the undiscounted net cash inflows/{cutflows) on the denvative financial instruments that settle on a net basts and the
undiscounted gross inflows/(outflows) on those denvatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or receivable 1s
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates denved from
the forward curves existing at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below

Derivative habilities

Derivative assets

Interest rate Energy Cross currency swaps Interest rate Cross cummency swaps

swaps swaps Cash Cash swaps Cash Cash
2016 receipts payments receipts paymants Total
£m £m £m £m £m m £m £m
Within 1 year (22 6) (0 4) - - 28 10 (0 2) {19 4)
1-2years {22 3) {08) - - 28 10 (0 2) (19 7)
2 -5 years (63 0) (29 - - 60 31 (09) (57 7)
5-10 Years (62 1) - - - 17 235 (13 6) (50 5)
10 - 15 Years {12 0) - - - (0 4) 167 (93) (50)
15 - 20 Years 07) - - - ~ — - (0 7)
(182 7) 4 1) - - 127 453 (24 2) (153 0)

Denvative llabiities Derivative assels

Interest rate Energy Cross currency swaps Interest rate Cross currency swaps

swaps sWaps Cash Cash swaps Cash Cash
2015 receipts payments receipts payments Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
Within 1 year (29 1) (05) 396 6 (4217 42 525 (42 7) (407)
1-2 years {21 7) (01) - - - 09 {0 3) (21 2)
2 - 5 years (56 7) (02) - - - 28 {12) (55 3)
5-10 Years (74 6) - - - - 50 (2 4) (72 0)
10-15 Years {16 0) - - - - 320 (21 2) (52)
15 - 20 Years {(29) - - — - - - {2 9)
{201 0) {08 396 6 (421 7) 42 932 (67 8) (197 3)
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31 Risks arising from financial instruments (continued)

d) Inflation nsk

The group's parent company, Severn Trent Water, operates under a regulatory environment where its prices are linked to infiation
measured by RPI s operating prefits and cash flows are therefore exposed to changes in RPI In order to mitigate and partally
offset this nsk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt which pays interest at a fixed coupon based on a pnncipal amount that 1s
adjusted for the change in RPI during the life of the debt instrument (Index-inked debt) The amount of index-linked debt at the
balance sheet date 1s shown in section a) (1) interest rate nsk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shown in
section c) (i) cash flows from non-denvative financial instruments

inflation rate sensitivity analysts

The finance cost of the group's Index-linked debt instruments vanes with changes in RPI rather than interest rates  The sensitivity at
31 March of the group’s profit and equity to reasonably possible changes in RPI 1s set out in the following table This analysis
relates to financial instruments only and excludes any RPl impact on Sevem Trent Water's revenues and Regulated Capital Value,
or accounting for defined benefit pension schemes

2016 2015

+1 0% -10% +1 0% -1 0%

£m £m £m £m

Profit or loss (9 6} 96 (9 3) 93
Equity (96) 9¢ (93) 93

32 Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial instruments to hedge exposures to changes In exchange rates and interest rates Hedge
accounting 1s adopted for such instruments where the critena set out in IAS 39 are met

a) Fair value hedges

{1) Cross currency swaps

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than sterling Cross currency swaps are entered into at the time that the
debt 1s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sierling debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order to mitigate the group's
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations Where the terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying
deid, the swaps are expected to be effective hedges

At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps designated as farr value hedges were as follows

Notional principal amount Fair value

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £m £m £m

US dollar - 270 - 73
Euro 114 114 98 80
Yen 85 85 79 55
199 469 177 208
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

32 Hedge Accounting (continued)

a) Fair value hedges (continued}

(n) Interest rate swaps

During the year the group raised £225 million of fixed rate debt through its US Private Placement programme In line with the
strategy {o increase the proportion of debt at floating rates this was swapped to floating rate debt via interest rate swaps These
swaps have been designated as hedging instruments to hedge the changes in fair value of the debt arising from movements In
interest rates Since the terms of the recevable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt the swaps are
expected to be effective hedges

Average contract fixed

interest rate Netional principal amount Fair value

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Period to maturity % % £m £m £m £m
10 - 20 years 336% - 2250 - 12 1 -

b} Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of electnecity at six-maonthly intervals up to March 2020

Details of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summarised below

Notional contractad

Average contract price amount Fair value

2016 2015 2016 2015 20186 2015

Penod to matunty £/MWh £/MWh MWh MWh £m £m
Less than 1 year 498 544 21,960 70,272 (0 4) (0 5)
1-2 years 436 498 66,272 21,960 (08) (0 1)
2-5 years 485 467 227,221 162,000 (20) (02)
315,453 254,232 (32) (0 8)

11
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

33 Share based payments

The group operates a number of share based remuneration schemes for employees Dunng the penod, the group recognised total
expenses of £5 0 milhon (2015 £7 6 million) related to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share pnice dunng the period was £21 44 (2015 £1974)

At 31 March 2016, there were no options exercisable (2015 none) under any of the share based remuneration schemes

a) Long Term Incentive Plans {'LTIP's)

Under the LTIPs, conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and senior staff Awards are subject to
performance conditions and continued employment throughout the vesting period

Awards outstanding
Awards made under the LTIP

The 2013 and 2014 LTIP awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess
of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMP5 business plan over a three year vesting penod The 2015 LTIP awards are
subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulatory Equity in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent
Water AMPG business plan over a three year vesting perniod It has been assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market
conditions will be 100% (2015 100%})

Details of changes in the number of awards cutstanding duning the year are set cut below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2014 265,648
Granted dunng the year 295,567
Vested during the year (138,559)
Lapsed dunng the year (14,225)
Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2015 408,431
Granted dunng the year 235,670
Vested dunng the year {132,597)
Lapsed during the year (57,825)
Qutstanding at 31 March 2016 453,679

Detalls of LTIP awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of awards

Date of grant Nommal date of vasting 2016 2015
July 2012 2015 - 123,734
July 2013 2016 136,784 124,513
July 2014 2017 157,286 160,184
July 2015 2018 159,609 —

453,679 408,421
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33 Share based payments {continued)

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the Board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the company to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a penod of three or five years

Optlions outstanding

Details of changes in the number of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of share Weighted average

options exercise price .
Outstanding at 1 Apni 2014 2,711,088 1,125p :
Granted dunng the year 1,019,025 1,584p
Forfeited during the year (52,566) 1,266p
Cancelled dunng the year (59,887) 1,300p
Exercised durnng the year (683,778) 943p
Lapsed during the year (4,286) 1,067p
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2015 2,929,596 1,321p
Granted during the year 719,826 1,724p
Forfeited during the year (99,635) 1,399p
Cancelled dunng the year (63,461) 1,487p
Exercised dunng the year (682,463) 1,029p
Lapsed during the year {18,286} 1,216p
Outstanding at 31 March 2016 2,785,577 1,491p

Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of share options

Date of grant Normal date of exercise Option price 2016 2015
January 2010 2015 808p - 288,894
January 2011 2016 1,137p 95,183 109,804
January 2012 2015 or 2017 1177p 88,193 437,273
January 2013 2016 or 2018 1,241p 440,110 496,489
January 2014 2017 or 2019 1,331p 512,207 584,406
January 2015 2018 or 2020 1,584p 931,560 1,012,730
January 2016 2019 or 2021 1,724p 718,324 -

2,785,577 2,929,596
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33 Share based payments (continued)

c) Share Matching Plan (‘SMP’)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of STEC have recewved matching share awards over those shares which had been
acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum ratio
of one matching share for every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod No matching shares have been

awarded n the current year

Matching shares are subject 1o total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51 - 150 by

market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dividends paid through the performance penod on the basis of
such notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Severn Trent
Plc Remuneration Commitiee determines that the performance conditrons have been met provided that the partictpant remains in

employment at the end of the performance penod
Details of changes in the number of awards outstanding dunng the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2014 69,138
Lapsed dunng the year (8,183)
Vested during the year (11,225)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2015 49,730
Lapsed during the year (22,117)
Outstanding at 31 March 2016 27,613

Details of share matching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of awards

Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2016 2015
May 2012 May 2015 - 17,676
May 2013 May 2016 27,613 32,054
27,613 49,730
d) Fair value calculations
The farr values of the share awards made and share options granted during the year were calculated using the Black Scholes
method The principal assumptions and data are out below
2016 2015
LTIP SAYE LTIP SAYE
3 year 5 year 3 year 5 year
scheme scheme scheme scheme
Share price at grant date 2,167p 2,151p 2,151p 1.918p 2,000p 2,000p
Option hfe {years) 30 35 55 30 35 55
Vesting period (years) 30 30 50 30 30 50
Expected volatihty 18 2% 18 2% 18 2% 18 2% 18 2% 18 2%
Expected dividend yield 37% 3% 37% 4 4% 42% 4 2%
Risk free rate nia 08% 13% n/a 07% 11%
Fair value per share 1,938p 363p 362p 1,679p 326p 311p

Expected volatiily 1s measured over the three years pnor to the date of grant of the awards or share options Volatility has been

calculated based on historical share pnce movements

The nsk free rate 15 denved from yields ai the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options

The dividend yield 1s calculated using the expected dividend for the year divided by the share pnce at the date of grant

11€



Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

34 Cash flow statement

a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2016 2015
£m £

Profit before interest and tax 5197 5151
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2%03 2767
Amortisation of intangible assets 199 222
Pension service cost 07) 409
Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs 23 29
Defined benefit pension scheme contributions (25 7) {76 6)
Share based payments charge 50 76
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 29) (81
Deferred iIncome movement (10 5} (10 1)
Provisions charged to the income statement 48 106
Utiisation of provisions for liabiities and charges (22) (10 5)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 8000 7707
Decrease n inventory 03 02
Decrease in amounts recervable from related companies 48 16
Increase in amounts receivable (137) (34 2)
Increase in amounts payable 84 140
Cash generated from operations 7998 752 3
Tax pad (20 0) (26 5)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7798 7258

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions 1o property, plant and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases (2015 nil) Assets transferred

from developers at no cost were recogrused at therr fair value of £24 8 milion (2015 £29 8 million)

¢} Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the iIncome statement

2016 2015
£m £m
Restructunng costs (30) (24 1)
Disposal of fixed assels - 94
(30) (14 7)
d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RPI uplift on Other As at
1 Apnl Fair value index-linked Fareign non cash 31 March
2015 Cash flow  adjustments debt exchange movements 2016

£m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Cash and cash eguivalents 1201 (118 7) - - - (14) -
Bank overdrafts - 42) - - - 14 (2 8)
Net cash and cash equivalents 120 1 (122 9) - - - - {2 8)
Loans payable to parent company (27 0) (26 0) - - - - {53 0)
Bank loans (1,240 7) 300 - {14) - {01y (1,212.2)
Other loans (3,368 8) (47 8) (2 5) (12 6) (32 6) 79 (3,456 4)
Finance leases (180 0) 628 - - - - {117 2)
Cross currency swaps (4 4} - 412 - - 87) 281
Net debt (4,700 8) {103 9) 387 (14 0) (32 6) (09) (4,8135)




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

35 Contingent liabilities

a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liability 1s expected to anse in
respect of either bonds or guarantees

b) Banking arrangements
The banking arrangements of the group operate on a pooled basis with certain fellow group undertakings Under these

arrangements participating companies guarantee each others balances only to the extent that their credit balances can be offset
against overdrawn balances of other Severn Trent group companies

At 31 March 2016 the company's maximum hability under these arrangements was £1 4 million (2015 £5 1 million)

36 Financial and other commitments

a) Investment expenditure commitments

2016 2015
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 1308 733

In addition to these contraciual commitments, the group has longer term expenditure plans which include investments to achieve
improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat) and to provide for growth in demand
for water and waste water services

b} Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

Within 1 year 14 18
2 - 5 years 47 40
After more than 5 years 51 47
112 105

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

12C




Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

37 Post balance sheet events

Water Plus joint venture

On 1 March 2016 the group announced is intention, subject fo approval from the Competition and Markets Authonty ('CMA') to
enter into a joint venture with United Utiities PLC to compete 1n the non-household water and waste water retail market in Great

Bntain On 3 May the CMA announced approval of the joint venture On this date the group deternmuned that completion of the
proposed transaction became highly probable and its nen-household retail business was classified as a disposal group and

discontinued operation with effect from this date

38 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not included in this note Transactions between the group and ultimate parent Severn Trent Plc are disclosed below

Trading transactions

Transactions with fellow
subsidiary undertakings

Transachions with ultimate parent

2016 2015 2016 2015
£m £m £m £m
Sale of services 17 21 - -
Purchase of services 73 97 14 11
Amounts due from related parties 83 38 17 125
Amounts due to related parties (21) (10) (03) (13)
Net interest charge due (lo)/from related parties - - (01) 03
Loans due to related parties - - {53 0) (27 0)
Dividends payable fo related parties (310 0) (203 7) - -
(294 8) (189 1) {50 3) (14 4)
The related parties are fellow subsidiary undertakings and the ultimate parent Severn Trent Plc All outstanding balances will be
settled within one year, including loans
Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel compnse the members of STEC dunng the year
The remuneratton of the directors 1s included within the amounts disclosed below
2016 2015
£m £m
Short term employee benefits 60 61
Post employment benefits 01 02
Termination benefits - 02
Share based payments 27 40
88 105

121



Notes to the group financial statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

39 Subsidiary undertakings

Principal subsidiary undertakings

The group's subsidiary undertakings at 31 March 2016 are shown below Unless otherwise disctosed, all subsidiary undertakings
are incorporated in the UK, are 100% owned, and with a share class of ordinary shares

Country of operation Percentage of share Class of share capital

Name and ncorporation capital held held

Biogas Generation Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
East Worcester Water Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent Funding Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent LCP Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Urnited Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares
Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc United Kingdom 100% Ordinary Shares

The group alse has an indirect investment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a imited partnership regisiered in Scotland, as a
result of Severn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

40 Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s Severn Trent Draycote Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controling party 1s Severn Trent Plc, which i1s the parent undertaking and controlling party of
the smallest and {argest group to consolidate these financial statements Copies of the Severn Trent Plc consolidated financiat
statements can be obtained from Severn Trent Plc's registrars at Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex,
BN9SZ 6DA

[N
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Notes 2016 2015
£m £fm

Turnover 4 1,550 2 15812
Net operating costs before exceptional items 5 (1,031 5) (1,044 6)
Exceptional operating items 6 10 (21 5)
Total net operating costs (1,030 5) (1,066 1)
Profit before interest and tax 5197 5151
Finance income 9 800 100 9
Finance costs 10 (295 0) (325 0)
Net finance costs (2150) (224 1)
Gains/{losses) on financial instruments 11 49 (159 8)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3086 1312
Current tax excluding exceptional tax credit 12 (537) (36 6)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit 12 (9 3) 130
Excephional tax credit 12 800 -
Total tax on profit on ordinary activities 12 170 (23 6)
Profit for the financial year 326 6 107 6

All results are from continuing operations in both the current and preceding year




Severn Trent Water Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
Em £m
Profit for the year 3266 107 6
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Iterns that will not be reclassified to the income statement
Net actuartal gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 150 3 (139 1)
Tax on net actuanal gain/loss (28 5) 263
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate (83) -
1135 (112 8)
Iltems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Loss on cash flow hedges {24) (10 5)
Deferred tax on loss on cash flow hedges 04 21
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred 1o the iIncome statement in the year 93 416
Deferred tax on transfers to the iIncome statement {16) (83)
57 249
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year 1192 (87 9)
Total comprehensive income for the year 4458 197




Severn Trent Water Limited

Balance sheet
As at 31 March 2016

Notes 2016 2015 2014
Restated Restated
£m £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 13 13
Other intangible fixed assets 14 67.0 651 719
Tangible fixed assets 15 76417 74826 72802
{nvestments in subsidianes 16 3479 347 9 347 9
Denvative financial assets 22 40.2 135 302
8,098 1 7.9104 77315
Current assets
Inventory 59 61 64
Trade and other receivables amounts falling due after more than one year 17 2918 294 5 296 9
Trade and other receivables amounts faling due within one year 17 4378 454 4 436 3
Derivative financial assets 22 - 115 94
Cash and cash equivalents - 1191 198
7355 8856 768 8
Trade and other payables amounts falling due within one year 19 (768 4) (909 7) (732 3)
Net current liabilities {329) (24 1) 365
Total assets less current habilities 8,065 2 7,886 3 7,768 0
Trade and other payables amounts falling due after more than cne year 20 {6,123 2) (5,893 2) (5,687 3)
Retirement benefit obligations 23 (309 5) (468 9) (348 3)
Provisions for iiabiiities and charges 24 (692 7) (721 9) {753 1)
Net assets 9398 802 3 9793
Equity
Called up share capital 26 1000 100 ¢ 100 0
Hedging reserve 27 {92 7) (98 4) (123 3)
Retained eamings 9325 8007 1,002 6
Total equity 9398 8023 979 3

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 May 2016 They were signed on its behalf by

o

Andrew Duff James Bowling
Chairman Chref Financial Officer
23 May 2016

Company Number 02366686




Severn Trent Water Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Share Hedging Retained
capltal reserve earn:ngs Total
£m £m £m £m
Al 1 Apnl 2014 1000 (123 3) 1,056 9 1,033 6
Restatement - — (54 3) (54 3)
At 1 Apnl 2014 after restatement 1000 (123 3) 1,002 6 979 3
Profit for the year - - 107 6 107 6
Loss on cash flow hedges - (10 5} - (10 5)
Deferred tax on losses on cash flow hedges - 21 - 21
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred o the income statement - 4186 - 416
Deferred tax on transfers to the income statement - (83) - (8 3)
Net actuanal losses - - {139 1) (139 1)
Tax on net actuanal losses - - 263 263
Total comprehensive income for the year - 249 (52) 197
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - 76 76
- shares purchased - - {(24) (2 4)
Current tax on share based payments - - 13 13
Deferred tax on share based payments - - "05 05
Dividends paid - - (203 7) (203 7)
At 31 March 2015 after restatement 100 0 (98 4) 8007 802 3
Profit for the year - - 326 6 3266
Loss on cash flow hedges - (2 4) - (2 4)
Deferred tax on loss on cash flow hedges - 04 - 04
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement - 93 - 93
Deferred tax on transfers o the income statement - (16) - {16)
Net actuanal gains - - 150 3 150 3
Tax on net actuanal gains - - (28 5) (28 5)
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate - - {8 3) (8 3}
Total comprehensive income for the year - 57 440 1 4458
Share options and LTIPs
- value of employees’ services - - 50 50
- shares purchased - - (40) 40)
Current tax on share based payments - - 16 16
Deferred tax on share based payments - - (09) 09
Dividends paid - - (310 0) (310 0)
At 31 March 2016 1000 92 7) 9325 9398




Severn Trent Water Limited

Cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
Note £m £m
Cash generated from operations 29 808 7 760 9
Tax paid (19 3} (24 9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 789 4 7360
Investing activities
Interest received 08 11
Interest receved from Intercompany finance leases 51 52
Dividends received from subsidianes - 82
Proceeds on disposal of intangible and tangible assets 126 105
Purchases of intangible assets (219) (15 4)
Purchases of tangible assets (411 5) (423 8)
Contnbutions and grants received 350 362
Net cash used in investing activities (379 9) (378 0)
Financing activities
Interest paid (187 7} (206 5)
Interest element of finance lease payments (8 5) {8 8)
Interest element of iIntercompany finance lease payments (11 0} (11 3)
Payments to close out interest rate swaps - (139 2)
Dividends paid to owners of the company (310 0) (203 7)
Repayments of borrowings (485 0) -
Repaymenis of intercompany borrowings (423 9} (348 9)
New loans raised 926 4 684 3
New intercompany loans raised 47 4 119
Repaymenis of obligations under finance leases (74 2} (319)
Repayments of obhgations under intercompany finance leases (2 8) (27)
Receipts from intercompany finance lease 0.5 05
Purchase of shares in ulimate parent company (4 0} (24)
Net cash used in financing activities {532 8) (258 7)
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents (123 3} 993
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 1191 198
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod (4 2) 1191




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies

a) Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis (see Directors’ report) under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluaton of certain financial assets and habilibes at fair value, and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and comply with the requirements of the United Kingdom Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act’) The pnncipal
accounting policies, which have been applied consistently in the current and preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the
Companies Act 2008 The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity as defined in FRS 100 'Financial Reporting Standard 100’
and accordingly, the company has elected to apply FRS 101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’

Therefore the recogrition and measurement requirements of EU-adopted IFRS have been applied, with amendments where necessary
in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 {S| 2008/410) as the parent company financial statements are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As permitted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to
share based payments, financtal instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets,
standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and related party transactions Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the
consolidated financial statements and also where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group accounts of Severn Trent Pic
The group accounts of Severn Trent Plc are available to the public and can be obtained as set out In note 33

(1) Pnior year restatement

The comparative balance sheet has been restated to reflect a reclassification between tangible fixed assets and non-current trade and
other payables Contnbutions which had been recerved in previous years in relation to infrastructure assets, and which had a carmrying
value of £294 5 million as at 31 March 2014 were identified as being deducted from the carrying value of tangible fixed assets In order
to comply with the requirements of 1AS 16 and IAS 18, these contnibutions have been reclassified from tangible fixed assets to non-
current trade and other payables

Whilst finalising the proposed adjusiments, it was noted that amortisation was not charged on these contributions before 2004 when the
accounting treatment was clanfied and therefore an addittonal £13 5m of amortisation has been credited to opening retained eamings

In addition, the restated balances result in an increased total tax habihity of £67 8 million (£1 9 millien current fax and £65 9 million
deferred tax) as the carrying value of the underlying infrastructure assets previously shown net reduced the deferred tax habity
previously calculated The total tax restatement of £67 8 million was charged to opening retained eamings

Tangible fixed assets have been analysed to disclose separately the carrying value of assets under construction This resulted In a
further adjustment between tangible and intangible fixed assets of £2 6 million

The adjustment to the opening balances at 1 Apnl 2014 .1s

Tangtble fixed Other intangible Accruals and Retained

assets fixed assets  deferred income Current tax Deferred tax €amings

At 31 March 2014 6,988 3 693 (758 5) 507 (683 0) (1,056 9)
Restatement 2019 26 (281 0} (19) {65 9) 543
After restatement 7,280 2 719 {1,039 5) 48 8 {748 9) (1,002 6)
At 31 March 2015 7,1907 625 (827 3) 256 (651 5) (855 0)
Restatement 2919 26 (281 0) {(19) (65 9) 54 3
After restatement 7,482 6 651 (1,108 3} 237 (717 4) {1,002 6)




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)

¢} Revenue recognition
Revenue includes turnover and interest ncome

Turnover represents the farr value of consideration recevable, excluding value added tax, in the ordinary course of business for
services provided Turnover 1s not recognised until the service has been provided 1o the custocmer Turnover includes an estimate of the
amount of mains water and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrual 1s estimated using a defined methodology based
upon a measure of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which is calculated from histoncal billing information

Interest iIncome s accrued on a time basis by reference to the prinaipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

d) Interest receivable and similar income
Interest income 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable

Dividend income from investments 1s recognised when the company's nights 1o receive payment have been established Interest and
dividend income are included in finance income

€) Exceptional items

Exceptional tems are income or expenditure, which individually or, if of a similar type, in aggregate should, in the opinion of the
directors, be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature if the financial statements are to give a true and fair view

f) Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year The company's liability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s provided i full on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and therr carrying
amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 1s realised
or the deferred 1ax liability 1s settled

A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the extent it 1s probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in the future to utihse it

Deferred tax assets and habiities are offset when there i1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
habilities

g} Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair value of the net assets acquired Fair value
adjustments based con provisional estimates are amended within one year of the acquisition, If required, with a corresponding
adjustment to goodwill Goodwill Is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy set out in note 11} below and carned at cost less
accumulated impairment losses




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies (continued)

h) Other intangible fixed assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost Following initial recognition, the histoncal cost model 1s applied

Finite Ife intangible assets are amorbised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Amortisatton charged on intangible assets i1s taken 1o the income statement through operating costs
Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment where indicators of mpairment exist, (see 1) below)

Development expenditure I1s capitalised as an intangible fixed asset and wntten off cver its expected useful economic life where the
following cniteria are met
+ 1tis technically feasible to create and make the asset available for use or sale,
there are adequate resources avallable to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,
there 1s the intention and ability 1o use or sell the asset,
it 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
the development cost can be measured rehably

Research expenditure 1s expensed when it 1s incurred

i) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are held at cost (or at deemed cost for infrastructure assets on transition to FRS 101) less accumulated
depreciation Expenditure on tangible fixed assets relating to research and development projects 1s capitalised and wnitten off over the
expected useful lives of those assets

The costs of like for like replacement of infrastructure components are recognised in the income statement as they anse Expenditure
which results in enhancements to the operating capability of the infrastructure networks 1s capitalised

Where tangible fixed assets are transferred to the company from customers or developers, the farr value of the asset transferred 1s
recognised In the balance sheet Fair value I1s determined based on estimated depreciated replacement cost Where the transfer 1s in
exchange for connection 1o the network and there is no further obligation, the corresponding credit is recognised immediately in
turnover Where the transfer 1s considered to be linked to the provision of ongoing services the corresponding credit 1s recorded In
deferred income and released to operating costs over the expected useful lives of the related assets

Where assets take a substantial penod of ime to get ready for their intended use, the borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the
acquisition, construction or production of these assels are added to their cost

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated to their estimaled residual values over therr estimated useful lives, with the exception of freehold
land which 1s not depreciated Assets under construction are not depreciated until ccmmissioned

The estimated useful ives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservoirs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80 - 150
Sewers 150 - 200
Other assets
Buildings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40

Vehicles and mobile plant 2-15




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies {continued)

J)) Leased assets

Leases where the company obtains assets which transfer substantally all the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset 1o the
company are treated as finance leases, the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease
payments s capitalised as an assel and a corresponding hability representing the obligation to the lessor is recognised Lease
payments are treated as consisting of a capital element and a finance charge, the capital element reducing the obligation to the lessor
and the finance charge being wntiten off to the income statement at a constant rate over the penod of the lease in proportion 1o the
capital amount outstanding Depreciation 1s charged over the shorter of the esbmated useful Iife and the lease period

Leases where substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating leases Rental
costs ansing under operaling leases are expensed on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land are normally
treated as operating leases, unless ownership Is transferred to the company at the end of the lease

Where the company transfers substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a lessee (finance lease), the assels are
accounted for as if they had been sold, and the net investment in the lease 1s shown as a receivable due from the lessee Over the
lease term, rentals are apportioned between a reduction in the net investment in the lease and finance lease income, such that finance
lease tncome produces a constant rate of return on the net cash investment in the lease Finance lease iIncome is included within
finance income

k) Grants and contributions

Grants and centributions received in respect of fixed assets, including certain charges made as a result of new connections to the water
and sewerage networks, are treated as deferred income and released to operating costs over the useful economic Iife of those fixed
assels

Grants and contributions which are given in compensation for expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the pernod that they become receivable

1) Impairment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, a tangible fixed asset, or any other fixed asset 1s estmated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount Severn Trent Water 1s considered to be a single cash-generating
unit Therefore where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the company as a whole Recoverable amount 1s the higher of farr value less costs to sell or estimated value In
use al the date the impairment review i1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the
assel in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third parties, less costs of disposal Value in use represents the
present value of future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used 1s based on the company's estimated cost of capital

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews are also carned out if there is an indication that an impairment may have
occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure that fixed assets are not carned above their estimated recoverable amounts

Imparments are recognised immediately in the iIncome statement

m) Investments in subsidianies

Investments in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropnate, prowvisions for impairment Investments in subsidianes are
revtewed for impairment in line with note 11) when indicators of impairment have been identified

n) lnventory

Inventory and work In progress is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes labour, matenais, transpor and
attnbulable overheads



Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies (continued) \

o) Trade debtors
Trade debtors, are measured at fair value on initial recognition [f there 1s objective evidence that the assel 1s impaired, it1s written
down to its recoverable amount and the irrecoverable amount I1s recognised as an expense in operating costs

Debtors that are assessed not to be impaired individually are assessed collectively for impairment by reference to the company's
historical collection experience for receivables of similar age

p} Retirement benefits

(1) Defined benefit schemes

The company is the sponsoring employer of the Severn Trent group's defined benefit pension schemes As there 1s no contractual
agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group entittes this company has recogrised the full cost
and net deficit relating to the schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme habiities 1s recorded on
the balance sheet as a retirement benefit asset or ocbligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured at fair value using bid pnce for assets with quoted prices Defined benefit
pension scheme liabtlities are measured al the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit method and
discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to the liability Service cost,
which 1s the increase In the present value of the habihties of the group's defined benefit pension schemes expecled to anse from
employee service in the period, 1s included in operating costs Finance income and cost are calculated by applying the discount rate
used to determine the present value of the scheme liabilities at the opening balance sheet date to the value of the scheme assets or
liabllites respectively

Actuarial gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments, changes in acluanal assumptions and amendments to pension plans
are charged or credited to eguity and recorded in the statement of comprehensive income Contnbutions made by other Severn Trent
group companies have been disclosed within actuanal gains and losses in the statement of comprehensive income

(1) Defined contnbution schemes
The company participates in the Severn Trent group's defined contribution pensiton schemes Coninbutions to defined contnbution
pension schemes are charged to the income statement n the penod in which they fall due

q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised where
+« there s a present obligation as a result of a past event,
« tis probable that there will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation, and
¢ arelable estimate of this amount can be made

Self-insurance provisions are recognised for claims notified and for claims incurred but which have not yet been notified, based on
advice from the ultimate parent company’s independent insurance advisers

Provisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific 1o the habihty where the effect 1s
material

r} Borrowings
The accounting policy for borrowings that are the hedged item in a fair value hedge s set outin note 1s}

All other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less issue costs After imitial recognition, borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method whereby interest and 1ssue costs are charged to the income
statement and added to the carrying value of borrowings at a constant rate in proportion to the capital amount outstanding

Index-linked debt 1s adjusted for changes in the relevant inflation index and changes in value are charged to finance costs

Borrowings denominated in foreign currency are translated to sterling at the spot rate on the balance sheet date Exchange gains or
losses resulting from this are credited or charged to gains/losses on financial Instruments




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting policies {continued)

s) Denvative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are stated at farr value, including accrued interest Fair value i1s determined using the methodology
descnbed in note 22 d} The accounting policy for changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative 1s designated as a hedging
instrument The various accounting policies are descrnbed below

Interest receivable or payable in respect of denvative financial instrurnents 15 included m finance income or costs

Denvatives not designated as hedging instruments
Gains or losses ansing on remeasurement of denvative financial instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments are
recognised tn gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement

Denvatives designated as hedging mstruments
The company uses derivative financial instruments such as cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to hedge its nsks associated with foreign currency and iterest rate fluctuations

At the inception of each hedge relationship, the company documents
+ the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged iem,
= its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge transaction, and
« the resulls of tests fo determine whether the hedging instrument 1s expected to be highly effective in coffsetting changes in farr
values or cash flows (as appropnate) of the hedged item

The company continues to test and document the effectiveness of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, 1s sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualfies for
hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1s in a fair value hedging relationship 1t 1s remeasured for changes In farr value of the hedged risk at the
balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement The gan or
loss on the corresponding hedging instrument 1s also taken to gains/losses on financial instruments in the Income statement so that the
effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on the hedged item

If hedge accounting I1s discontinued, the fair value adjustment ansing from the hedged risk on the hedged itermn 1s amortised to the
income statement over the anticipated remaining life of the hedged item

Cash flow hedges

The porlion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that 1s determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised in equity and the
ineffective portion 1s charged to gainsflosses on financial instruments in the iIncome statement When the gain or loss from the hedged
underlying transaction i1s recognised in the Income statement, the gains or losses on the hedging instrument that have previously been
recoghised In equity are recycled through gainsflosses on financial instruments in the iIncome statement

If hedge accounting 1s discentinued, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument previously recognised in equity 1s held in
equity until the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to gains/losses on financial instruments in the income statement if the
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur If the hedging instrument ss terminated, the gains and losses previously recognised
in equity are transferred to the income statement From this point the denvative 1s accounted for in the same way as denvatives not
designated as hedging instruments

Embedded denvatives
Where a contract includes terms that cause some of its cash flows to vary in a similar way to a denvative financial instrument, that part
of the contract 1s considered to be an embedded denvative

Embedded denvatives are separated from the coniract and measured at farr vatue with gains and losses taken to the income statement
if

» the nsks and charactenstics of the embedded dernvative are not closely related to those of the contract, and

s the contract 15 not carried at fair value with gains and losses reported in the income statement

In all other cases embedded denvatives are accounted for in ine with the accounting policy for the contract as a whole
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1 Accounting policies (continued)

t} Share based payments

The Severn Trent group operates a number of equity settled share based compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant is recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The fair value of employee services 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the awards granted, calculated using an approprate
prcing model, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that are not expected
to vest as a result of falling to meet a non-market condition

The grant of awards of shares of the ullimate parent company 15 treated as a capital contnbution and credited to reserves When
awards vest, payments made to the ultimate parent company for the 1ssue of shares are charged against the capital contributtons
previously received in respect of the same awards Any payments in excess of capital contnbutions are treated as distnbutions

u) Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions ansing dunng the year are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling on the date of the
transaction All profits and losses on exchange arising dunng the year are dealt with through the income statement

2 New accounting policies and future requirements

In the current financial year there have been no new accounting policies which have been adopted which have had a matenal impact on
the financial statements

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were 1n i1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ i1s likely to affect the measurement and disclosure of financial instruments This standard has not yet
been adopted by the EU

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with custemers’ will affect the measurement and recogniticn of revenue with effect from 1 Apnl 2018
subject to adoption by the EU The impacts of the changes arising from the standard have not yet been quantified

IFRS 16 'Leases’ sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract, 1e the customer ('lessee’) and the supplier (lessor’} and will be effective from 1 Apnl 2019 The impacts of the changes ansing
from the standard have not yet been quantified
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3 Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, the company 15 required to make certain jJudgements, estmates and
assumplions that it believes are reasonable based on the information available Although these estimates are based on management's
best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates

The more significant judgements were

(a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax pesitions requires jJudgements to be made regarding the result of negotations with and enquines
from tax authonties The assessments made are based on advice from independent tax advisers and the stalus of ongoing discussions
with the tax authonty

The key accounting estimates were

a) Depreciation and carrying amounts of tangible fixed assels

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying value for tangible fixed assets requires estimates 1o be made of the useful
ives of the assets The estimates are based on engineering data and the company’s experience of similar assets Details are set out In
note 1)

b) Retirement benefit obligations

As the sponsonng employer of the Severn Trent group's defined benefit pension schemes, the company recognises the full cost and
net deficit relating to the schemes Determining the amount of retirement benefit obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits
requires assumptions to be made concerning long term interest rates, inflation, pension increases and longevity of current and future
pensioners Changes in these assumptions could significantly impact the amount of the obligations or the cost of providing such
benefits The company makes assumptions concerning these matters with the assistance of advice from independent qualified
actuaries Details of the assumptions made are set out in note 23 a) to the financial statements

c) Unbiiled revenue

The company raises bills and recognises revenue In accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the imits established by the
penodic regulatory pnice review processes For water and waste water customers with water meters, the amount recognised 1s dependent
upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter read and the year
end Meters are read on a cyclical basis and the group recogrises revenue for unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last
billing to the end of the financial year The estimated usage Is based on histoncal data, judgement and assumptions

d) Prowvision for impairment of trade recewvables
Provisions are made against frade receivables based on histoncal expenence of levels of recovery from accounts in a particular ageing
category The actual amounts collected could differ from the estimated level of recovery which could impact operating results

4 Revenue

The principal activity of the company 1s the treatment and the provision of water and the removal of waste water in England and Wales

|

2016 2015 L

£m £m I

Regulated water and waste water services 1,541 3 15727 ’
Other services 89 85
Total turnover 1,550 2 15812
Diwvidend income (note 9) - 82
Interest receivable (note 9) 123 1286
1,562 5 16020
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5 Net operating costs

2016

2015

Before

Before

exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
items items Total items lems Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Wages and salanes 1930 (0 3) 1927 1931 106 2037
Social secunty costs 196 - 196 175 01 176
Pension costs 181 (07) 174 312 179 491
Share based payments 50 - 30 76 - 76
Total employee costs 2357 (10} 2347 2494 286 2780
Power 616 - 616 639 - 639
Carbon reduction commitment 73 - 73 73 - 73
Raw matenals and consumables 47 2 - 47 2 47 4 - 47 4
Rates 76 8 - 768 734 - 734
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 237 - 237 284 - 28 4
Service charges 324 - 324 3286 - 326
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2903 - 290 3 2767 - 276 7
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 199 - 199 222 - 222
infrastructure maintenance expenditure 126 0 - 126 0 1348 - 134 8
Hired and contracted services 1725 - 1725 164 0 - 164 0
Operating lease rentals
- land and buildings 03 - 03 02 - 02
- other 03 - 03 - - -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (29) - (29) (0 4) (77) (8 1)
Research and development expenditure 35 - 35 46 - 46
Ofwat license fees 28 - 28 53 - 53
Other operating costs 415 - 415 403 06 409
Other operating iIncome (32 - (32) (30) - (30}
1,1357 {10) 1,1347 1,147 1 215 1,168 6
Release from deferred income {10 5) - (10 5) (10 1) - {10 1)
Own work capitalised (93 7) - 93 7) (92 4) - (92 4)
1,031 5 {1 0) 1,030 5 1,044 6 215 1,066 1
Further details of exceptional items are given in note 6
Dunng the year the following fees wete charged by the auditors
2016 2015
£m £rm
Fees payable to the company's auditors for
- the audit of the company's annual accounts 02 02
- other assurance services 02 03
Total audit fees 04 05
Fees payable to the company's auditors for non-audit services - 01
04 06




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

6 Exceptional items before tax
2016 2015
£m £m
Restructuning costs (10} 292
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - {77
(10) 215
7 Employee information
Average number of employees {Including executive directors) during the year
2016 2015
Number Number
Average number of employees 5,236 5,532

8 Directors’ interests and remuneration

a} Directors’ interests

All of the directors as at the end of the year are also directors of Severn Trent Ple, the ultimate parent undertaking, and their interests in
the share capital of that company are disclosed in the Severn Trent Plc Annuat Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2016

Share options were granted and exercised In accordance with the Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme as appropriate

The executive directors have further interests in Severn Trent Plc ordinary shares of 871744 p each by virtue of having received
contingent awards of shares under the Severn Trent Long Term Incentive Plan ('LTIP'), deferred shares under the Severn Trent Annual

Bonus Scheme and contingent shares under the Share Matching Plan

The indwidual interests, which represent the maximum aggregate number of shares to which each individual could become entitled, are

disclosed in the Annual Report and Accounts of Severn Trent Plc for the year ended 31 March 2016

b) Directors’ remuneration

The following table shows the remuneration due to directors for their services to the company dunng the year

2016 2015

£m £Em

Short term employee benefits 30 43
Post employment benefits 01 01
Share based payments 12 22
43 66

The emecluments of the non-executive directors are paid by Severn Trent Plc

There were no retirement benefits accruing to directors (2015 none) under a defined benefit scheme and cne director (2015 four

directors) under a defined contribution scheme

Two directors (2015 six directors) exercised share options or received LTIP awards which vested dunng the year
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8 Directors’ interests and remuneration (continued)

c) Highest paid director

2016 2015
£m £m
Aggregate emoluments (excluding pension contnbutions) 23 20
Pension contnbutions 01 01
24 21
The highest paid director at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015 was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme
9 Finance income
2016 2015
£m £m
Interest Income earned on
- bank deposits 02 c4
- amounts due from group undertakings 17 16
- amountis due from group undertakings for finance leases 52 52
Other finance income 52 54
Total interest receivable 123 126
Dividend income - 82
Interest income on defined benefit scheme assets 677 801
800 1009
10 Finance costs
2016 2015
£m £m
Interest charged on
- amounts payable to group undertakings (170 7) (191 0)
- amounts payable to group undertakings from finance leases (11 0) (112)
- finance leases (84) (87)
- bank and other loans {219) (19 5)
Total berrowing costs (212 0) (230 4)
Other finance expenses {02) (01}
Pension interest cost {82 8) (94 5)
(295 0) (325 0)

Borrowing costs of £16 1 milhon (2015 £19 1 milion) incurred funding ehgible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest rate

of 4 41% (2015 5 00%) Tax relief of £3 3 million (2015 £4 0 million) was clamed on these costs which was credited to the income

statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £2 9 million (2015 £3 8 million)

LN
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1 Gains/{losses) on financial instruments
2018 2015 !
£m Em
Gain on swaps used as hedging instruments in fair value hedges 07 02 :
Gain ansing on debt in fair value hedges 05 03 ‘
Exchange (loss)/gain on other loans (5.9) 25
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (93) (416}
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges - 23 |
Gain/(loss) ansing on swaps where hedge accounting i1s not applied 189 (123 5) !
49 (159 8) ‘
i
12 Taxation \
|
a) Analysis of tax (credit)/charge in the year ‘
2016 2015 ‘
Before Exceptional Befcre ‘
exceptional tax tax Total exceptional tax !
£m Em £m £m 1
Current tax !
UK corporation tax at 20% {2015 21%) [
- current year 56 5 - 565 48 2
- adjustment 1n respect of pnor years {2 8) - (2 8) {11 6) ‘
Total current tax 537 - 537 36 6 |
Deferred tax 1
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences ‘
- current year 66 - 66 (19 5) |
- adjustment in respect of prior years 27 - 27 65 ‘
Exceptional credit ansing from rate change - (80 0) {80 0) -
Total deferred tax 93 (80 0) {70 7) (130) [
630 (80 0) {17 0) 236 |

The current tax charge was £53 7 million {2015 £36 6 milion) This includes a credit of £2 8 million {2015 £11 6 million) ansing from
adjustments to prior year tax computations

The Finance Act 2015 was enacted in the current year which implemented a reduction in the corporation tax rate from 20% to 18% wiih
effect from 1 Apnl 2020 This resulted in an additional exceptional deferred tax credit of £80 0 million in the iIncome statement and a
deferred tax charge of £8 3 million in reserves

A further reduction to 17% with effect from 1 Apnl 2020 has been announced but not yet substantively enacted The estimated impact of
this rate change will be a reduction in the deferred tax hability of approximately £38 1 mihon
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12 Taxation (continued)

b} Factors affecting the tax (credit)/charge in the year

The tax assessed for the year 1s lower than (2015 lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 21%) The

differences are explained below

2016 2015

£m £m

Profit on ordinary activities before tax 3096 1312
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard UK corporation rate of 20% (2015 21%) 619 276
Tax effect of depreciation on non qualfying assets 37 35
Tax effect of income not taxable in determining taxable profits (18) 24)
Current year impact of rate change 07) -
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior penods (0 1) (31)
Exceptional deferred tax credit ansing from rate change (80 0) -
Total tax {creditycharge for the year (17 0) 236

¢) Tax charged/{credited) directly to other comprehensive income or equity

In addition to the amount charged/(credited) to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/(credited)

directly to other comprehensive iIncome or equity

2016 2015
£m £m
Current tax
Tax on share based paymenis (16) (13)
Tax on pension contributions in excess of profit and loss charge - (2 1)
Total current tax credited to other comprehensive income or equity {16) (34)
Deferred tax
Tax on actuanal gainsflosses 285 (24 2)
Tax on share based payments 09 (0 5)
Effect of change In tax rate 83 -
Tax on transfers to the iIncome statement 16 83
Tax on cash flow hedges (0 4) (21)
Total deferred tax charged/{credited) to other comprehensive income or equity 389 (18 5)

1¢
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13 Dividends on equity shares

Amounls recognised as distnbutions to owners of the company In the year

2016 2015
Pence per share £m Pence per share £m
Intenm dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015) 3100 3100 20 37 2037

The company's dwvidend policy I1s 1o declare dividends which are consistent with the company's regulatory obhgations and at a level
which 1s decided each year after consideration of a number of facters, including regulatory uncertainty, future cash flow requirements

and balance sheet considerations

The amount declared 1s expected to vary each year as the )/mpact of these faclors changes

14 Other intangible fixed assets

Computer software Other
Internally tnternally
generated Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 April 2015 178 8 555 120 246 3
Restatement (2 6) 258 - 232
At 1 April 2015 after restatement 176 2 813 120 269 5
Addiions 99 119 - 218
At 31 March 2016 186 1 932 12 ¢ 2913
Amortisation
At 1 April 2015 (148 1) (25 0) (107) (183 8}
Restatement 13 (21 9) - (20 6)
At 1 April 2015 after restatement (146 8) (46 9) (107) (204 4)
Amortisation for year (82) (10 1) (06) (19 9)
At 31 March 2016 (156 0) (57 0) (11 3) (224 3)
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 301 362 07 670
As at 31 March 2015 (restated) 294 344 13 651
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15 Tangible fixed assets

Land tnfrastructure  Fixed plant and Assets under
and buildings assets equipment  Moveable plant construction Total
£m £m £m £m £Em £m
Cost
At 1 Aprl 20115 30125 4,693 2 3,968 8 4986 - 11,724 1
Restatement (50 6) 68 8 {398 6) (0 6) 669 9 2889
Al 1 Apnl 2015 after restatement 2,961 9 4,762 0 3,570 2 490 669 9 12,0130
Additions 27 214 14 7 48 4155 4591
Transfers on commissioning 194 8 156 7 2097 - (561 2) -
Disposals (107) {02) {157) (34) (4 1) (34 1)
At 31 March 2016 3,1487 49399 3,778 9 504 520 1 124380
Depreciation
At 1 Apni 2015 (1,030 8) {1,214 2) (2,257 6) (30 8) - (4,533 4)
Restatement (12 8) (12 1) 28 4 (0 5) — 30
At 1 Apnl 2015 after restatement (1,043 6) {1,226 3) (2,229 2) (31 3) - (4,530 4)
Charge for the year (76 7) (315) (177 3) 48) - {290 3)
Disposals 61 - 15 1 32 - 24 4
At 31 March 2016 (1,114 2) {1,257 8) (2,391 4) (32 9) - (4,796 3)
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 20345 3,6821 1,387 5 175 5201 76417
At 31 March 2015 (restated) 19183 35357 13410 177 669 9 74826
The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets includes the following amountis in respect of assets held under finance leases
Fixed
Land and  Infrastructure plant and
bulldings assets equipment Total
£m £Em £m £m
Net book value
At 31 March 2016 173 4 1198 164 3096
At 31 March 2015 1770 1187 266 3223
The net book value of land and buldings s analysed as follows
2016 2015
Em £m
Freehold 20342 19180
Shorl leasehold 03 03
20345 19183

14
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16 Investments 1n subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiary underiakings

£m

Cost and net hook value
At 1 Apnl 2015 and 31 March 2016

3479

The company has the following subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings Country of operation and Pnincipal actity Percentage and class of
Incorporation share capital held

100% Ordinary and

East Worcester Water Limited England and Wales  Finance company 100% non-voting
Severn Trent General Partnership Limited Scotland Finance company 100% Ordmnary
Severn Trent LCP Limited England and Wales  Leasing company 100% Ordinary
Severn Trent Leasing Limited Engtand and Wales  Leasing company 100% Ordinary
Severn Trent Reservoirs Limited England and Wales  Finance company 100% Ordinary
Severn Trent Utilities Finance Plc England and Wales  Finance company 100% Ordinary

The company also has an indirect invesiment in Severn Trent Limited Partnership, a hmited parinership registered in Scotland, as a

result of Severn Trent General Partnership Limited being the general partner

In the optnien of the directors the fair values of the company's investments are not less than the amount at which they are stated in the

balance sheet

17 Trade and other receivables

Amounts falling due within one year

2016 2015

Restated

£m £m

Trade receivables 2851 2790
Doubtful debt provision {124 3) (122 5)
Net trade receivables 1608 156 5
Amounts receivable from group undertakings under finance leases 06 05
Other amounts due from group companies 108 165
Other debtors 42 4 309
Corpoeration tax - 237
Prepayments 198 187
Accrued income 2034 206 6
437 8 454 4
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17 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Amounts falling due after more than one year

2016 2015
£m £m

Loans to group companies 1096 108 3
Amounts recevable from group undertakings under finance leases 997 100 3
Prepayments B25 859
2918 2945

Prepayments includes £85 9 million {2015 £89 2 mullion) which represents a contnbution made to Severn Trent Limited Partnership as
part of an asset backed pension funding arrangement As a result of this arrangement the Severn Trent Pension Scheme cbtained the
income rights in the partnerstup Of this amount £3 4 million (2015 £3 3 milhon) 1s included in amounts falling due within one year

18 Finance lease receivables

Minimum lease payments receivable are as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Within one year 57 57
Between one and two years 57 57
Between two and five years 170 170
After more than five years 2384 244 1
266 8 2725
Less unearned interest receivable (166 5) (171 7)
1003 100 8
The present values of mmimum lease payments receivable are as follows
2016 2015
£m £m
Within one year 06 05
Between one and two years a6 06
Between two and five years 19 18
After more than five years 97 2 979
100 3 100 8
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Trade and other receivables amounts falling due within one year 06 05
Trade and other recewvables amounts falling due after one year 997 003
100 3 1008

The company has granted finance leases of between 44 and 57 years in respect of concrete setting tanks The interest terms were set
at the inception of the leases Leases bear interest at a weighted average interest rate of 5 1% (2015 5 1%}

1¢




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

19 Trade and other payables: amounts falling due within one year

2016

2015

£m £m
Bank overdrafts 42 -
Bank loans 2750 -
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 530 4708
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 30 28
Obligations under finance leases 161 501
Borrowings 3513 5237
Trade payables 96 254
Other amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 523 627
Other creditors 69 66
Corporation tax payable 182 -
Other taxation and social securty 53 52
Accruals and deferred income 3244 2856
Denvative financial labiities 04 05
768 4 909 7

1¢
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20 Trade and other payables: amounts falling due after more than one year

2016 2015
Restated
£m £m
Bank loans 9372 1,2407
Other loans 4746 -
Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings 3,287 3 32350
Amounts owed to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings under finance leases 20623 2053
Obligations under finance leases 1847 2249
Borrowings 5,086 1 49059
Accruals and deferred income 8694 8227
Dervative financial habilites 1677 164 6
6,123 2 58932
Borrowings are repayable as follows
2016 2015
Loans and Loans and
overdrafts not overdrafts not
repayable by Finance repayable by Finance
instatments leases Total instalments leases Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
)l-;;r;?nmal labiities due within one (332 2) (19 1) (3513) (470 8) (52 9) (523 7)
Between one and two years (562 2) {20 9) (583 1) (150 0) (43 4) (193 4)
Between two and five years (238 0) {73 6) (311 6) (1,033 5) (67 9) (1,101 4)
After more than five years (3,898 9) (292 5) (4,191 4) (3.292 2) (318 9) (3,611 1)
Total financial habilihes due after (4,699 1) (387 0) (5,086 1) 4475 7) (430 2) (4,905 9)
one year
(5,031 3) (406 1) {5,437 4) (4,946 5) (483 1) (5,429 6)

1¢
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20 Trade and other payables: amounts falling due after more than one year (continued)

Loans repayable partly or wholly after five years compnse

2016 5-10 years 10 - 15 years 15 - 20 years »20 years Total
£m £m £m Em Em

Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings

Fixed rate 4950 4193 204 4 2470 13657
Floating rate 205 161 - - 366
RPI inked 376 1510 - 899 2 1,087 8
5531 586 4 204 4 1,146 2 2,490 1
Bank and other loans

Fixed rate 2970 3275 - - 624 5
Floating rate 5204 1471 - - 676 5
RPI inked 107 8 - - - 107 8
934 2 474 6 - - 1,408 8

1,487 3 1,061 0 204 4 1,146 2 3,898 9
2015 5- 10 years 10 - 15 years 15 - 20 years >20 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Loans due to parent and fellow subsidiary undertakings

Fixed rate 296 6 9133 196 0 246 9 1,652 8
Floating rate 750 335 - - 108 5
RPI linked 372 149 6 - 888 5 1,075 3
408 8 1,096 4 186 0 11354 28366
Bank and other loans
Fixed rate 150 0 - - - 1500
Floating rate 199 3 - - - 199 3
RPI linked 106 4 _ _ _ 106 4
4557 - - - 4557
864 5 1,096 4 196 0 11354 32022

The weighted average interest rate on borrowings 1s 3 20% (2015 3 57%)
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21 Finance leases

Obhgations under finance leases are as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Within one year 360 77
Between one and two years 377 609
Between two and five years 120 4 116 9
After more than five years 4152 4701
609 3 7196
Less future finance charges (203 2) (236 5)
Present value of lease obhgations 406 1 483 1

The present values of minimum lease payments are disclosed within note 20

The remaining terms of finance leases ranged from 1 to 16 years at 31 March 2016 Interest terms are set at the inception of the
leases Leases which bear fixed interest at a weighted average rate of 5 2% (2015 5 2%) have capital outstanding of £322 4 million
(2015 £388 0 milion) The lease obligations are secured against the related assets

There were ne contingent rents, escalation clauses or matenal renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not
impose restriction on dividend payments, additicnal debt or further leasing

1¢
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22 Financial instruments

a) Categones of financial assets held at fair value

2016 2015
£m £m ‘
Fair value through profit and loss ‘
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted - 42
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 104 - I
104 42 |
Derivatives desighated as hedging instruments ‘
Interest rate swaps - farr value hedges 121 - ‘
Cross currency swaps - farr value hedges 177 208 |
298 208 ‘
Total derivative financial assets 40 2 250
b) Categories of financial habilities held at fair value
2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted (164.9) (164 3}
(164 9) (164 3)
Dernvatives designated as hedging instruments
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges (32} (0 8)
{(32) (0 8)
(168 1) (165 1)

1¢
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22 Financial instruments (continued)
c) Denvatives

The company enlers into a vanety of denvative financial instruments to manage its exposure 1o interest rate and foreign exchange rate
nsk These risks are managed centrally by the Severn Trent Group Treasury department Denvative financial instruments are not held
for trading

interest rate swaps - unhedged

The company has interest rate swaps In place to manage its exposure to interest rate nsk arsing from its anticipated borrowing
requirements Under the terms of the interest rate swaps, the company agrees with other parlies to exchange, mainly semi-annually,
the difference between fixed contract and floating rate interest rate swaps to hedge future debt Economically these act to fix the
interest cost of debt which 1s denominated as floating rate, but do not achieve hedge accounting under the strict critenia of IAS 39

interest rate swaps - hedged

Dunng the year the company raised £225 million cut of its £471 millon US Private Placement programme in sterling, at fixed rates In
line with the strategy to increase the proportion of debt at floating rates this was swapped to floating rate debt via interesl rate swaps
These swaps have been designated as hedging instruments to hedge the changes in fair value of the debt ansing from movements 1n
interest rates Since the terms of the recewvable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt the swaps are expected
1o be effective hedges

Cross currency swaps - unhedged

The company holds cross currency swaps to manage the exchange rate nsk ansing from foreign currency borrowings Under the terms
of the contracts, the company agrees with other parties to swap the fareign currency proceeds into slerling debt bearing interest based
on LIBOR Economicaily these swaps act to mitigate exchange rate nsk ansing from foreign currency borrowings however do not
achieve hedge accounting under the strnict cnitena of 1AS 39

Cross currency swaps - hedged
The company also has a number of swaps where the terms of the receivable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underiying
debt These swaps are expected to be effective hedges, hence the swaps have been accounted for as fair value hedges

Energy swaps

The cempany has entered into a senes of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2020

d) Fair value measurements recognised in the balance sheet

The fair values of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to iniial recogmition at fair value, are based on observable inputs
other than quoted pnces for identical instruments

The farr value of interest rate swaps i1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows Future cash flows are
estimated based on forward interest rates from observable yield curves at the year end and contract interest rates discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit nsk of counterparties

Cross currency swaps are valued by reference to forward interest rates from observable yield curves at the year end and contract
interest rales discounted at a rate that refiects the credit nsk of counterparties The currency cash flows are translated at the spot rate
at the year end

e) Changes in value of financial instruments at fair value

Changes tn farr value which are included in the income statement are set out in note 11

1




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme

a) Defined benefit pension schemes

The company 1s the sponsoring employer of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the Severn Trent group in the UK As
there 15 no contractual agreement or stated policy for allocating the net defined benefit cost to individual group entiies this company
has recognised the fult cost and deficit

(1} Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes in the UK, covenng the majonty of UK employees The defined
benefit pension schemes are funded to cover future pension increases and their assets are held in separate funds administered by
trustees The trustees are required to act in the best interests of the schemes’ beneficianes A formal actuanal valuation of each
scheme is carried out on behalf of the trustees at tniennial intervals by an independent professionally qualified actuary Under the
defined benefit pension schemes, members are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion (varying between 1/30 and
1/80 for each year of service} of their salary for the final year of employment with the group or, If higher, the average of the highest
three consecutive years' salary in the last ten years of employment

The defined benefit pension schemes closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension scheme has
been established and members of the defined benefit pension schemes have become members of the new defined contnibution
penston scheme

The UK defined benefit schemes and the date of thesr last formal valuation are as follows

Date of last formal actuarial valuation

Severn Trent Pension Scheme (‘STPS')* 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Mirror Image Penston Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 15 by far the largest of the group’s UK defined benefit schemes

(i) Amount included In the balance sheet arising from the company’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value of scheme assets

Equities 9224 999 5
Gilts 2830 327 2
Corporate bonds 5707 450 8
Property 1714 159 3
Hedge funds 18 609
Cash 805 89 1
Total fair value of assets 2,0398 2,086 8
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,3399) (2545 7)
{300 1) (458 9)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes {9 4) (100)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet {309 5) (468 9)

The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prices in active markets




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(1) Amount included in the balance sheet anising from the company’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

(continued)

Movements in the fair value of the scheme assets were as foliows

2016 2015
£m £m
Fair value at 1 Apri 2,086 8 18236
Interest iIncome on scheme assets 677 801
Company contributions 175 68 4
Contnbution from intra-group asset backed funding arrangement 82 82
Other contributions from Severn Trent group companies 21 44
Contnbutions from scheme members 03 48
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in finance income) (45 9) 1934
Scheme administration costs (23) (29)
Benefits paid (94 6) (93 2)
Fair value at 31 March 2,0398 2,086 8

Other contnbutions from Severn Trent group companies are included in actuana! gains/losses recogrused in the statement of

comprehensive income

Movements In the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follows

2016 2015
£m £m

Present value at 1 April 25557 21719
Service cost - 228
Past service cost (07) 18 1
Interest cost 828 945
Contnbutions from scheme members 03 48
Actuanal (gains)iosses ansing from changes in financial assumptions (147 9) 366 2
Actuanal gains ansing from experience adjustments (46 3) (29 4)
Benefits pad (94 6) (93 2)
Present value at 31 March 23493 25557
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Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes {continued)

(i)} Amount included in the balance sheet anising from the company's obligations under defined benefit pension schemes
{continued}

Of which
2016 2015
£m__ £m
Amounts relating to funded schemes 2,3399 25457
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 94 100
Present value at 31 March 23493 25557

The group has an obligation to pay penstons to a number of former employees, whose benefits would otherwise have been restricted
by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting te £9 4 mithon (2015 £10 0 million) is included as an
unfunded scheme within the retirement benefit oblrgation

(i1f} Amounts recognised In the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2016 2015
£m £m
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost - (22 8)
Past service cost 07 (18 1)
Scheme admmistration costs (2 3) (2 9)
(16) (43 8)
Amounts charged te finance costs
Interest cost (82 8) (94 5)
Amounts credited to finance income
Interest iIncome on scheme assets 677 801
Total amount charged to the income statement (16 7) (58 2}

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £21 8 million (2015 gan of £273 5 million)

Actuanal gains and losses for the current and pror year are reported in the statement of comprehensive income The cumulative
amount of actuanal gains and losses recognised in equity since the adoption of the recogmition and measurement pnnciples of IFRS 1s
a net loss of £310 8 milhon (2015 net loss of £459 1 million)

tn addition, contnbutions made by other Severn Trent group entities are also included in actuarial gains and losses recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income




Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

iv) Actuanal risk factors
The schemes typically expose the company to actuanal nsks such as investment nsk, inflalion nsk and longevity nsk

Investment risk

The group's contrtbutions to the schemes are based on actuanal calculations which make assumptions about the returns expecled from
the schemes' investments If the investments underperform these assumptions in the long term then the group will need to make
additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Inflation nsk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by RP1 The group’s contributions to the schemes are
based on assumptions about the future level of inflation If inflation is higher than the levels assumed n the actuanal calculations then
the group will need to make additional contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

Longewvity nsk

The group's contnbutions to the schemes are based on assumptions about the life expectancy of scheme members after retrement If
scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make additional contributions to the
schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits

1
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Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(v) Actuarial assumptions

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the STPS (also the approximate weighted average of assumptions used for the
valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2016 2015

Yo %

Pnce inflation 30 30
Discount rate 36 33
Pension Increases in payment 30 30
Pension increases in deferment 30 30

The assumption for pnice inflation 1s denved from the difference between the yields on ionger term fixed rate gilts and on index-linked
qilts The discount rate 1s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds

No salary assumption 1s required in the current year because the scheme closed to future accrual on 31 March 2015

The mortahity assumptions are based on those used in the tnennial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013 The mortahty
assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumplions are as follows

2016 2015
Men Women Men Wornen
‘SAPS’ 'SAPS'

Mortaity table used SINMA_L SiINFA_L SINMA_LL  SINFA_L
Mortality table compared with standard table 116% 92% 116% 92%
Future improvement per annum 10% 10% 10% 10%
Remaining life expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years) 214 246 214 245
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years) 228 26 1 227 261

1



Severn Trent Water Limited

Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued}

(v) Actuanal assumptions (continued)

The calculation of the scheme habilities 1s sensitive to the actuanal assumptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price inftation and mortality The following table summarises the estimated impact on scheme habilies from changes to
key actuanal assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Assumption Change in assumptton Impact on scheme habilities
Dhscount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1% Decrease/increase by £45 million
Price inflation Increasefdecrease by 0 1% increase/decrease by £40 million
Mortality Increase in life expectancy by 1 year Increase by £65 milon

In reality, interrelattonships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and prnce inflation The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelaticnships

in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod, which 15 the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation
habiity recognised in the balance sheet

{w1) Effect on future cash flows

Contribution rates are set in consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obhgation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2015 18 years) The expected cash flows payable
from the scheme are presented n the graph below

Expected benefit payments
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The most recent formal tnennial actuanal valuations and funding agreements were carried out as at 31 March 2013 for both schemes
As a result, deficit reduction contributions of £40 million 1n 2013/14, £35 million 1n 2014/45, £15 mithen in 2015/16 and £12 millon p a
In subsequent years 1o 2024/25 were agreed Further payments of £8 milton p a through an assel backed funding arrangement will
also continue to 31 March 2032 The next tnenmial valuation, as at 31 March 2016, 1s underway
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Notes to the financial statements

23 Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

b} Defined contnbution pension scheme

The company participales i the group defined contnbution scheme The Severn Trent Penston Scheme, Choices section was replaced
by the Severn Trent Group Personal Pension from 1 Apnl 2015 and all members of other pension schemes were transferred This
scheme has been open since 1 Apni 2012 and new employees were automatcally enrclled from this date The pension charge for this
scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016 was £18 1 million (2015 £8 2 million) As at 31 March 2016, contributions amounting to

£1 5 million (2015 £2 4 million) n respect of the current reporting penod were owed to the schemes

24 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Insurance Other

Deferred tax  Restructuring deductible provisions Total

£m £m £m £m £m

AL 1 Apnl 2015 6515 13 - 32 656 0
Restatement 659 - — - 659
At 1 Apnl 2015 after restatement 717 4 13 - 32 7219
(Credited)/charged to income statement (70 7) (0 3) 51 - (65 9)
Utilised in year - (09) (05) (08) (22}
Charged to other comprehensive income 389 - - — 38 9
At 31 March 2016 6856 G1 46 24 6927

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be ncurred in respect of committed programmes The associated outflows are expected to
anse over the next 12 months from the balance sheet date

Dunng the year, Severn Trend Water Limited has increased the level of self-insurance provided in the accounts for insurance deductible
values previously provided m Derwent Insurance Limited, a captive insurance company of the group At the year end thus has resulted
in a provision of £4 6 milhon (2015 £nil) for amounts that are no longer covered in the arrangement The associated outflows are
estimated to arise over a penod of up to five years from the balance sheet date

Other provisions consist of dilapidation costs and onerous leasehold property costs The associated outflows are estimated to anse
over a penod of up to five years (2015 six years) from the balance sheet date

1
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Notes to the financial statements

25 Deferred tax

An analyss of the movements in the major deferred tax liabiities and assets recogrised by the company is set out below

Accelerated Retirement Fair value of

tax benefit financial
depreciation obligaton  nstruments Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2014 7593 (69 5) (33 4) 266 683 0
Restatement 66 4 - (0 6) 01 659
At 1 Apnil 2014 after restatement 8257 (69 5) (34 0) 267 7489
Charge/{credit) to Income statement 131 - {30 4) 43 (13 0)
(Credit)/charge to other comprehensive Income - (24 2) 62 (05) (18 5)
At 1 Apnil 2015 after restatement 8388 {937) (58 2) 305 7174
Charge/(credit) to iIncome statement 93 - 13 {13) 93
{Credit)/credit to Income statement ansing from rate change (839) 25 44 (30) (80 0}
Charge to other comprehensive iIncome - 285 12 09 306
Charge 1o other comprehensive income ansing from rate change - 69 14 - 83
At 31 March 2016 764 2 (55 8) (49 9) 271 6856

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recoveredfsettled after more than 12 months,

are as follows

2016 2015
Restated
£m £m
Deferred tax asset (105 7) (151 9)
Deferred tax liability 7913 8693
6856 717 4
26 Share capital
2016 2015
£m £m
Total issued and fully paid
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10p each 1000 1000
1000 1000
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27 Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting provisions
of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

28 Share based payments

At 31 March 2016 there were no eptions exercisable under any of the share based remuneration schemes (2015 nil)
a) Long Term Incentive Plan {‘LTIP’)

Under the LTIP annual condiional awards of shares in the ultimate parent company may be made to executive directors and senior
staff Awards are subject to performance condiions and continued employment throughout the vesting period

The 2013 and 2014 LTIP awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievement of Return on Regulated Capital Value in excess of
the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMP5 business plan over a three year vesting period The 2015 LTIP awards are subject
to Severn Trenl Water's achievement of Return on Regulatory Equity in excess of the level included in the Severn Trent Water AMP6
business plan over a three year vesting penod It has been assumed that performance against the LTIP non-market conditions will be
100% (2015 100%)

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the awards 1s 1 30 (2015 1 31)

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board of the ulbmate parent company may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares
in Severn Trent Plc to those employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a penod of three or
five years

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised dunng the period was £21 44 (2015 £1974) The
options outstanding at 31 March 2016 had a weighted average option price of £14 91 (2015 £16 81) and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 2 26 years (2015 2 14 years)

c¢) Share Matching Plan (‘SMP’}

Under the terms of the Share Matching Plan members of STEC have received matching share awards over those shares which had
been acquired under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scheme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum
ratio of one matching share for every deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod No matching shares have been
awarded (n the current year

Matching shares are subject to total sharehoider return over three years measured relative 1o the companies ranked 51 - 150 by market
capitalisabion in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts}

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dividends paid through the perfoarmance penod on the basis of such
notional dividends being reinvested at the then prevaling share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Severn Trent Plc
Remuneration Committee determines that the performance condiions have been met provided that the parbicipant remains m
employment at the end of the performance penod
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29 Cash flow statement |

a) Reconcihation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2016 2015
£m £m
Profit before interest and tax 5197 5151
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2903 276 7
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 199 222
Pension service cost o7 409
Defined benefit pension scheme contnbutions (17 5) (68 4)
Defined benefit pension scheme administration costs 23 29
Share based payments charge 50 76
Profit on sale of tangible and intangible fixed assets {(29) (81)
Deferred income movement {10 5) (10 1)
Provisions charged to the income statement 48 108
Utilisation of provisions for iabilibes and charges (22) (10 6)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capiial 808 2 7790
Decrease In inventory 03 02
Increase 1n amounts receivable (15 4) (34 2)
Increase In amounis payable 156 159
Cash generated from operations 8087 760 9
Tax pad {19 3) (24 9)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7894 736 0

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions to fixed assets during the year were financed by new finance leases (2015 none) Assets transferred from developers at
no cost were recognised at their fair value of £24 8 milion (2015 £29 8 million) |

¢} Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items classified as exceptional in the tncome statement

2016 2015 ‘

£m £ |

Restructunng costs (30 (24 1) }
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets - 94
{3 0) (14 7)
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29 Cash flow statement (continued)

d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

As at RPI uplift on Other As at
1 Apnl Farrvalue  index-linked Foreign non cash 31 March
2015 Cash flow  adjustments debt exchange movements 2016
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 1191 {119 1) - - - - -
Bank overdrafts - (42) - - - - (42}
Net cash and cash equivalents 1191 (123 3) - - - - 42)
Loans receivable from other group
companies 108 3 13 - - - - 109 6
Loans payable to other group
companies (3,705 8) 376 5 {10) (12 6} - 26 (3,340 3)
Bank loans (1,240 7) 300 - (14) - 01y (1,2122)
Other loans - (471 3) 15 - (59) 11 (474.6)
Finance leases payable (275 1) 743 - - - - (200 8)
Intercompany finance leases payable (208 0) 27 - - - - {205 3}
Finance leases receivable from other
group companies 1008 (03) h - - - 1003
Cross currency swaps 208 - 123 - - (50) 281
Net debt (5,080 6) (110 3) 128 (14 0) (59} (1.4} ({51994)

1t
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30 Financial commitments

a) Investment expenditure commitments
Capital commitments are as follows

2016 2015
£m £m
Contracted for but not provided for 130 8 733

In addition to these contractual commitments, the company has lenger term expenditure plans which include investments lo achieve
improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat) and to prowde for growth in demand for
water and waste waler services

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date, the company had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2016 2015

£m £m

Within one year 14 18
Between two and five years 47 40
After five years 51 47
112 105

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

31 Contingent liabilities
The banking arrangements of the company operate on a pooled basis with certain fellow group undertakings Under these

arrangements participating companies guarantee each others’ balances only to the extent that therr credit balances can be offset
against overdrawn balances of other Severn Trent group companies

Al 31 March 2016 the company’s maximum hability under these arrangements was £nil million (2015 £41 million)

32 Related party transactions

Directors' remuneration 1s disclosed in note 8

The retrement benefit schemes entered into by the company are considered to be related parties Details of transactions and balances
with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 23

33 Ultimate parent undertaking

The immediate parent undertaking 1s $Severn Trent Draycote Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 15 Severn Trent Plc, which 1s the parent undertaking and controlling party of the
smallest and largest group to consclidate these financial statements Copies of the Severn Trent Plc consclidated financial statements
can be cbtained from Severn Trent Plc's registrars at Equinili, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN93 6DA
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